
 

 

 

 

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE 

HELD AT 

CITY OF JOHANNESBURG OLD COUNCIL CHAMBER 

158 CIVIC BOULEVARD,  BRAAMFONTEIN  

 

 

 

 

04  AUGUST 2020  
 

 

DAY 244  

 

 
22 Woodlands Drive 

Irene Woods, Centurion  
TEL: 012 941 0587 FAX: 086 742 7088 

MOBILE: 066 513 1757   
info@gautengtranscribers.co.za 

 

 

mailto:info@gautengtranscribers.co.za


 

Page 2 of 141 
 

CERTIFICATE OF VERACITY 
 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that, in as far as it is audible, the aforegoing is a 
VERBATIM transcription from the soundtrack of proceedings, as was ordered to be 
transcribed by Gauteng Transcribers and which had been recorded by the client 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE 
 

HELD AT 
 

CITY OF JOHANNESBURG OLD COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

158 CIVIC BOULEVARD, BRAAMFONTEIN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE OF HEARING: 04 AUGUST 2020 
 
TRANSCRIBERS: B KLINE; Y KLIEM; V FAASEN; D STANIFORTH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 3 of 141 
 

PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 04 AUGUST 2020 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morning Mr Pretor ius.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Morning Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning everybody.   I  thought I  

would do wi thout  a jersey this morning because I  thought i t  

is beginning to be warm but  I  remembered that  th is venue is  

very cold so I  put  i t  on.   So I  see you also do not  seem to 

have a jersey on.   But  you might  not  feel  the cold here the 

way I  do.   Yes are we ready? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.   The evidence to be led 10 

this week or  for most  of  th is week Chai r  involves the Free 

State and a part icular project  that  took place in the Free 

State,  the Asbestos Project  i t  has come to be known as.    

 Evidence was led by Mr Dukwana last  year  in relat ion 

to the conduct  of  that  project  and s ince then there has been 

an extensive invest igat ion on the part  of  the commission and 

the f rui ts of  that  invest igat ion are contained in the bundles 

now before you Chai r.  

 There are a number of  bundles that  you have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Pretor ius.   The l ight ing 20 

could be bet ter than i t  is I  th ink.   I  can see – I  can obviously 

see Mr Pretor ius but  i t  is  rather  dark.   So I  th ink the 

technical  people wi l l  do what needs to be done.  Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Okay we wi l l  look at  that  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A number of  bundles before you I  

t rust  that  two years down the l ine we have got  the numbering 

and mark ing of  the bundles ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry again Mr Pretor ius.   I t  may be – 

I  do not  know i f  i t  is that  l ight  that  is behind you.  I  do not  

know whether they normal ly put  i t  there and i t  is – ja  okay.   I  

am sorry Mr Pretor ius please cont inue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In any event  Chair  you have a 

number of  bundles before you which contain both the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   I  am t rying to  get  them to help 10 

me with the l ight ing.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight  I  wi l l  wai t  unt i l  a l l  that  is in  

order Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  I  am wrong about th inking i t  is  

normal ly somewhere there then – then maybe I  just  

misunderstand – ja that  is  much bet ter.   Yes.   You may 

cont inue Mr Pretor ius.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.   The bundles in  

f ront  of  you conta in the statements or records of  interv iews 

with a number of  wi tnesses that  have been the subject  of  20 

invest igat ion some of  whom you wi l l  hear f rom this week.  

 They also conta in the report  of  the present  Publ ic 

Protector who made several  f ind ings in relat ion to the 

project .   There are court  papers I  wi l l  refer  to  those in the 

course of  an opening.  There are t ranscr ipts  of  the interv iews 
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which may become re levant  in quest ioning.   There is certain 

addi t ional  documents but  what we have done because this 

invest igat ion involves a range of  issues both broad and some 

of  f ine detai l  the invest igat ion team has wi th the assistance 

of  the legal  team prepared a comprehensive invest igators 

report  in which al l  the f rui ts of  the invest igat ion have been 

put  and analysed so that  you have in Exhibi t  TT18 which is  

in Bundles 8,  9 and 10 a complete record of  the 

invest igat ions and an analysis of  the interviews of  wi tnesses.  

 That  invest igat ion report  has been signed by the 10 

invest igators and wi l l  be referred to  in the end.   But  i t  does 

at  the end of  the day comprise an analysis of  both 

documentat ion produced dur ing the course of  invest igat ions 

as wel l  as the t ranscr ipts and statements relat ing to 

individual  wi tnesses and i t  is a comprehensive document.  

 The wi tnesses for  today Chai r  are two.   Fi rst ly,  a Mr 

Roets who is an expert  in relat ion to asbestos.   The reason 

he has been cal led is that  th is  is  more than an issue of  

procurement and state expendi ture as wel l  as the dist r ibut ion 

of  the benef i ts of  state expendi ture.  20 

 I t  is  a lso an issue as to whether the Free State 

Provincial  Government has carr ied out  i ts  dut ies,  

const i tut ional  dut ies in fact  in relat ion to the preservat ion of  

heal th and wel fare of  i ts inhabi tants part icular ly in re lat ion to  

the prevalence of  asbestos and low cost  housing.   And that  
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is another aspect  of  the evidence that  you wi l l  hear th is  

week.    

 In order to assist  Chai r  in present ing a 

comprehensive record of  what  actual ly occurred in re lat ion to 

the Asbestos Project  I  have taken the t rouble to prepare a 

rather lengthy opening which wi l l  record the story f rom 

beginning to end so that  when one gets to aspects of  the 

evidence in  due course i t  wi l l  a l l  f i t  into an overal l  p icture 

and be understood by the commission and by the publ ic  

hopeful ly in i ts proper context .  10 

 So i f  I  may just  address you in  regard to  that  Chai r?  

The evidence in re lat ion to the substance asbestos wi l l  be 

given by the expert .   The substance asbestos in i ts  var ious 

forms was in the past  part icular ly pre-1994 Chair  because of  

i ts var ious qual i t ies used extensive ly in housing and industry 

and elsewhere.   But  part icular ly in low cost  housing.   And 

what is so sad about th is ser ies of  events they – i t  is st i l l  

there.   I t  is a r isk to l i fe.   I t  is high ly dangerous.   Causes a 

number of  ser ious heal th condi t ions and commendably at  

least  in i t ia l ly the present  execut ive took a number of  20 

decisions to eradicate asbestos.  

 What happened however is that  hundreds of  mi l l ions 

of  Rands have been spent on this pro ject  but  the asbestos is  

st i l l  there?  People are st i l l  exposed to the danger of  

asbestos wi th few minor except ions but  they do not  affect  
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that  pr inciple.   That  ev idence wi l l  be given by the expert .  

 Then Chai r  a number of  persons have been involved 

in th is  project  and i t  is wel l  to  name them so that  their  role  

can be understood when reference is made to them in due 

course.   Mr Dukwana a former member of  the Execut ive 

Counci l  and MEC in var ious por t fo l ios in the Free State 

government has a lready given his evidence.  

 That  evidence has been contested by amongst  others 

wi tnesses who wi l l  come forward this week.   Mr Mokhesi  is 

the Head of  Department – Free State Department of  Human 10 

Sett lements.   I t  is  that  department under the rubr ic of  which 

this project  was carr ied out .  

 Mr Mat lakala who agreed to give evidence today and 

wi l l  address you in relat ion to his evidence in due course is 

the Head of  Procurement Free State Department of  Human 

Sett lements.    

 Mr Makepe is the Chief  Engineer in the Project  

Management Uni t  the PMU of  the Free State Department  of  

Human Sett lements.   He did some ver i f icat ion the extent  and 

qual i ty of  which wi l l  be addressed in evidence.  20 

 There is a Mr Ignat ius Mpambani o f ten referred to  as 

Ego.  He was a member of  the Joint  Venture which obtained 

the contract  through the procurement processes which wi l l  

be the subject  of  extensive evidence.   He was unfortunately  

recent ly murdered and is therefore not  avai lable to assist  the 
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commission obviously.    

 Then there is  a  Mr Sodi  who is the CEO of  an ent i ty  

cal led Blackhead Consul t ing PTY Ltd.   He was the other  

member of  the Joint  Venture.  

 In evidence Chair  you wi l l  hear  reference to Mr 

Mpanbani  or Mr Sodi  but  i t  was always in thei r  capaci ty  

most ly in their  capaci ty as members of  the ent i t ies which 

form part  of  the Joint  Venture which is at  the centre of  the 

evidence.  

 There is a Mr Sydney Radebe he is the Director of  a  10 

sub-contractor.  

 A Mr Manyeke a Di rector of  a sub-cont ractor to the 

sub-contractor and those detai ls are informat ive.    

 There is a Ms Diedericks who is  not  going to be 

cal led this week.   She is the former act ing Head of  

Department Gauteng Department of  Human Sett lements and 

the involvement of  Mr Sodi  and Blackhead Consul t ing in the 

Gauteng project  is relevant  for issues which wi l l  become 

clearer later.  

 Mr Thabani  Zulu wi l l  appear th is week.   He is the – 20 

was the Di rector  General  at  the Nat ional  Department of  

Housing.   He is now Di rector Genera l  at  the Department of  

Energy.  

 Mr Magashule a former Premier of  the Free State.  

 Ms Cholata who has given evidence. 
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 Ms Morake who has also given evidence who worked 

in the off ice of  the Premier.  

 Mr Mart in Zwane is another sub-contractor but  sub-

contractor to the Joint  Venture.  

 Mr Matow [?]  an engineer who was appointed to work 

on the asbestos audi t  and Mr Jimmy Tow [?]  a benef ic iary of  

monies emanat ing f rom Blackhead Consul t ing.  

 Al l  those persons feature in the story that  is  about  to 

be told th is week.    

 The story begins Chair  in Gauteng.   In Gauteng a 10 

panel  of  service providers was appointed.   There were two 

panels that  were appointed u l t imately.  

 The f i rst  panel  was a general  panel  to do work of  a 

general  nature in the area of  housing.  

 The second panel  a much smal ler panel  was 

appointed to do work on the eradicat ion of  asbestos.  

 I  may say at  th is  stage that  you wi l l  hear of  var ious 

phases of  asbestos eradicat ion.   The cont racts one is deal  

wi th here are merely for the assessment of  the prevalence 

and existence of  asbestos in  low cost  housing.   The idea was 20 

to ident i fy the extent  of  asbestos in  low cost  housing to meet 

the needs – const i tut ional  r ights in fact  of  people who could 

not  afford housing of  thei r  own and were as i t  were stuck 

wi th housing containing asbestos and could nothing about i t .  

 There is no evidence of  any compet i t ive bidding that  
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occurred in relat ion to the appointment of  ei ther panel .   That  

was because of  the procurement processes which fol lowed.  

But  we know that  a panel  of  e ight  contractors was appointed 

to do an asbestos audi t  in Gauteng and they so on the basis 

of  inst ruct ions to perform work wi th in the rubr ic of  the panel  

appointment.  

 The pr ice that  Blackhead charged or the assessment 

not  the eradicat ion,  the assessment of  the existence of  

asbestos was R650.00 per uni t  and that  documentat ion is 

contained in the bundle.  10 

 That  procurement  was declared at  a stage i rregular  

by the Audi tor General .   Important ly Chai r  there was no 

individual  cont ract  in existence between Blackhead and the 

Gauteng Department relevant  to  th is evidence.   At  the t ime 

that  cont ract  was – and I  use the word loosely t ransferred to  

the Free State.   Nor is there any evidence that  a fa i r  tender 

process preceded the conclusion of  any contractual  

arrangement between Blackhead and the Department of  

Human Sett lements in Gauteng.  

 You wi l l  hear the detai l  or more detai l  of  the precise 20 

t imel ines involved but  at  a stage a procurement process was 

entered into which I  wi l l  descr ibe in a moment which al lowed 

Blackhead and I  st ress Blackhead for the moment and 

al lowed the Free State Department  of  Human Sett lements to  

part ic ipate in the contract  in Gauteng.  
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 That  process was ent i rely f lawed for a number of  

reasons and we wi l l  deal  wi th i t  in detai l  in a moment.    

 The other aspect  of  the Gauteng evidence Chair  is 

that  the evidence of  Mr Sodi  shows that  the prof i ts were 

massive.   Sodi  is  c lear that  he paid – he was paid for his  

invest igat ion assessment of  the prevalence of  Gauteng and 

the areas that  he was asked to do.   He was paid almost  

R230 mi l l ion or in  the region of  R230 mi l l ion and his prof i t  on 

his own version was in the region of  R100 mi l l ion.  

 He says that  a l l  the others involved in the same 10 

project  but  in other areas in Gauteng thei r  prof i ts  ranged 

between 50 and 60 percent .   That  evidence you wi l l  hear in 

due course.    

 But  I  st ress two things.   No cont ract  was in existence 

at  the t ime the contract  in  Free State was signed.   Secondly 

the Gauteng cont racts do not  appear to have involved any 

compet i t ive b idding whatsoever.   And th is al l  a background 

to the fact  that  the contracts in the Free State did not  involve 

any compet i t ive bidding whatsoever.   And that  casts a 

shadow over the Free State procurement processes.  20 

 There are two aspects to procurement in the Free 

State.   The one is what is  cal led the part ic ipat ion process 

the other is the unsol ic i ted bid process.   Both were ent i rely  

f lawed. 

 Treasury Regulat ion 16A6.6 is the one relevant  to the 
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part ic ipat ion process.   I t  reads Chair :  

“The account ing off icer or account ing author i ty may on 

behal f  of  the department const i tut ional  inst i tut ion or  publ ic  

ent i ty for the purposes of  th is mat ter the account ing off icer  

of  the department  may part ic ipate in any cont ract  arranged 

by means of  a compet i t ive bidding process by any other  

organ of  state subject  to the wri t ten approval  of  such organ 

state and the relevant  cont ractors.”  

 The idea behind that  provision is that  i f  there is a  

compet i t ive bidding process say in one department that  10 

produces a cont ract  binding on those two part ies.   The 

second organ of  s tate or second department may par t ic ipate 

in that  contract .   I t  is  not  anything that  al lows the format ion 

of  a new contractual  re lat ionship.   There must  be an exist ing 

contract  entered into by mean of  a compet i t ive bidding 

process and the part ic ipat ion is in  that  cont ract  not  a new 

contract .  

 There wi l l  be detai led submissions to you in  that  

regard.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  to make sure I  fo l low.  I f  the contract  20 

in which Free State department may part ic ipate I  a contract  

re lat ing to  the Gauteng province/government does the 

Treasury or does the regulat ion of  instruct ion mean that  

s imply an expansion of  the scope of  the Gauteng contract  

include Free State but  otherwise everything else is the same 
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contract?  At  a pract ical  level  i f  one says,  i t  is not  creat ing a 

new cont ract  how would that  work pract ical ly? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   We have consul ted wi th a 

person in Treasury who may wel l  have to come and explain i t  

to you but  we have his views recorded.   Those wi l l  e i ther be 

presented in the form of  submissions but  insofar as a 

pract ice has developed under the rubr ic of  the provisions 

and the regulat ions i t  may be necessary for him to explain 

those things in more detai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   But  for the present  to answer your  

quest ion Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Where there is a contract  for  sale of  

goods for example.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Free State – wel l  Gauteng would 

enter into a contract  wi th a suppl ier  for a 100 widgets.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Only 80 would be provided and so 20 

another ent i ty  could engage or part ic ipate in that  contract  to  

obtain the other 20.   That  is the pr inciple wi th goods.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Of  course,  wi th services i t  is 

di fferent .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Because serv ices inevi tably  are as 

you would point  out  and as under l ies your quest ion Chai r  

serv ices are inevi tably conf ined wi thin a part icular personal  

re lat ionship or re lat ionship between contractor and ent i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So we understand that  i t  is miscible 

for the services to  be extended, the pract ice is  that  i t  should 

be done by way of  an addendum to the or ig inal  cont ract .   But  

other than that  a l l  the terms and condi t ions must  be the 10 

same.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The part ies must  be the same. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The services must  be the same.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The pr ice must  be the same.  There 

can be no adjustment to sui t  part icular condi t ions because 

then i t  is a new contract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And then the compet i t ive bidding 

which was the or ig in of  the f i rst  contract  becomes ani l i ty – 

becomes superf luous because there is a new set  of  terms of  

condi t ions which happened here Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So would i t  as you understand i t  would i t  
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amount to saying in the context  of  Free State and Gauteng in 

effect  would i t  amount to Gauteng saying to the party wi th  

whom i t  has a contract  you go to the Free State and provide 

the same services and then that  is what happens.   The 

addendum would effect ive ly say that .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   The steps would be the 

fol lowing Chai r.   There would be a compet i t ive bidding 

process in Gauteng.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I t  would produce a contract  wi th a 10 

party on certa in  terms and condi t ions including pr ice.  The 

nature of  the service is what is important  here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The pr ice is what is important  and the 

party that  was party to that  Gauteng cont ract  is also 

important .   What  happens then is wi th the permission of  the 

Head of  Department in the receiving ent i ty and the 

contractor agree that  Gauteng contract  stands i t  is  st i l l  in  

existence but  the Free State may part ic ipate in that  exist ing 

contract .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja not  a new cont ract .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Not  a new contract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l though the services inevi tably wi l l  

be in a di fferent  region.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And that  would requi re an addendum 

to the exist ing contract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So i t  is an exist ing cont ract  entered 

into by means of  a part ic i  – fa i r  b idding process compet i t ive 

bidding process wi th a part icular party under certa in terms 

and condi t ions of  the cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   None of  those requirements were met  10 

in th is case.  But  I  wi l l  deal  wi th i t  in detai ls.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The f i rst  po int  Chair  is that  d i fferent  

part ies were involved.   In Gauteng i t  was Blackhead 

Consul t ing PTY Ltd.   Somet imes i t  was descr ibed by another 

name but  for present  purposes we can accept  Blackhead 

Consul t ing PTY Ltd in Gauteng.    

 In the Free State i t  was a di fferent  party.   I t  was a 

jo int  venture between Blackhead Consul t ing and Diamond 

Hi l l  Investment.   That  was a rare ly be ent i ty to  which Mr 20 

Mpanbani  operated.  

 Now one may say that  th is  is  rea l ly a minor 

dist inct ion what is  the di fference between Blackhead and the 

jo int  venture.   But  the signi f icance is th is Chair.   Mr 

Mpanbani  accord ing to Mr Sodi  had no knowledge or  
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experience or capaci ty to deal  wi th asbestos eradicat ion.   He 

contr ibuted nothing to the cont ract  at  a l l  save to unlock the 

opportuni ty in the Free State through his contacts wi th  

off ic ia ls in the Free State.   For that  he got  50% of  the 

income.   

 Now anyone who fai r ly and responsible examined this  

contract  before signing i t  in the Free State would say,  wel l  

why must  we pay double the pr ice charged by Blackhead for  

doing al l  the work?  Wel l  they did not  do al l  the work and 

that  is part  of  the developing story Chai r  but  let  me not  10 

dist ract  you.   Why would we pay double the pr ice charged by 

Blackhead which is the ent i ty wi th the experience and 

capaci ty supposedly to a jo int  venture?  This does not  make 

sense in ord inary and legi t imate ci rcumstances.  

 So the part ic ipat ion contract  going to a jo int  venture 

is s ign i f icant  and i t  is more than just  a heading or a t i t le of  a 

party.  

 The second thing that  should be noted is  that  i t  is  

apparent  f rom the correspondence between the off ic ia ls who 

enabled th is part ic ipat ion process both on the Gauteng side 20 

and the Free State side but  what was t ransferred was not  a 

part icular cont ract  wi th Blackhead.   What was t ransferred 

was the panel  part ic ipat ion and the panel  –  the panel  

arrangement was t ransferred.   So in other words,  e i ther 50 

or 60 in the genera l  panel  arrangement or 8 cont ractors in 
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the asbestos removal  arrangement that  was t ransferred.  

 But  what resul ted on the Gauteng side and what was 

accepted was one contract  wi th one ent i ty the Joint  Venture.  

 So there is a huge quest ion mark – in fact  i t  is not  

even a quest ion mark – there is a huge problem and 

i rregular i ty in  relat ion to what was t ransferred f rom the one 

side and what emerged on the other side.  

 A panel  arrangement on the one side.   A part icular  

contract  wi th a part icular party on the other.   And that  

correspondence wi l l  be deal t  wi th  in the evidence to show 10 

that .  

 But  the other point  is that  the Gauteng cont ract  had 

expired.   Both the panel  cont ract  and the or ig ina l  – wel l  the 

or ig inal  panel  contract  the narrower panel  contract  part icu lar 

– part icular ly aimed at  the eradicat ion of  asbestos and any 

arrangements that  might  have exis ted wi th Blackhead they 

had al l  expi red.   So at  the t ime of  the part ic ipat ion there was 

nothing in existence to part ic ipate in and new contractual  

arrangements had to be made on the Free State s ide.  Of  

course,  the jo int  venture on the Free State s ide,  not  20 

Blackhead, and I  have explained that  Chai r,  was appointed 

not  as a part ic ipant  in a jo int . . .  in a panel  arrangement,  

which the off ic ia ls purported to al low part ic ipat ion in,  but  

was appointed in i ts own r ight  wi th i ts own pr ice.  

 I t  was now no longer R 650,00 per uni t  but  R 850,00 per  
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uni t .   Di fferent  pr ice,  di fferent  terms of  condi t ions,  d i fferent  

part ies,  no cont ract  on the other side.  

 On every count  i t  must  have been, and we wi l l  submi t  in  

due course,  apparent  to the off ic ia ls who were deal ing wi th 

th is process that  there was no lawfu l  just i f icat ion as 

part ic ipat ion and the relevant  Treasury Regulat ion for the 

contract  in the Free State.  

 What is important  is that  the part ic ipat ion process 

al lowed the cont ractual  arrangement to be entered into the 

Free State. . .  in  the Free State wi thout  any compet i t ive 10 

bidding process.  

 The fact  that  there was no compet i t ive bidding process 

and that  i t  was not  t ransparent ,  just  two of  the requirements 

of  the Const i tut ion,  Sect ion 217 means that  one could enter 

into a contract  that  is ent i re ly inf latable.  

 And i t  seems not  unreasonable Chair to draw the 

conclusion at  the end of  the ev idence,  which we wi l l  submit  

to you,  that  the part ic ipat ion process was real ly  qui te a 

clumsy sham to cloak the Free State Department contract  

wi th the jo int  venture wi th  veneer of  legal i ty and successful ly 20 

on examinat ion.  

 So in the event  Chai r,  what happened in the Free State 

was an ent i re ly new cont ract ,  an arrangement was entered 

into wi th a new party on new terms and condi t ions including 

a higher pr ice wi thout  any t ransparent  compet i t ive bidding 
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process having been entered into.  

 And as a resul t ,  the th i rd requi rement of  Sect ion 217,  an 

ent i re ly non-cost  effect ive arrangement was entered into.    

 Now several  state off ic ia ls part ic ipated in that  process 

Chai r.    The in i t ia ls of  some of  them appear in a document  

presented to the Commission by Mr Dukwana ent i t led “Cost  

of  Business”.  

 And against  in i t ia ls of  people whose in i t ia ls happened to 

coincide for the moment Chai r  because we have got  to go 

through the evident ia l  process,  wi th off ic ia ls involved in th is  10 

part ic ipat ion process,  where are sums of  money al legedly 

disbursed in whole or in part  to them.  

 That  “Cost  of  Business Schedule” has been the subject  

matter of  extensive invest igat ion and the evidence in re lat ion 

to that  wi l l  be presented to you in due course but  I  wi l l  deal  

wi th i t  in more detai l  later on.  

 And then i t  is perhaps important  to  emphasise because 

we are coming now to the part ic ipat ion of  Mr Mpambani in 

th is whole venture and project .  

 We emphasise that  the appointment of  the JV ent i t l ing 20 

Mr Mpambani and his  ent i ty  in the jo int  venture wi th 50% of  

the income of  the project ,  effect ively doubl ing i ts  pr ice to  

R 255 mi l l ion.  

 Al l . . .  he had no expert ise,  no capaci ty,  no abi l i ty to 

contr ibute to the work,  except  he had to unlock the 
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opportuni ty through engagement wi th Free State 

. . . [ indist inct ]  

 For that ,  he was. . .  he became ent i t led to hal f  of  

R 255 mi l l ion but  that  was the value of  his engagement and I  

wi l l  come to more of  that  in due course.  

 Then there was another process . . . [ indist inct ]  would say 

i t  can be Chai r.   The or ig ins of  the cont ract  that  was 

ul t imately entered into,  arguable had a di fferent  procurement 

source,  one equal ly def ic ient  in law, we might  add and we 

wi l l  make those submissions in due course,  and i t  happened 10 

as fo l lows and these were the facts of  s igni f icance.  

 On his own admission,  Mr Sodi  and his  ent i ty,  

Blackhead, made signi f icant  prof i ts in  Gauteng,  

R 100 mi l l ion.   And he,  therefore,  saw that  there was a 

simi lar opportuni ty in the Free State.  

 So Mr Sodi  and Mr Mpambani  meet at  a  funct ion in 

Welkom and they meet again later to discuss a possible 

Asbestos Pro ject  in the Free State.  

 The in i t iat ive,  therefore,  for th is project  does not  come 

from any ent i ty in  the Free State which is anxious to  protect  20 

the l ives and heal th of  i ts inhabi tants,  rather i t  comes f rom 

Mr Sodi  and Mr Mpambani.  

 By al l  accounts,  i t  appears that  Mr Mpambani was wel l -

connected and inf luent ia l  pol i t ical ly  in the Free State.   I t  is 

apparent  f rom the evidence of  Mr Sodi ,  and this wi l l  be put  
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to him when he comes on Fr iday,  that  Mr Mpambani  had no 

knowledge or exper ience of  the asbestos removal .  

 In Mr Sodi ’s own words and in the words of  the partner,  

h is task was to “unlock the opportuni ty”.   For th is he would 

get  a 50% share in the income of  the newly,  the formed 

venture,  what we referred to as the jo int  venture.  

 Mr Sodi  is expl ic i t .   I t  was his job to engage with  the 

off ic ia ls that  would al low this pro ject  to cont inue in order to  

ensure that  the contract  was granted to the jo int  venture.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  just  wonder. . .  I  know I  am interrupt ing 10 

you.   I  just  wonder what unlocking of  opportuni t ies there 

should be in the publ ic service wi th government work? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l ,  exact ly.   Wel l ,  we have a 

system in place.   I t  is c lear.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Where there is  a  need for work to be 

done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   There is an opportuni ty for al l  to 

part ic ipate.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Now one must. . .  the opportuni ty here 

was not  for a contract  to  be g iven general ly  to  contractors 

out  there for a fa i r  b idding process.   The opportuni ty  was for  

the jo int  venture to do the work.   That  was the opportuni ty  
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that  had to be unlocked.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m-h’m-h’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What had to be achieved through 

engagements wi th  the off ic ia ls was a part icular cont ract  wi th 

a part icular party.   For that ,  the idea was,  at  least  in the 

beginning,  that  Mr Mpambani and his ent i ty  would get  

R 127 mi l l ion for unlocking.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  is al l .   That  is al l  he could do 

but  he could do i t  and that  is al l  d id do and he did do.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  guess there may be an argument 

that  says i t  is not  very di fferent  f rom the Commission,  not  for 

doing work but  for  unlocking because you do not  do any work 

at  a l l .    

 You speak to the relevant  people and then a contract  

gets achieved.   And then I  guess you say to Blackhead:  “ I  

am responsible for get t ing this.   You can. . .  you wi l l  do the 

work.   Maybe you would not  have got ten the work wi thout  

me”.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes,  one can label  i t  in var ious ways 20 

Chair  but  what happens here is that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   A fac i l i tat ion fee.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   [ laughs]  Or “Cost  of  Business” is the 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   [ laughs]  Or “Cost  of  Business”.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   Or “Business Development”.   

We have heard the term throughout .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  development ,  “Business Development 

Fees”.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   But  i f  one takes away the label  

and looks at  what  happened, two persons wi th an interest  in 

state cont ract  get  together.    

 The one says,  “ I  wi l l  do the work or I  wi l l  ensure the 

work is done and there is more to come on that  score.   For  

that ,  I  wi l l  get  my R 127 mi l l ion.    10 

 Al l  you do is,  you go and speak to certain off ic ia ls  to  

make sure I  get  the cont ract  but  please make sure I  get  the 

contract .    

 I  do not  want any nonsense with compet i t ion and an 

open bidding because I  am going to charge a lot  of  money.   

But  that  is  al l  you have to do.   Go and speak.   And for that  

you can get  have R 125 mi l l ion,  round i t  o ff  to R 127 mi l l ion 

commission”.  

 I t  is the facts that  reveal . . .  the task of  Mr Mpambani was 

not  s imple to do what was lawfu l  and proper by the way of 20 

“Business Development”.    

 I t  was to ensure that  the procurement process was so 

arranged, and one could go to  so far  as to  say manipulated,  

to ensure that  the cont ract  at  that  pr ice was obtained wi thout  

a compet i t ive bidd ing process by the jo int  venture.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And of  course,  i t  seems qui te logical  that  

in that  k ind of  scenario the party  that  has the abi l i ty,  the 

ski l ls,  expert ise to do the work,  wi l l  not  do this work,  wi l l  not  

accept  th is contract  i f  what  i t  wi l l  get  in terms of  the fee or  

the pr ice,  would be lower than what i t  would be ent i t led to 

general ly for do ing that  k ind of  work and that  amount of 

work.  

 Therefore,  i f  what  that  party got . . .  i f  one looks at  what  

that  party got ,  one is l ikely to say that  can be lower or much 

lower than what i t  would normal ly be ent i t led to.  10 

 Therefore,  to the extent  that  the pr ice for the whole job 

included the other  party ’s 50%, then the whole pr ice must  be 

highly inf lated in  order to make sure that  there is th is 50% 

for the other party.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Precisely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i f  I  normal ly do this  job for  

R 1000,00 I  am not  going to agree to do this job for R 500,00 

just  because you must get  the 50%. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the pr ice wi l l  have to be inf lated 20 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . to R 2000,00 or  whatever.   So I  s t i l l  get ,  

at  least ,  what I  would normal ly get  i f  not  more.   So but  then 

you get  your  own but  in  the process the one who pays,  pays 
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an exorbi tant  amount.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   Chair,  that  is exact ly r ight .   

That  analyses is exact ly what happened here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What is interest ing is the corol lary to 

that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The person invest igat ing the value 

for money in that  cont ract  before signing on behal f  of  the 

department would look at  i t  and say,  “But  you are doing al l  10 

the work for R 1000,00.   Why must  we pay taxpayers money 

for “Business Development” and unlocking opportuni t ies for 

your JV partner?”  

 I t  does not  make sense.   And so that  is a lso 

. . . [ indist inct ]  but  of  course,  the person who is examining the 

contract ,  arguable were the persons unlocked.   But  we wi l l  

come to that  dur ing the course of  the . . . [ indist inct ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Subsequent to the engagement 

between Messrs Sodi  and Mpambani  Chai r,  they did make an 20 

approach for Mr Mpambani  for his  R 127 mi l l ion commission 

or “Business Development Fee”,  went to see the HOD of  

Human Sett lements in the Free State and they said,  “Give us 

a proposal” .   A lr ight .  

 An unsol ic i ted proposal  was prepared and presented and 
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i t  resul ted in  a Serv ice Level  Agreement being entered into.   

Now this Service Level  Agreement,  as you wi l l  learn in due 

course,  was def ic ient  in a number of  respects.  

 I t  d id not  contain any informat ion as to the overa l l  pr ice.   

That  is the pr ice per uni t .   So there was no ment ion of  

R 255 mi l l ion in the service.  

 I t  had a di fferent  pr ice per un i t  to  what happened out  

there.   I t  had a number of  provisions regarding an inter im 

what had to be done to earn the payment,  which apparent ly,  

were ignored in the execut ion of  the contract .  10 

 But  what is interest ing about th is.   There was no budget 

for  th is project .   One must  recal l ,  th is in i t iat ive did not  come 

from the Free State department.   I t  came f rom Messrs Sodi  

and Mpambani.  

 They went and sa id,  “Look,  let  us do this work and enter  

into an SLA”.   So the money had to be found somewhere.   So 

what the SLA, the Service Level  Agreement said,  qui te oddly,  

is that  the jo int  venture would see to the funding of  the 

project .   Now that  is an ext raordinary clause.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is very st range.   I  saw that  and I  20 

wondered what i t  meant.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   Wel l ,  c lear ly i t  cannot have 

meant Chai r  that  the jo int  venture would pay for the project  

i tsel f .   I t  was not ,  as wi l l  be apparent  and has been apparent  

in the Gauteng in the business of  char i table work.  
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 And clear ly,  i t  was not  i ts intent ion to go out  and as i t  

were a crowd fund,  the project ,  by way of  publ ic donat ion.   

What i t  meant,  c lear ly,  in the context  Chai r  was that  the jo int  

venture and in part icular Mr Mpambani would cont inue to  

complete the unlocking of  the al ternat ive process by 

ensuring that  suff ic ient  budget re-arrangements were made 

to a l low the Free State to pay for the project .  

 In other words,  there had to be some “environment”,  i t  is  

the word that  is used,  or any other arrangement,  a 

real locat ion of  pr ior i t ies for another  arrangement to make 10 

sure that  the budgetary provisions were changed or  al tered 

in such a way as to al low the Free State to fund the project .  

 So al l  th is unlocking of  the opportuni ty was happening 

wi thout  a budget provision.   What happened was that  matters 

were so arranged that  the budget was. . .  became avai lable 

and that  is where Mr Zulu wi l l  test i fy.  

 What ul t imate ly happened, of  course,  is that  the funding 

came via the nat ional  department f rom another province and 

that  was done af ter the approach,  not  before the approach.  

 But  once again important ly,  for the conclusion of  the 20 

Service Level  Agreement,  no compet i t ive bidd ing process 

was entered into.  

 Now where one has an unsol ic i ted bidd ing process 

Chai r,  there is a requirement in order to safeguard the f iscus 

that  al l  the arrangements inherent  in the unsol ic i ted bidding 



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 29 of 141 
 

process must  be publ ished by a request  for a quotat ion.  

 So that  is where t ransparency comes in so that  there is  

publ icat ion and any b idder,  any organisat ion can say,  “Oh, 

the jo int  venture is going to do this  work for R 255 mi l l ion.   I  

can do i t  for R 50 mi l l ion.   I  want  to put  in a compet ing bid”.  

 There was no t ransparency.   No request  for quotat ions 

was issued in th is  case.   I t  was ent i re ly secret ive.    

 So there was no abi l i ty for the department to test  the 

market ,  assuming,  as we must when we start  Chai r,  that  al l  

the off ic ia ls in the Free State were act ing in good fai th and 10 

properly.  

 They would receive this proposal .   They would look at  i t .   

They would see that  they were paying hal f  of  R 255 mi l l ion 

for the “Commission Business Development”,  whatever  you 

want to cal l  i t  sonical ly.  

 Or in Mr Sodi ’s own words “unlocking the opportuni ty  

and engaging the off ic ia ls who faci l i tate the project” .   They 

would say,  “But  why are we paying for that?  That  is your  

costs.   That  must  come out  of  your amount”.  

 But  they would say,  “Look,  we are not  experts in  th is.   20 

Let  us test  the market .   Let  us see whether your pr ice can 

stand open and fai r  compet i t ion as required by the 

Const i tut ion.   Transparent ,  fa i r,  equi table,  cost-effect ive,  

says Sect ion 217 of  the Const i tut ion.  “  

 They did not  do that .   No request  for  qual i f icat ion was 
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entered into at  al l  and that  should have been done in terms 

of  Treasury Regulat ions and Pract ice Note.  

 Nor was there any due di l igence exerc ise conducted in 

respect  of  the jo int  venture.   Had that  been done, the 

contract  would have been examined and i t  would have been 

discovered that  a t  least  hal f  the jo int  venture at  that  stage 

had no qual i f icat ions to do any of  the work.  

 But  in any event ,  i f  one goes. . .  that  is the factual  

posi t ion Chai r.   I f  one goes to the law,  none or very few of  

the requi rements for the considerat ion of  an unsol ic i ted bid 10 

were met.   In  o rder  fo r  an  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  tha t  does 

not  go  to  an  open b idd ing  and tender  p rocess to  even be  

cons idered cer ta in  p re requ is i tes  are  la id  down by Treasury.    

There  must  have been a  comprehens ive  and 

re levant  p ro jec t  feas ib i l i t y  s tudy to  es tab l i sh  a  c lear  case.  

The product  o r  serv i ce  must  invo lve  and innovat ive  des ign .   

No innovat ive  des ign  here ,  you had e igh t  cont rac tors  in  the  

Free S ta te  and the  exper t  w i l l  te l l  you  tha t  there  a re  many  

tha t  can do what  was done.    

I t  must  invo lve  and innovat ive  approach to  p ro jec t  20 

deve lopment  and  management ,  no  ev idence o f  tha t  and i t  

must  p resent  a  new and cost -e f f ec t i ve  method o f  serv ice 

de l i very.    

C lear ly,  as  the  fac ts  w i l l  show here ,  none o f  those 

prov is ions were  here  and so  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  no t  to  d raw the  
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conc lus ion  in  th is  case tha t  inso far  as  th is  cont rac t  was  

sought  to  be  j us t i f ied  by  re ference to  the  unso l i c i ted  b id  

p rocess th is  was  aga in  near ly  a  sham to  c loak an  ent i re l y  

improper  and i r regu la r  p rocu rement  p rocess.  

 Cha i r,  le t  me dea l  b r ie f l y  w i th  the  budget  i ssue.   I  

have s ta ted  tha t  there  was no prov i s ion  in  the  prov inc ia l  

budget  a t  the  t ime the  cont rac t  was entered in to  fo r  the  

R255 mi l l ion  cos t  o f  the  pro jec t .   To  ca ter  fo r  the  non-

ex i s tence in  the  budget  o f  a  budgetary  prov is ion  fo r  th is  

p ro jec t ,  fo r  th is  R255 mi l l ion ,  tha t  c lause tha t  I  re fe r red  to  10 

ear l ie r,  was put  in to  the  cont rac t  bu t  the  costs  –  the  jo in t  

venture  takes a l l  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  dea l ing  w i th  the  costs  o f  

the  pro jec t .    

 So  you have he re  a  depar tment  en ter ing  in to  a  

cont rac t  w i th  a  cont rac tor  who says do  not  wor ry,  

depar tment ,  I  w i l l  see  to  the  costs  and tha t  had to  be  

ach ieved and tha t  was ach ieved …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wonder  -  when I  was look ing  a t  tha t  in  

the  ag reement ,  I  wondered to  what  ex ten t  –  I  mean,  the  

impress ion  I  go t ,  I  do  no t  know about  you,  when I  saw i t ,  i t  20 

was l i ke  the  depar tment  was no t  go ing  to  have  to  pay 

anyth ing  and tha t ,  o f  course ,  tha t  sounds s t range but  tha t  

i s  my f i rs t  impress ion  o f  what  i t  meant  bu t  you say tha t  i t  

was unders tood by  those concerned tha t  the  jo in t  venture  

wou ld  see what  i t  needed to  do  to  make sure  tha t  the  
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depar tment  had the  budget .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    There  can  be no o ther  exp lanat ion  

fo r  those fac ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Because the  serv ice  leve l  

agreement  i s  now entered in to .   The jo in t  venture  does not  

say  do  not  wor ry  about  the  costs  we are  go ing  to  pay  

every th ing ,  i t  says  we a re  go ing  to  charge R850 per  un i t  

bu t  we w i l l  f ind  the  money to  pay us .   Not  tha t  we do i t  fo r  

f ree  or  tha t  we w i l l  ra ise  the  money but  no t  charge.    10 

And the  on ly  reasonab le  exp lanat ion  fo r  tha t  c lause 

was tha t  the  money d id  no t  ex is t  in  the  budget  and  

budgeta ry  prov i s ion  had to  be  made because tha t  i s  what  

happened because what  happened  then,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  Mr  

Mokhes i  and Mr  Zu lu  were  engaged and a  p rocess was  

then car r ied  ou t  whereby the  budgetary  –  the  absence o f  a  

budgeta ry  prov i s ion  was cu red by  the  rec t i f i ca t ion  o f  the 

budgeta ry  p rov is ions to  a l low payment  o f  R250 000 .    

 So there  can be  l i t t le  doubt  tha t  what  the  par t ies  

meant  when they  sa id  you w i l l  see  to  the  prov is ion  o f  the  20 

funds was tha t  you wou ld  un lock  any obstac le  tha t  ex is ted  

in to  the  budget .    

I t  was a t  a l l  t imes to  contempla ted  tha t  the  jo in t  

venture  wou ld  rece ive  income fo r  the  pro jec t .   And i t  sa id  

so  in  the  SLA.   I t  sa id  in  the  SLA you w i l l  be  pa id  and you 
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w i l l  be  pa id  on  p resenta t ion  o f  an  invo ice  and you  w i l l  be 

pa id  R850 pe r  un i t  bu t  where  the  funds comes f rom,  i t  i s  

your  p rob lem and tha t  p rob lem,  on  the  probab i l i t ies ,  can 

on ly  have been f ind ing  the  money f rom o f f i c ia l  sources 

wh ich  was ac tua l l y  then car r ied  ou t .   So what  happened,  

g ives  an  ind ica t i on ,  look ing  back  on  the  cont rac tors  what  

tha t  cont rac t  meant .  

 What  had to  be  done,  o f  course ,  was tha t  the  

prov inc ia l  depar tment  then had  to p resent  a  rev ised  

bus iness p lan .   So Mr  Mokhes i  says we need money  in  the  10 

budget  and he speaks to  the  D i rec tor  Genera l  Nat iona l ,  Mr  

Zu lu ,  and they  then –  and  th is  i s  a l l  on  the  

cor respondence,  Cha i r,  they  –  and we got  i t  in  the 

invest iga tor ’s  repor t ,  Mr  Zu lu  says  bu t  you must  g i ve  me a  

new budget  p lan  and a  new prov inc ia l  bus iness p lan  

because the  prov ince has a  bus iness p lan  fo r  the  

expend i tu re  o f  i t s  money,  i t  now needs a  new bus iness p lan  

to  jus t i f y  the  in t roduct ion  o f  R255  mi l l ion  fo r  the  asbestos  

pro jec t .   There  was no in ten t ion  to  do  i t  o r ig ina l l y  in  the 

budget ,  now there  is  fo r  a  par t i cu la r  p ro jec t ,  the  bus iness  20 

p lan  must  re f lec t  tha t  p ro jec t .    

So a  bus iness p lan  was prepared  and presented to  

na t iona l  and tha t  un locked the  funds.   But  what  i s  

impor tan t ,  in  fa i rness to  Mr  Zu lu ,  a  g ross  m isrep resenta t ion  

was made to  h im in  the  bus iness p lan .   You w i l l  reca l l ,  
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Cha i r,  tha t  there  were  two phases to  the  asbestos  

erad ica t ion  pro jec t .    

F i r s t l y,  inspect ion  o f  houses,  and the  assessment  to  

show tha t  in  the  Free S ta te  there  a re  36  000 houses  

approx imate l y  tha t  conta ined asbestos  tha t  must  be  

removed.   That  i s  the  pro jec t  tha t  was the  sub jec t  o f  the  

charge o f  R255  mi l l ion .   I t  was ent i re l y  an  aud i t  and  

assessment  p ro jec t .   Once tha t  has been done,  o f  course ,  

a l l  tha t  in fo rmat ion  and in  th i s  case the  exper t  w i l l  te l l  you  

i t  was insu f f i c ien t  in fo rmat ion ,  bu t  a l l  tha t  in fo rmat ion  is  10 

used by  a  cer t i f ied  asbestos  remover,  a  jo in t  venture  

B lackhead was not  cer t i f ied ,  to  take  tha t  asbestos  ou t  o f  

the  house,  rep lace the  roo f ,  i f  i t  i s  an  asbestos  roo f ,  take  i t  

to  an  o f f i c ia l  dumping s i te  and d ispose o f  i t  in  a manner  

wh ich  does not  cause a  p rob lem to  the  hea l th  o f  the 

communi ty.   That  i s  the  erad ica t ion  phase.   So you have  

the  assessment  phase and the  e rad ica t ion  phase.  

What  Mr  Zu lu  was to ld  in  the  rev i sed bus iness p lan  

is  tha t  the  we igh t  w i l l  be  to  conduct  door  to  door  

assessment  a t  R850 pe r  house exc lud ing  VAT,  a l l  asbestos  20 

w i l l  be  removed  and d i sposed o f  as  la id  ou t  in  the  

Occupat iona l  Hea l th  and Safe t y  Act  and Regu la t ions o f  

1993 and tha t  i s  fo l lowed by  the  fo l low ing:  

The above un i t  ra te ,  R850 in  the  rev ised bus iness 

p lan ,  inc ludes the  fo l low ing.   Submi t t ing  a  works  p lan ,  
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no t i f y ing  the  Depar tment  o f  Labour  o f  our  in ten t ion  to  

remove and d ispose contaminat ion ,  rubb le  asbestos ,  

cont rac t  fo r  the  serv ices  o f  an  approved inspect ion  

au thor i t y  fo r  purposes o f  a i r  mon i to r ing ,  supp ly  

exper ienced med ica l l y  f i t  s ta f f  and superv is ion  fo r  the  

purposes o f  remova l ,  the  supp ly  o f  a l l  sa fe ty  equ ipment  

and re levant  PPE,  cordon o f f  the  area to  be  s t r ipped and 

rep lace re levant  s ignage.   So when you go to  the  house  

you are  dest roy ing  asbestos ,  the  f ib res  are  then a i rborne 

and you have got  to  take  s t r ingent  s ta tu tor i l y  cont ro l led  10 

precaut ions to  p ro tec t  the  communi ty  w i th in  in  wh ich  th is  

ac t i v i t y  i s  tak ing  p lace.   Transpor t  o f  the  asbestos  to  a  

reg i s te red d i sposa l  s i te ,  d isposa l  cos t  o f  the  asbes tos ,  a l l  

re levant  paperwork  per ta in ing  to  hea l th  and  sa fe ty 

leg is la t ion .   

So what  Mr  Zu lu  was to ld ,  a t  the  ra te  o f  R850 pe r  

un i t  no t  on ly  wou ld  the  assessment  take  p lace but  the  

remova l  and d i sposa l  wou ld  take  p lace.   A gross  

m isrepresenta t ion  because ne i ther  Mr  Mokhes i  in  the  

depar tment  nor  any representa t i ve  o f  the  jo in t  venture  20 

remote ly  contempla ted  the  remova l  and d i sposab le  

asbestos  as  be ing  inc luded in  the  un i t  cos t  o f  R850 ,  i t  was 

comple te  m isrepresenta t ion .    

I f  I  may jus t  then dea l  w i th  cer ta in  c lauses in  the  

serv i ce  leve l  agreement .   The se rv ice  leve l  agreement  i s  
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a lso ,  as  I  have sa id ,  spa rse  and confus ing  as  to  what  work  

was cont rac ted  fo r  bu t  i t  appeared tha t  a l though the  p r ice  

o f  R850 was fo r  the  assessment  and aud i t  par t  o f  the  

who le  p ro jec t  i t  seems tha t  the  serv i ce  leve l  agreement  

appo in ted  the  jo in t  venture ,  ac tua l l y  appo in ted  the  jo in t  

venture  to  do  the  remova l  as  we l l .    

I  am not  go ing  to  go  th rough the  par t i cu la r  onerous  

prov is ions o f  the  SLA wh ich  were  d is regarded  in  the 

execut ion  o f  the  cont rac t  bu t  every  c la im fo r  payment  had  

to  be  accompanied by  a  repor t  and  had to  be  accompanied 10 

by  a  de ta i led  ve r i f i ca t ion  o f  the  reason why the  amounts  

were  par t i cu la r l y  charged.   I t  does  not  seem tha t  tha t  was 

done a t  a l l .  

The p ro jec t  fo r  wh ich  the  jo in t  ventu re  was 

appo in ted  was desc r ibed in  the  SLA as the  appo in tment  o f  

the  serv i ce  prov ider  to  assess,  aud i t  houses roo fed  us ing  

asbestos  mater ia l ,  hand l ing  and d isposa l  o f  asbestos  

sheets  to  an  approved des ignated d isposa l  s i te ,  phase one 

and phase two.   That  was the  appo in tment .   Qu i te  improper  

to  appo in t  JV  fo r  e i ther  fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r ly  and espec ia l l y  20 

fo r  the  la t te r  task .   That  requ i res  accred i ta t ion ,  s ta tu tory  

accred i ta t ion  and  the  exper t  w i l l  te l l  you  about  tha t  in  due 

course .  

Cha i r,  what  i s  a lso  impor tan t  i s  the  lack  o f  a t ten t ion  

g iven to  de ta i l .   One is  no t  s imp ly  buy ing  pen and paper  fo r  
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a  s ta t ionery  depar tment  w i th in  a  government  depar tment ,  

one is  dea l ing  he re  w i th  l i fe ,  the  l ive l ihood and the  hea l th  

o f  inhab i tan ts  o f  dangerous mater ia ls  in  houses,  l i fe  

th rea ten ing  a t  the  re levant  houses.   I f  one looks  a t  the  

desc r ip t ion  o f  the  pro jec t ,  i t  i s  a l l  about  roo fs  bu t  the  

exper t  w i l l  te l l  you  tha t  asbestos  i n  these houses may ex i s t  

in  water  p ipes,  i t  may ex is t  in  fasc ia  boards,  i t  may ex i s t  in  

ce i l ing  boards,  i t  i s  no t  enough to  look ,  as  happened he re ,  

a t  a  desktop  image,  Goog le  Maps ,  fo r  example ,  o f  houses  

and say tha t  i s  an  asbestos  house,  we had bet te r  go  and 10 

look because i t s  roo f  i s  made o f  asbestos ,  i t  i s  en t i re l y  

super f i c i a l  and unpro fess iona l  approach to  the  prob lem but  

tha t  w i l l  come out  in  the  de ta i l ,  Cha i r.  

As  a  resu l t  o f  the  SLA an ins t ruc t ion  to  per fo rm  

work  was issued  wh ich  sa id  what  amounts  mak ing  up the  

R255 mi l l ion  wou ld  be  pa id  a t  what  s tage and here  is  

another  in te res t ing  fac t ,  Cha i r,  there  was a  prepayment  o f  

R51 mi l l ion  and you w i l l  learn  tha t  the  cost  o f  the  who le  

pro jec t  wou ld  no t  have exceeded  in  the  amount  in  the  

reg ion  o f  51  m i l l ion .   So upf ron t ,  be fore  any work  i s  done,  20 

a l l  the  costs  o f  the  p ro jec t  a re  seen by  way o f  p repayment  

bu t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  more  de ta i l  in  due course .  

Then,  Cha i r,  subcont rac ts ,  the  in t r igue in  re la t ion  to  

th is  jo in t  ventu re  pro jec t  does not  s top  there  because what  

the  jo in t  venture  does,  i t  appo in ts  a  subcont rac tor,  
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MasterTrade.   To  do ,  sub jec t  to  a  m inor  qua l i f i ca t ion  –  and 

I  s t ress  m inor  qua l i f i ca t ion ,  to  do  a l l  the  work ,  the  JV  says  

to  MasterTrade -  and Maste rTrade w i l l  come and  ta lk  to  

you here  –  the  JV says to  Maste rTrade,  here  is  what  we 

have to  do ,  you do i t  and we w i l l  pay  you R54 mi l l ion .   A l l  

the  work ,  Cha i r,  bar  a  m ino r  qua l i f i ca t ion .   

Now i t  i s  one th ing  fo r  a  cont rac to r  to  go  to  a  

government  depar tment  and  w i thout  qua l i f y ing  or  

m in im is ing  what  happened in  th is  case on the  pa r t  o f  the 

cont rac tors ,  you  have a  person  in  the  depar tment  who  10 

a l lows th is  to  happen w i thout  p roper ly  i n te r roga t ing  a 

compet i t i ve  b id ,  a  rang ing  th ing  so  tha t  there  need be no 

compet i t i ve  b id ,  w i thout  in te r rogat ing  the  costs  in  any way,  

to  a l low a  R255 mi l l ion  cont rac t  to  be  done a t  R55  mi l l ion .    

Now the  ev idence  w i l l  be ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i t  was done a t  

fa r  less  than 54 mi l l ion ,  so  even tha t  R54 mi l l ion  was an 

in f la ted  pr ice .   On the  ev idence o f  MasterTrade the  pro f i t  

made by  them was 19 mi l l ion .    

In  any event ,  the  SLA or  se rv i ce  leve l  agreement  

and the  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  wh ich  preceded the  SLA made  20 

no ment ion  o f  the  fac t  tha t  v i r tua l l y  a l l  –  in  fac t  a l l  o f  the 

work  to  be  done on the  pro jec t  wou ld  be  done by  an  

appo in ted  subcont rac tor.   And a t  what  p r ice?  Of  course  

tha t  was not  ment ioned.  

The t ru th  i s ,  tha t  they d id  the  work ,  the  
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subcont rac to rs  d id  the  work  a t  a  f rac t ion  o f  the  to ta l  cos t .   

In  fac t ,  what  MasterTrade d id ,  was i t  subcont rac ted  once 

more  to  another  en t i t y,  ORI ,  and ORI  d id  a l l  the  work  fo r  

R21 mi l l ion .  

Cha i r,  pe rhaps before  I  go  in to  the  de ta i l  wou ld  th is  

be  a  conven ien t  t ime?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  le t  us  take  the  tea  

ad journment .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue,  Mr  Pre tor ius?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you,  be fo re  we ad journed,  you were  

mak ing  the  po in t  tha t  B lackhead or  the  jo in t  venture  

subcont rac ted  the  work  to  Maste rTrade and MasterTrade 

subcont rac ted  the  work  to  anothe r  company.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  la t te r  company d id  most  i f  

no t  a l l  o f  the  work  on  i t s  ve rs ion  a t  a  fee  o f  R21 mi l l ion  on  20 

the  vers ion  o f  MasterTrade fo r  a  consu l t ing  fee  o f  R5 

mi l l ion  w i th  MasterTrade pay ing  the  expenses.   But ,  Cha i r,  

I  w i l l  –  perhaps i t  i s  appropr ia te  to  dea l  w i th  i t  now.    

 The deta i l s  o f  the  subcont rac t ing  ar rangements  and  

the  pr ices  a t tached to  these are  a  mat te r  o f  in tense d ispute  
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be tween a l l  invo lved so  the  jo in t  venture  i s  su ing  the  

depar tment  fo r  30  m i l l ion  unpa id .   B lackhead is  su ing  the  

es ta te  o f  the  deceased par tner  in  the  jo in t  venture .    

 One subcont rac to r  i s  su ing  the  ma in  subcont rac to r.   

So there  is  a  f lu r ry  o f  l i t i ga t ion  be tween a l l  these par t ies ,  

each a l leg ing  someth ing  e lse  bu t  what  i s  man i fes t  in  a l l  

th is  i s  tha t  there  i s  no  leg i t imate  o r  reasonab le  compar i son 

between the  cost  o f  the  work  ac tua l l y  done in  the  reg ion  o f  

R50 mi l l ion ,  p robab ly  much less  w i th  i t s  bu i l t - in  p ro f i t  and 

the  R255 mi l l ion  grant .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  the  po in t  fo r  p resent  

purposes.   The deta i l s  we have,  the  var ious vers ions we  

have,  they are  a l l  in  the  invest iga tor ’s  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  because the  e f fec t  o f  a l l  o f  th is  must  

be  tha t  the  en t i t y  tha t  d id  a l l  the  work ,  i f  i t  cou ld  do  the  

work  o r  the  pr ice  tha t  i t  charged i t  must  mean  tha t  a  

reasonab le  pr ice  fo r  the  work  cannot  be  too  –  much  h igher  

than more  o r  less  what  the  en t i t y  charges.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   The f ina l  subcont rac to r  in  the  20 

l ine  b id  to  do  the  work  a t  R21 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And on i t s  vers ion  made a 

substant ia l  p ro f i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    On tha t  score  and has not  been 

pa id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  tha t  de ta i l  w i l l  come ou t  in  the  

wash,  as  i t  were .   But  what  i t  does show is  tha t  the  va lue  

o f  compet i t i ve  b idd ing  because any one o f  these ent i t ies  

cou ld  have b id  in  i t s  own r igh t  fo r  the  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I f  the  con t rac t  had been p roper ly  

adver t i sed and  proper l y  opened to  a  compet i t i ve  10 

t ransparent  b idd ing  process.    

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  guess u l t imate ly  one  o f  the 

quest ions o r  the  government  –  re levant  government  

o f f i c ia ls  i s  on  what  bas i s  d id  t hey be l ieve  tha t  the  p r ice  

tha t  they agreed to  pay was reasonab le  when there  were ,  

as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t ,  en t i t ies  who  cou ld  do  the  job  fo r  fa r  

lower.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms o f  the  pr ice .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  the  purpose o f  a  20 

proper  b idd ing  p rocess,  a  t ransparent  b idd ing  process so  

tha t  a l l  par t ies  who can do the  work  and w ish  to  do  the 

work  can put  in  the i r  b ids  on  a  fa i r  compet i t i ve  t ransparent  

bas is  and have those fa i r l y  and  proper ly  assessed.   Of 

course ,  in  o rder  to  jus t i f y  a  cont rac t  fo r  th is  work  a t  R255 
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m i l l i on  one cou ld  no t  have a  fa i r  compet i t i ve  b idd ing  

process.   I t  had to  be  avo ided a t  a l l  cos ts  and was  

successfu l l y  avo ided in  th is  case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And,  o f  course ,  i f  i t  i s  shown tha t  the  job  

cou ld  have been  done a t  R50 m i l l ion ,  R40 mi l l ion ,  R20 

someth ing  m i l l ion  bu t  the  depar tment  pa id  over  200  mi l l ion  

then i f  tha t  i s  shown then the re  must  be  a  way o f  ge t t ing 

back f rom the  peop le  who d id  no t  do  the i r  job  or  who 

dec ided to  conduct  themse lves in  a  cer ta in  way  to  the 

pre jud ice  o f  the  taxpayers .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  ge t  as  much f rom them as poss ib le .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Exact ly.   You w i l l  see  fu r the r  on  in  

the  nar ra t i ve  tha t  the  mat te r  was invest iga ted  by  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor,  the  cu r ren t  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  and a  repor t  –  I  w i l l  

summar ise  the  main  f ind ings in  t he  repor t  and is  in  fac t  

be ing  invest iga ted  by  law enforcement  agenc ies  a t  the  

moment .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r,  so  to  summar ise  in  re la t ion  20 

to  the  subcont rac tors  the  jo in t  ven ture ,  o r  50% of  the  jo in t  

venture  because the  o the r  50% is  busy un lock ing  

oppor tun i ty,  the  50% of  the  jo in t  venture  ar ranges fo r  

subcont rac to r  one,  MasterTrade.   MasterTrade ’s  quote  fo r  

a l l  the  work  are  a  smal l  and not  monetar i l y  s ign i f i can t  par t  
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o f  the  work ,  R44  mi l l ion .   Maste rTrade then says to  ORI ,  

you do the  work ,  I  w i l l  keep an eye  on you,  21  m i l l ion .    

The expenses,  accord ing  to  ORI ,  fo r  the  work  and 

the  cont rac t  o f  the  second subcont rac tor,  approx imate  R9  

mi l l ion ,  so  these deta i l s  a re  impor tan t  bu t  i t  i s  a l l  re la t i ve  

because th is  i s  a  squabb le  in  a  conf ined space,  as  i t  were ,  

whethe r  i t  i s  5 ,  21  or  44  m i l l ion .   The t ru th  is  tha t  a l l  those  

f igures  pa le  in  compar ison to  the  overa l l  p r i ce  o f  R255  

mi l l ion  and i t  i s  no t  I  th ink  the  task  o f  th is  Commiss ion ,  

Cha i r,  to  work  ou t  wh ich  o f  the  subcont rac tors  in  the i r  10 

var ious d isputes  is  cor rec t ,  the  po in t  i s  c lear,  in  re la t ion  to  

the  ove ra l l  cos t  to  the  f i scus o f  th is  p ro jec t ,  and the  exper t  

w i l l  te l l  you  a  l i t t le  more  about  the  qua l i t y  o f  the  product  

fo r  R255 mi l l ion  was pa id  and you w i l l  hear  in  a  moment ,  

Cha i r,  about  where  some o f  th is  money was d i sbursed.  

Cha i r  because the  exper t  w i l l  dea l  w i th  some more  

deta i l  in  re la t ion  to  what  was done in  re la t ion  to  th is  

cont rac t ,  we have a l ready to ld  you tha t  the  serv i ce  leve l  

agreement  was sparse  and unpro fess iona l ,  qu i te  f rank ly.   

But  accord ing  to  the  Ch ie f  Eng ineer  o f  the  depar tment ,  Mr  20 

Makepe,  h is  idea  o f  what  wou ld  be  done,  no t  conta ined in  

the  se rv i ce  leve l  agreement ,  was tha t  the  houses  

conta in ing  asbestos  wou ld  be  aud i ted  –  in  o ther  words,  the  

number  o f  houses conta in ing  asbestos  wou ld  be  aud i ted  

and the re  wou ld  be  an assessment  accompany ing  tha t  in  
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re la t ion  to  de ta i l  tha t  the  exper t  w i l l  exp la in .    

Those houses wou ld  be  labe l led  or  ident i f ied  w i th  

geo-  pos i t ion ing ,  GPS ident i f i ca t ion ,  there  wou ld  be  some 

deta i l s  p rov ided regard ing  the  s t ruc tu ra l  in tegr i t y  o f  the 

houses.  Does not  seem tha t  tha t  was done.   In  o ther  

words,  i f  the  house is  about  to  co l lapse then the  who le  

house shou ld  be  s imp ly  be  demol ished and rebu i l t  and a l so  

remov ing  asbestos  in  a  house wh ich  was not  s t ruc tu ra l l y  

sound has i t s  own dangers  and a l l  tha t  in fo rmat ion  wou ld  

be  co l la ted  in  a  repor t  and p rov ided to  the  pro jec t  10 

management  un i t  so  tha t  they cou ld  go  take  the  nex t  s tep .  

Now,  Cha i r,  the  way th is  i s  done o f  cou rse  is  tha t  s i t  

a t  a  desktop  computer  and you look a t  aer ia l  maps o f  the  

reg ion  and you say tha t  looks l i ke  and asbestos  roo f .   You 

then t ra in  peop le  f rom the  communi ty  to  take  a  lap top  –  or  

no t  a  lap top ,  a  dev i ce ,  to  the  house and take a  photograph 

o f  tha t  house and a l l  tha t  in fo rmat ion  then is  co l la ted  and 

put  in to  a  repor t .  

Ma in ly  there  wou ld  be  a  p ic tu re  o f  the  roo f  taken  

because remember,  the  SLA,  Cha i r,  ta lked about  roo fs  o f  20 

houses,  no t  water  p ipes or  p ressure  boards or  anyth ing  l i ke  

tha t  and tha t  da ta  i s  then used to  p roduce repor ts .   

Not iona l l y,  tha t  da te  then a l lows the  second phase  o f  the 

pro jec t  to  take  p lace a t  a  la te r  s tage wh ich  the  bus iness  

p lan  and the  SLA appo in ted  Mas terTrade to  do .   But  the 
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exper t  w i l l  te l l  you  th is  has to  be  done proper l y  because 

you are  tak ing  ou t  a  l i fe  th rea ten ing  substance,  you are   

expos ing  f ib res ,  those f ib res  are  car r ied  in  the  a i r,  peop le  

breathe them and  they,  qu i te  f rank l y,  d ie .  

I  have re fe r red  to  the  severa l  d i sputes  be tween the  

par t ies  invo l ved  but  aga in  they  are  d isputes  w i th in  the  

conf ines o f  a  l im i ted  amount  o f  fund ing .    

The es tab l i shed fac ts  show,  jus t  to  summar i se ,  the  

prov inc ia l  government  under takes to  pay R255  mi l l ion .   

MasterTrade quo tes  R44 mi l l ion  to  do  most  o f  tha t  work ,  10 

bar  R10 mi l l ion .   The MasterTrade 's  quote  o f  R44  mi l l ion 

inc ludes a  R17 m i l l ion  pro f i t ,  r igh t ,  and there  are  expenses 

l i s ted  d i f fe ren t ly  in  the  ev idence o f  d i f fe ren t  w i tnesses.   

So,  fo r  example ,  MasterTrade sa id  they wou ld  spend R3 

mi l l ion  on  data  fo r  the  d ig i ta l  dev i ces to  take  the  

photographs.   The expense l i s t  in  ORI ’s  subcont rac t  i s  

60  000.   So there  are  a l l  sor ts  o f  quest ion  marks  when one  

d igs  i n to  the  de ta i l  o f  even the  reduced amounts  o f  44 ,  21  

and the  l i ke .  

So jus t  i f  one takes a l l  those ve rs ions together  -  20 

and aga in  pe rhaps th is  i s  an  area o f  too  much deta i l  for  

p resent  pu rposes  -  i t  i s  a l l  in  the  repor t  in  a l l  i t s  de ta i l  –  

e i ther  the  second  subcont rac tor,  ORI ,  a  Mr  Manyeke,  does  

a l l  the  work  fo r  approx imate ly  R21 mi l l ion  invo lv ing  R9  

mi l l ion  expenses,  so  more  than 50% pro f i t .   Or  be tween 
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them,  Maste rTrade and ORI  do  the  work  fo r  R44  mi l l ion ,  

less  expenses,  o r  accord ing  to  Mr  Radebe o f  Maste rTrade,  

the  f ie ld  work  i s  done by  Manyeke as  a  consu l tan t  fo r  R5 

mi l l ion .   Whatever  vers ion  f ina l l y  went  the  day in  the  cour ts  

there  i s  no  quest ion  o f  a  g ross  overcharge in  cont rac t  

be tween the  jo in t  ventu re  and the  depar tment .  

Then there  is  the  quest ion  o f  invo i ces,  Cha i r.   Once  

aga in  i t  seems tha t  the  payment  o f  invo i ces  and the  

recorda l  o f  work  done to  jus t i f y  the  payment  i s  who l ly  

inadequate  and  border ing  on  the  improper.   Or,  no t  10 

borde r ing ,  s imp ly  improper.  

I t  may be –  and th is  requ i res  fu r ther  invest iga t ion ,  

bu t  i t  may be tha t  the  documenta t ion  wh ich  accompanied  

the  payments  o f  the  invo ices conta ined gross  

m isrepresenta t ion .   There  a re  documents  wh ich  show,  

Cha i r,  when a  payment ,  fo r  examp le ,  o f  R50 or  R30  mi l l ion 

i s  pa id ,  in  a  co lumn in  the  document  tha t  asbestos  was 

removed,  bu t  be fore  tak ing  tha t  fu r the r,  i t  wou ld  requ i re  an  

answer.   We do  not  have the  answer  ye t ,  bu t  there  are  

huge quest ion  marks  around,  f i rs t l y,  the  adequacy  o f  the  20 

documenta t ion  accompany ing  payments  and second ly,  

regard ing  the  rep resenta t ions made in  those documents .  

U l t imate ly,  aud i t  repor t s  were  prov ided,  severa l  

repor ts  were  prov ided as  a  resu l t  o f  the  conduct  o f  the 

work  under  the  cont rac t ,  the  jo in t  venture  cont rac t  and 
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these repor ts  o f  par t  o f  the  documenta t ion  be fore  you and 

the  exper t  w i l l  examine one o f  those repor t s  in  a  lo t  more  

de ta i l  because one cannot  assume tha t  even though R44 or  

R21 mi l l ion  was  done,  the  work  was p roper l y  done,  the  

work  was done w i th  su f f i c ien t  care  and caut ion  to  guard  the  

r igh ts  o f  the  peop le  in  the  communi t ies  who were  l i v ing  

w i th  asbestos  roo f  over  the i r  head.  

But  what  happens,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  a f te r  the  payment  

o f  R230 mi l l ion ,  R25 mi l l ion  ou ts tand ing ,  the  sub jec t  o f  a  

cour t  case a t  the  moment ,  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  began an 10 

invest iga t ion  and  produced a  repor t ,  the  cur ren t  pub l i c  

repor t .   And so  once tha t  repor t  came out ,  the  head o f  

depar tment ,  Mr  Mokhes i  suspended fu r ther  payments  to  the  

jo in t  ventu re  and  tha t  was a t  the  s tage where  R230 mi l l ion  

o f  the  R255 had been pa id .  

In  summary,  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec to r,  hav ing  

invest iga ted  the  mat te r  th rough the  Free S ta te  o f f i ce  made 

the  fo l low ing f ind ings.   I  w i l l  j us t  dea l  b r ie f l y  w i th  the  main  

f ind ings o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r.   

F i r s t l y,  a  compla in t  regard ing  the  v io la t ion  o f  20 

procu rement  p rocesses in  the  award ing  o f  the  asbestos  

cont rac t  was substant ia ted .   The Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  found 

tha t  the  par t i c ipa t ion  e lement  –  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  was the  

f i rs t  dev ice  used  to  avo id  the  open tender  p rocess –  was 

improper  because,  qu i te  s imp ly,  there  was no ex i s t ing  
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con t rac t  tha t  was par t i c ipa ted  in ,  a  new cont rac tua l  

a r rangement  was  entered in to  w i th  d i f fe ren t  te rms and  

cond i t ions  and what  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  sa id  was tha t  the  

par t i c i pa t ion  p rocess requ i res  the  same serv ice  prov ider,  

absent  in  th is  case,  the  same serv ices ,  no t  c lea r  on  th is ,  

and the  same pr i ce ,  ce r ta in ly  no t  there ,  no t  ex i s t ing .  

Then,  Cha i r,  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  a lso  found tha t  

inso fa r  as  i t  was sought  by  anyone to  jus t i f y  the  

procu rement  p rocess fo l lowed  by  re ference  to the 

unso l i c i ted  proposa l  rub r ic ,  tha t  too  was a lso  f lawed and 10 

un lawfu l ,  pa r t i cu la r ly  because the re  was a  fa i lu re  t o  i ssue 

the  request  fo r  quota t ion .   In  o the r  words,  to  pub l i c ise  th is  

a r rangement  so  tha t  o ther  par t ies  cou ld  en ter  the  f ray  i f  

they  wanted.   I f  was s imp ly  desc r ibed as an  abuse  o f  the  

procu rement  sys tem.  

Second ly,  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  found  tha t  the  serv ice  

leve l  agreement  was in  cont raven t ion  o f  the  depar tment ’s  

own supp ly  cha in  management  po l i cy  because i t  d id  no t  

ac tua l l y  re f lec t  what  was sa id  in  the  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  o r  

the  appo in tment .   So i t  was a  poor  document  in  a l l  20 

respects  and a l so  cont ravened  the  depar tmen t ’s  own  

supp ly  cha in  management  po l i cy.  

What  happened in  the  Free S ta te ,  s im i la r  to  what  

happened in  Gauteng,  i s  tha t  the  Aud i to r -Genera l  o f  the  

Free S ta te  dec la red the  procurement  as  i r regu la r,  re leased  



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 49 of 141 
 

tha t  repor t  on  the  31  Ju ly  2015 and Cha i r,  you have 

expressed concern  about  what  happens to  these  repor ts ,  

what  i s  the i r  e f fec t ,  do  they resu l t  in  any concre te  ac t ion  

tha t  i s  requ i red  by  the i r  content?    

Wel l ,  a f te r  the  re lease o f  the  repor t ,  dec la r ing  the 

procu rement  i r regu la r,  the  depar tment  s t i l l  made  fu r ther  

payments  o f  R139 mi l l ion  to  the  serv i ce  prov ide r.   In  o ther  

words,  tha t  repor t  was s imp ly  igno red and severe  f i nd ings,  

inc lud ing  f ind ings o f  w i l fu l  m isconduct  and  gross  

neg l igence on the  par t  o f  the  account ing  o f f ice r,  Mr  10 

Mokhes i ,  were  found to  have ex i s ted  by  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor.  

And then a  fu r ther  f ind ing ,  the  a l legat ion  tha t  the  

serv i ces  prov ided were  not  cos t -e f fec t i ve  and the  

depar tment  d id  no t  rece ive  va lue  fo r  money,  tha t  was found 

to  be  substant ia ted .   So much seems c lear  even f rom the  

br ie f  su rvey we have g iven you o f  vo lumes and vo lumes o f  

documents  re la t ing  to  tha t  i ssue.    

What  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  found on her  

invest iga t ion  was  tha t  the  ev idence and documents  prove 20 

tha t  the  pro jec t  was one hundred  percent  comple ted  and 

repor ts  were  genera ted  by  the  ORI  Group.   That  i s  the  

second subcon t rac to r,  the  f i rs t  subcont rac tor  to  

MasterTrade.   F i rs t  subcont rac to r  MasterTrade,  second 

cont rac tor  ORI .   The Pub l ic  P ro tec tor  found tha t  the  fee  fo r  



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 50 of 141 
 

a l l  tha t  work  was  R21 mi l l ion  and  a l l  tha t  work  was done  

and what  i s  in te res t ing ,  i s  no t  on l y  was the  f ie ldwork  done 

by  the  subcont rac to r,  the  second  cont rac to r,  bu t  a lso  the  

product ion  o f  repor ts  was done la rge ly  w i th  i t s  

par t i c i pa t ion .  

We re fe r red  ear l i e r,  Cha i r,  to  a  compla in t  about  the  

advanced payment ,  the  f ind ing  was tha t  tha t  was i r regu lar  

as  we l l  bu t  fo r  the  reason tha t  the  or ig ina l  cont rac t  was 

nu l l  and vo id  as  be ing  cont rary  to  a l l  the  procu rement  

p rescr ip ts .   But  I  have a l ready po in ted  out  to  you,  Cha i r,  10 

tha t  tha t  p repayment  o f  R51 mi l l ion  was more  than enough 

to  cover  the  costs  o f  the  who le  cont rac t .   So before  any  

work  had s tar ted ,  the  cont rac t  was  pa id .  

And what  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  has d i rec ted  the  

Premie r  to  do  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  repor t  i s  to  invest iga te  the  

account ing  o f f i ce r  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  84  o f  the  Pub l ic  

F inance Management  Act  and to  repor t  the  conduct  to  the  

Hawks and the  South  A f r i can Po l ice  Serv i ces  and those  

processes are  underway.   There  was a l so  a  d i rec t ion  tha t  

the  D i rec to r  o f  Supp ly  Cha in  Management  in  the  20 

depar tment ,  Mr  Mat lakana be invest iga ted .   We w i l l  hear  

more  about  h im la te r,  we have jus t  rece ived a  le t te r  f rom 

h is  lega l  representa t i ve  wh ich  w i l l ,  desp i te  h is  own  

agreement  to  a t tend,  under tak ing  to  a t tend today,  exp la ins  

why he has no t  a t tended or  purpor t s  to  exp la in .  
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Then,  Cha i r,  two  c lose  the  c i r c le  on  the  asbestos  

pro jec t ,  there  is  the  ev idence g iven by  Mr  Dukwana in  

re la t ion  to  the  costs  o f  bus iness f igure .   Now th is  

schedu le ,  Cha i r,  has been invest i ga ted  a t  g rea t  length ,  i t  

has  been put  be fore  Mr  Sod i  o f  the  jo in t  venture  because i t  

i s  a  document  re la ted  to  the  bus iness o f  the  jo in t  venture  

and emanat ing  f rom jo in t  venture  records .   So i t  has  been  

tes t i f ied  to  d i rec t l y.    

I t  records  severa l  abnormal  bus iness expenses.   I t  records  

them in  a  way tha t  i s  abnormal  and  i t  shows,  on  the  face  o f  10 

i t  a t  leas t  –  and I  s t ress  on  the  face  o f  i t  because  tha t  i s  

where  we are  a t  p resent ,  payments  to  persons or  en t i t ies  

f rom the  income rece ived,  the  255  or  230 as  i t  tu rned out ,  

m i l l i on  rand.   Where  the  schedu le  shows what  may be  

te rmed a  leg i t imate  bus iness expense,  in  o the r  words a  

subcont rac to r  expense,  the  payment  to  Maste rTrade,  i t  i s  

recorded to  the  las t  cent  in  tha t  schedu le  to  Maste rTrade,  

no  in i t ia ls  MasterTrade is  recorded the re  as  the  sub-

cont rac tor  rece iv ing  fo r ty - four  odd mi l l ion  Rand in  a 

prec ise  amount  on  tha t  schedu le ,  bu t  where  i t  i s  a rguab le  20 

tha t  some concea lment  i s  necessary  because  i t ’s  an  

abnormal  bus iness expense,  one see ’s  mere l y  in i t ia l .   Now,  

the  quest ion  is ,  i s  i t  jus t  co inc identa l  tha t  those in i t ia ls  a re  

–  happen to  be  in i t ia ls  o f  o f f i c ia ls  in  the  Free  S ta te 

invo l ved in  fac i l i ta t ing  tha t  o r  a re  –  i s  there  some o the r  
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exp lanat ion ,  there  doesn ’ t  seem to  be  another  exp lanat ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean,  what  must  be  c lea r  i s  tha t  the  

au thor  o f  the  spreadsheet  meant  tha t  –  I  mean those  

in i t ia ls  re fe r  to  somebody.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And they re fer  to  somebody who,  

acco rd ing  to  the  au thor  was to  be  pa id  a  cer ta in  number.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Mr  Sod i  –  because i f  he ’s  s t i l l  a l i ve  

and he was the  50% of  the  jo in t  venture  must  be  ab le  to  10 

te l l  us  who was  tha t ,  tha t  was to  be  pa id  tha t  amount  

because you are  par t  o f  the  jo in t  venture ,  you ought  to  

know,  I  wou ld  imag ine  and o f  course  i t ’s  qu i te  in te res t ing  i f  

the  in i t ia ls  seem to  be  s im i la r  to  in i t ia ls  o f  somebody who  

has a  ro le  to  p lay  in  the  who le  pro jec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    One w i l l  reca l l ,  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  

the  nar ra t i ve ,  Cha i r,  Mr  Mpambani  under took to  un lock  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  engage the  necessary  o f f i c ia l s  to  fac i l i ta te  

the  grant  o f  the  cont rac t  o f  R255mi l l ion  va lue  to  the  jo in t  

venture .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:     The persons invo l ved  in  tha t  

p rocess,  in i t ia ls  wh ich  are  the  same as the i r  in i t ia l s ,  le t  me 

put  i t  tha t  way fo r  the  moment  ra ther  than say ing  the i r  

in i t ia ls  here  on  tha t  schedu le  as  the  rec ip ien t  o f  money.   
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Mr  Sod i  says,  th is  i s  a  record  o f  sub-cont rac to rs ,  I  don ’ t  

know what  these  mean.   So,  when a  person w i th  in i t ia ls  

co inc id ing  w i th  the  in i t ia ls  o f  an  o f f i c ia l  in  the  Free S ta te ,  

who ’s  par t i c i pa t i on  and coopera t ion  was necessary  to  

un lock  the  oppor tun i ty  appear  on  the  schedu le  as  be ing  

ent i t led  to ,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  R10mi l l ion .   R10mi l l i on  goes 

out  o f  h is  bus iness,  he  says,  I  don ’ t  know where  R10mi l l ion  

o f  my pro f i t s  wen t  bu t  he  says,  Cha i r,  and in  a  s t range way 

th is  has i t s  own log ic  to  i t ,  he  says,  Mr  Mpambani  p repared  

th is  schedu le ,  he  d id  i t  in  my o f f i ce  on  my compute r  and I  10 

don ’ t  know where  my pro f i t s  wen t ,  I  can ’ t  exp la in  where  

tens o f  m i l l i ons  o f  rand o f  my pro f i t  go ,  I ’m  happy to  accept  

tha t  what  he  d id  was cor rec t .   The  – bu t  o f  course  as  fa r  as  

the  in i t ia ls  were  concerned i t  i s  cor rec t ,  i t  i s  cor rec t ,  I  

s t ress ,  tha t  they  went  to  these o f f i c ia ls ,  mon ies  went  to  

these o f f i c ia l s ,  tha t  was h is  j ob .   Now was the  payback 

t ime fo r  hav ing  un locked the  oppor tun i ty  and he  had to  

o rgan ise  i t ,  bu t  there  is  cor respondence between the  pa r ty  

tha t  the  invest iga tors  have produced,  emai l  

cor respondence between Sod i  and the  deceased,  Mr  20 

Mpambani  wh ich  s t ipu la tes  tha t  Mr  Sod i  i s  to  see to  these 

payments  and Mr  Mpambani  w i l l  see  to  o ther  payments  and 

tha t  ev idence w i l l  be  be fore  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then i t  becomes d i f f i cu l t  and we ’ l l  

see ,  maybe Mr  Sod i  w i l l  exp la in ,  i t  becomes d i f f i cu l t  to  
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accept  tha t ,  be tween the  two o f  them,  Mr  Sod i  and Mr  

Mpambani ,  d idn ’ t  know a l l ,  you  know,  who everybody on 

the  l i s t  was.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  fac t  tha t  those in i t ia ls  

co inc ide  w i th  the  in i t ia ls  o f  the  o f f ic ia ls  who pa r t i c ipa ted  in  

the  fac i l i ta t ion  o f  the  pro jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And Mr  Son i ,  in  t ime,  bu t  Cha i r,  the 

payments  have been –  ce r ta in  payments  f rom the  bus iness 

have been t raced by  the  invest iga tors  and I ’ l l  come to  10 

those in  a  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  wha tever  –  fo r  any bus iness 

va lued –  Mr  Sod i ’s  bus iness,  there  w i l l  be  ev idence a t  

a round 2014/2015 tu rned ove r  in  excess o f  a  b i l l i on  rand i t  

was a  very,  very  successfu l  bus iness and he was custod ian  

o f  b i l l i ons  o f  –  a t  leas t  more  than a  b i l l i on  rand.   For  tha t  

bus iness to  record  the  expenses o f  a  R255mi l l ion  cont rac t  

in  the  manner  in  wh ich  i t  was done is  to  say,  the  least ,  

ex t raord ina ry.   The on ly  log ica l  exp lanat ion  fo r  th is ,  20 

unusua l  recorda l  o f  bus iness expenses by  re ference to  

in i t ia ls ,  i s  the  necessary  the  need  to  concea l ,  a t  leas t  to  a  

cer ta in  ex ten t .   The –  we must  dea l  w i th ,  par t i cu la r ly  the  

a l legat ions made  by  Mr  Dukwana and the  response to  

those a l legat ions by  Mr  Zu lu ,  Mr  Zu lu  sa id  tha t  document  i s  
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s imp ly  a  p iece  o f  paper  to  wh ich  no  cred ib i l i t y  a t  a l l  can  be 

a t tached.  Now,  whatever  the  va lue  o f  tha t  observa t ion  a t  

the  t ime Mr  Dukwana gave ev idence as  you a re  aware  

Cha i r,  the  invest i ga tors  have taken the  mat te r  much fu r ther  

and  so  in  re la t ion  to  dec id ing  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  the  

document ,  apar t  f rom answers  to  quest ions g iven th i s  week 

there  a re  cer ta in  fac tors  wh ich ,  no  doubt ,  you w i l l  take  in to  

account  in  assess ing  i t s  au thent ic i t y  and i t s  re l iab i l i t y  as  a  

source  o f  ev idence and we w i l l  make ou r  submiss ions to  

you in  th is  regard  bu t  f i rs t l y  tha t  document  has been  10 

admi t ted  to  be  a  document  re la t ing  to  the  bus iness o f  the  

jo in t  venture  in  the  asbestos  pro jec t  as  be ing  prone to  and  

tes t i f ied  to  in  consu l ta t ion  by  Mr  Sod i .   He says tha t ,  tha t  

document  was prepared on h is  compute r  in  h is  o f f ice  by  h is  

e rs twh i le  JV  par tne r,  Mr  Mpambani  and what  he  sa id  was  

tha t  i t  re f lec ted ,  la rge ly  costs  payab le  to  sub-cont rac to rs ,  

in  o ther  words expenses o f  the  bus iness.   I ’ ve  po in ted  out  

tha t  cer ta in  expenses,  in i t ia ls  cer ta in  expenses  wh ich  

wou ld ,  o therw ise  appear  to  be  leg i t imate ,  fu l l  descr ip t ion  o f  

the  rec ip ien t  o f  funds.  20 

 I ’ ve  dea l t  w i th  the  issue o f  the  in i t ia ls  wh ich  

co inc ide  w i th  the  in i t ia ls  o f  o f f i c ia ls  and i t  was Mpambani ’s  

work  to  secure  the  coopera t ion  o f  those o f f i c ia ls  in  

fac i l i ta t ing  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t  in  the  manner  in  

wh ich  i t  was done  and on the  te rms .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    To  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Sod i ’s  ve rs ion  is  

tha t  the  document  was prepared  by  Mr  Mpamban i ,  i f  the 

document  was a  bus iness document ,  in  the  sense tha t  i t  

was in te rna l  Mr  Sod i  may have to  exp la in  how he – how i t  

wou ld  come about  tha t  he  doesn ’ t  know what  cer ta in  

in i t ia ls  –  who  cer ta in  in i t ia ls  re fe r  to  because Mr  

Mpambani ,  i f  he ’s  the  one who put  those in i t ia ls  wou ld  

have put  those in i t ia ls  so  tha t  the  two o f  them knew who 

the  person was because tha t  person was about  to  be  pa id  

some money f rom the  bus iness,  f rom the  jo in t  ventu re .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I ’m  jus t  look ing  fo r  the  document  

i t se l f  because the  po in t  you make is  ap t ly  i l l us t ra ted  on  the 

document  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean i f  I  wr i te  –  i f  I  p repare  document  

meant  to  communica te  someth ing  to  you I  wou ld  use – i f  I  

use  in i t ia ls  i t  mus t  be  in i t ia ls  tha t  I  th ink  you unders tand or  

you know and o f  course  i f  you  don ’ t  know you w i l l  ask  me 

when you get  the  document ,  what  does th is  mean? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  we l l  the  f i rs t  quest ion  is ,  th is  

document  obv ious ly  re f lec ts  the  recorda l  o f  an  in ten t .   The 20 

next  quest ion  is ,  was tha t  in ten t  car r ied  ou t  and tha t ’s  the  

sub jec t  mat te r  o f  cer ta in  ev idence and invest iga t ions tha t  I  

w i l l  dea l  w i th  in  a  moment  bu t  jus t  look ing  a t  the  document ,  

TZ cost  to  bus iness R10mi l l ion ,  TM cost  to  bus iness  

R5mi l l ion ,  AM cost  to  bus iness  R10mi l l ion ,  OM cost  to  



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 57 of 141 
 

bus iness R1mi l l ion ,  MEC cost  to  bus iness R2.5mi l l ion ,  then  

we have a  name MasterTrade not  cos t  and then names o f  

o thers  who were  invo lved and…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  not  MT? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I ’m  sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    MasterTrade,  no t  MT? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Not  MT a t  a l l  nor  the  pe rson SR in  

MasterTrade.   Now,  to  say,  as  the  person  in  the  jo in t  

venture  runn ing  the  bus iness,  runn ing  th i s  s ide  o f  the  

bus iness,  remember  Mpambani ’s  job  is  to  un lock  10 

oppor tun i t ies ,  tha t  I  don ’ t  know where  twenty  t o  th i r t y  

m i l l i on  rand o f  my pro f i t s  i s  go ing ,  i s  ex t rao rd inary  –  an  

ex t raord ina ry  propos i t ion  a t  the  l east ,  exact ly  your  po in t  

tha t  one wou ld  assume tha t  those  in i t ia ls  wou ld  be  known 

un less  there ’s  some very  conv inc ing  exp lanat ion  why I ,  as  

50% member  o f  a  jo in t  venture  wou ld  a l low tens o f  m i l l i ons  

rands,  s imp ly  to  be  d ispersed to  dest ina t ions o f  wh ich  I  

have no knowledge.   When,  i f  tha t  was so ,  tha t  he  d idn ’ t  

know,  a t  leas t  there  was a  du ty  to  enqu i re  why th i s  

co inc idence between the  in i t ia ls  o f  o f f i c ia ls  and the  20 

bus iness tha t  I  am respons ib le  f o r  and the  leg i s la t ion  is  

rep le te  w i th  the  red  f lags  in  tha t  regard  and I ’ l l  dea l  w i th  

jus t  one aspect  o f  the  govern ing  leg is la t ion  on  cor rup t ion  

la te r.  

 So,  Cha i r,  I  dea l t  w i th  the  document  conta in ing  the  
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in i t ia ls  wh ich  co inc ide  w i th  in i t ia ls  o f  o f f i c ia ls  invo lved in  

fac i l i ta t ing  the  programme.  The document  a lso  conta ins  an  

accura te  reco rd  o f  amounts  pa id  to  sub-cont rac tors ,  fo r  

example ,  Maste rTrade wh ich  we know,  f rom o ther  o r ig ina l  

ev idence to  be  the  cor rec t  amounts  pa id  to  them.   So,  the  

content  o f  the  document  i s  au thent ica ted  by  re ference by  

o ther  o r ig ina l  record .   Four th l y  Cha i r,   many o f  the  o ther  

payments  to  persons bear ing  in i t ia ls  o r  en t i t ies  bear ing  

in i t ia ls  have been invest iga ted  and they are  dea l t  w i th  

thorough ly  in  the  invest iga tor ’s  repor t ,  I ’ l l  dea l  w i th  some 10 

in  a  moment ,  jus t  by  way o f  an  example  bu t  what  i s  

impor tan t  i s ,  those payments  do  not  re la te  to  work  ac tua l l y  

done,  so  fo r  example ,  payments  to  Mr  Tau or  payments  

invo l v ing  Mr  Tau,  Mr  Tau ’s  en t i t y  and the  exp lanat ion  

s imp ly  i s ,   f rom Mr  Sod i  who acknowledges tha t  payment  

says tha t ,  we l l  tha t ’s  jus t  someth ing  tha t  I  do  f rom my 

monies  I  pay ou t  bu t  why these  shou ld  be  reco rded as  

bus iness expenses,  o f  course ,  i s  anothe r  quest ion  as  

opposed to  s imp ly  a  gra tu i tous donat ion .   The payments  

and the  re levant  c i rcumstances sur round ing  the  payments  20 

are  summar ised in  the  invest iga tor ’s  repor t  and i f  I  may  

dea l  w i th  one or  two,  s imp ly  to  pu t  the  fu l l  p ic tu re  o f  the  

who le  pro jec t  and i t s  ou tcome be fore  you by  way  o f  th is  

open ing  address.   Bear  w i th  me a  moment  –  the  ev idence  

o f  Mr  Dukwana was c lear  tha t  accord ing  to  h is  ev idence 
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the  amounts  re f lec ted  on the  cost  o f  bus iness schedu le  

were  pa id  as  gra t i f i ca t ion  in  re la t ion  to  the  Free S ta te 

asbestos  cont rac t .   Now,  as  was cor rec t l y  po in ted  out  by  

you,  a t  the  t ime,  Cha i r  tha t ,  tha t  was insu f f i c ien t  ev idence 

to  ac tua l l y  imp l ica te  a  par t i cu la r  person and therea f te r  the 

invest iga to rs  were  tasked to  do  the i r  work  wh ich  they d id  

and the  resu l ts  o f  the i r  work ,  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  in  a  moment .  

 The a l legat ion ,  and I  s t ress  a t  th is  s tage,  an  

a l legat ion  because we have to  go  th rough the  ev ident ia l  

p rocess is  tha t  TZ wou ld  have re fer red  to  Mr  Thaban i  Zu lu  10 

who was the  fo rmer  DG o f  the  Nat iona l  Depar tment  o f  

Government  a t  tha t  s tage and what  i s  re f lec ted  is  a  

payment  o f  R10mi l l ion .   Now,  whether  tha t  i s  cor rec t  o r  

no t ,  i t ’s  mere l y  an  a l legat ion  a t  th is  s tage made by  

Dukwana to  wh ich  Mr  Zu lu  w i l l  have fu l l  oppor tun i ty  to  

respond but  what  we do know is  t ha t  Mr  Zu lu  w i l l  have fu l l  

oppor tun i ty  to  respond but  what  we  do know is  tha t  Mr  Zu lu 

was,  a t  leas t ,  invo l ved i f  no t  ins t rumenta l ,  f i rs t l y  in  the 

par t i c i pa t ion  cont rac t  and second ly  in  the  budgetary  

process o f  un lock ing  funds there .   The second in i t ia l  TM,  i s  20 

a l leged,  and I  s t ress  aga in  a l leged ,  to  be  the  in i t ia ls  o f  Mr  

Th imots i  Moekets i  a lso  known as Tim,  the  Account ing  

Off i cer  and Head o f  Depar tment  F ree S ta te  Human 

Set t lement .   I t  i s  a l leged tha t  R5mi l l ion  was/wou ld  be  

payab le  to  h im.   What  we know is  tha t  the  in i t ia ls  TM 
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appear  on  the  spreadsheet  and  we know tha t  he  was 

invo lved in  s ign ing  the  cont rac t ,  invo lved in  the 

par t i c i pa t ion  and  the  unso l i c i ted  par t  o f  the  cont rac t ,  the 

s ign ing  o f  the  SLA payments  and the  l i ke ,  he ’s  the  

Account ing  Off i cer  and in  te rms  o f  the  Pub l ic  F inance 

Management  Act  he  cannot  escape l iab i l i t y,  he  can 

de legate  bu t  i t ’s  very  c lea r  in  the  l eg is la t ion  tha t  he  re ta ins  

accountab i l i t y  fo r  tha t .  

 AM we know tha t  the  fo rmer  Prem ier ’s  in i t ia ls  were  

AM,  Mr  Magashu le  and we know there  has been ev idence  10 

o f  cer ta in  payments  made to  h is  o f f i ce  fo r  p resent  

purposes but  the  leg is la t ion  is  c lea r,  whether  you  rece ive  

an  amount  o f  money fo r  you rse l f  o r  fo r  o thers  i t  s t i l l  

qua l i f ies  as  an  o f fence in  te rms  o f  the  leg is la t ion ,  we ’ l l  

dea l  w i th  tha t  in  more  de ta i l  in  due course .   OM,  whethe r  

co inc identa l l y  o r  o therw ise  is  the  fo rmer  MEC in  the  Free  

S ta te  fo r  Human Set t lement .   MEC,  the  MEC at  the  t ime  

was…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  OM you d idn ’ t  ment ion  the  

name.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    No,  jus t  MEC but  the  MEC at  the  

t ime a lso  rece ived some benef i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And then MasterTrade is  there  by  

name,  an  accura te  re f lec t ion  o f  the  t rue  fac ts  i t ’s  
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es tab l i shed by  fac ts  ex terna l  to  the  document .   The  ident i t y  

o f  o thers  has no t  been uncovered.  Mar t in  c lear ly  re fe rs  to  

Mar t in  Zwane who rece ived monies ,  there ’s  and invo ice  fo r  

h im issued by  h im fo r  R1.5mi l l ion  wh ich  is  re f lec ted  in  the  

cost  o f  th is  in  the  schedu le .   S teve ,  there ’s  a  S teve Matau,  

an  Eng ineer  who  was pa id  fo r  eng ineer ing  work  done on 

beha l f  o f  the  jo in t  venture  an  amount  o f  R1.2mi l l ion  and  

there  a re  o thers  inc lud ing  JT,  J immy Tau who a l so  rece ived  

money as  the  invest iga tors  found out  and the  las t  name is  

D ieder i cks  wh ich  must ,  obv ious l y  re fe r  to  Margare t -Ann  10 

D ieder i cks  the  fo rmer  ac t ing  Head o f  Depar tmen t  in  the  

Gauteng Depar tment  o f  Human Set t lement .   She is  the  one 

who s igned the  par t i c i pa t ion  le t te r  f rom the  Gauteng s ide  

thus fac i l i ta t ing  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t .  

 Mr  Sod i  has been in te rv iewed and he ’s  g iven much 

o f  the  ev idence necessary  to ,  a t  the  very  least ,  de termine 

the  au thent ic i t y  o f  the  document ,  i t ’s  no t  a  fab r ica t ion  i t ’s  a  

rea l  document  w i th  rea l  in fo rmat ion .   The costs  re f lec ted  

there  on  h is  vers ion  dea l ,  p r inc ipa l l y  w i th  sub-con t rac t ing  

costs ,  there ’s  no  exp lanat ion  fo r  how a l l  those persons w i th  20 

a l l  those in i t ia ls  co inc id ing  w i th  o f f i c ia ls ’ in i t ia ls  wou ld  

have been invo lved in  sub-cont rac t ing  there ’s  s imp ly  a  

pro fess ion  o f  ignorance in  tha t  regard  and here  you made  

your  observa t ion  about  tha t .   He says,  tha t  document  was  

a t tached to  emai ls  he  rece ived f rom Mr  Mpambani ,  he  says 
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tha t  he  acknowledges the  rece ip t  o f  d i rec t ions f rom Mr  

Mpambani  to  dea l  w i th  the  persons h igh l igh ted  in  ye l low  

a l though he den ies  mak ing  any such payments .   He 

acknowledges tha t  i t  was p repared on h i s  computer  he  

says tha t  Mr  Mpambani  worked in  h is  o f f i ce  bu t  he  wou ld  

no t  specu la te  about  the  in i t ia ls ,  save the  concess ion  in  

re la t ion  to  JT,  Mr  J immy Tau.   He g ives an  exp lanat ion  tha t  

he  appo in ted  Mr  J immy Tau as  h i s  Bus iness Deve lopment  

Manager  a f te r  the  –  Mr  Tau ’s  re t i rement ,  bu t  he  does 

acknowledge tha t  Mr  Tau rece ived  money genera ted  f rom 10 

the  pro f i t  in  tha t  par t i cu la r  content  and then there  was an  

upf ron t  payment  recorded on tha t  schedu le  o f  R4.4mi l l ion  

wh ich  was acknowledged as  be ing  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  J immy Tau i s  represented by  in i t ia ls ,  

as  we l l ,  in  the  document?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  he  knows what  those in i t ia ls  –  who  

they re fer  to?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm,  yes okay.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    There  was an out f low recorded 

there  in  the  schedu le  o f  approx imate ly  –  so r ry  Cha i r  an  

ana lys is  o f  the  accounts  o f  B lackhead,  the  bank accounts  

who show payments  to  var ious persons invo lved or  

rep resented by  the i r  in i t ia ls  o r  by  in i t ia ls ,  a t  leas t  on  tha t  
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l i s t .   There  were  severa l  f inanc ia l  t ransact ions invest iga ted  

by  the  invest iga tors  o f  the  Commiss ion  in  re la t ion  to  the 

f i rs t  in i t ia l  o r  person bear ing  those in i t ia ls  on  the  schedu le  

tha t  he  is  there .   There ’s  no  ev idence a t  p resent ,  ava i lab le  

to  the  Commiss ion  o f  a  s ing le  amount  o f  R10mi l l ion  be ing  

pa id .   Some amounts  were  t raced  f rom the  bank accounts  

o f  B lackhead,  Mr  Sod i ,  to  a  motor  dea le r  in  

P ie termar i t zburg .   Two t ransact ions are  re levant ,  the  f i rs t  

was a  payment  re f lec ted  in  the  accounts  o f  B lackhead 

th rough a  TZ,  in i t ia ls  were  used,  the  in i t ia ls  TZ w i l l  ident i f y  10 

tha t  payment  and tha t  payment  was recorded  on the  

rece iv ing  end o f  the  moto r  dea ler  in  P ie termar i t zburg  as  Mr  

Zu lu ,  so  the  use  o f  the  in i t ia ls  on  the  s ide  o f  the  payer  

be ing  B lackhead Consu l t ing ,  Mr  Sod i  and the  fac t  tha t  they  

re la ted  to  Mr  Thaban i  Zu lu  on  the  rece iv ing  end v ia  the  

motor  dea ler  co r rec t .   In  one t ransact ion  the  money was 

used to  buy a  Masera t i  fo r  a  Mr  Nthu l i  qu i te  aware  tha t  se t  

o f  t ransact ions has i t s  o r ig ins  and  why i t  shou ld  be  so  has 

no t ,   f ina l l y  been  es tab l i shed by  the  invest iga to rs  bu t  what  

i s  c lea r  i s  tha t  TZ,  Thaban i  Zu lu ,  TZ payer,  Thaban i  Zu lu  20 

rec ip ien t  pa id  fo r  a  luxury  veh ic le  ou t  o f  money and we 

know why and where  tha t  money shou ld  have gone,  I  won ’ t  

emphas ise  the  po in t ,  i t ’s  obv ious.  

 There  was a  second  t ransact ion  o f  R600 000 wh ich ,  

i t  i s  apparent  now tha t  i t  was made by  Mr  Sod i  to  the  motor  
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dea ler  a t  the  t ime o f  these –  a t  the  pro jec t  fo r  an  amount  

o f  R600 000.   I t ,  aga in ,  i s  re f lec ted  on the  rec ip ien t ’s  s ide  

as  re f lec t ing  the  in i t ia ls  TZ,  now I  may be cor rec ted  in  

re la t ion  to  a l l  these in i t ia ls  and where  they are  re f lec ted 

but  cer ta in l y  tha t  w i l l  be  cor rec ted  in  due course  in  de ta i l  i f  

i t  i s  sub jec t  to  co r rec t ion  bu t  he re  the  rec ip ien t  i s  re f lec ted  

as  TZ and Mr  Zu lu  uses i t  as  a  depos i t  fo r  a  veh ic le  and so  

much is  common cause.   Mr  Sod i  pays R600 000 to  a  motor  

dea ler  i t ’s  used as  a  depos i t  fo r  a  Range Rover  bought  by  

Mr  Zu lu .   The exp lanat ion  fo r  tha t  wh ich  you w i l l  hear  10 

ev idence about  in  due course  i s  tha t  Mr  Zu lu  has an  

invo l vement  o r  owns a  lounge ca l led  TZ Lounge  

co inc identa l l y,  in  P ie termar i t zburg  wh ich  appears  to  be  a ,  I  

don ’ t  know what  our  invest iga tors  have been look ing  a t ,  i t  

appears  to  be  an  enter ta inment  es tab l i shment  o f  sor ts ,  

where ,  on  vers ion  or  on  one  exp lanat ion  R600 000  

re f lec ted  the  amount  o f  the  tab  run  up  by  Mr  Sod i  a t  the  

lounge on Mr  Zu lu ’s  ve rs ion  a  more  –  we l l ,  I ’m not  sure  

whethe r  i t ’s  more  unders tandab le  exp lanat ion  is  tha t ,  i t  

was mon ies  owed by  Mr  Sod i  fo r  goods and serv i ces  20 

re la ted  to  the  bus iness o f  the  lounge in  P ie termar i t zbu rg ,  

we l l  le t ’s  hear  about  tha t  in  due course  in  a l l  i t s  de ta i l s  bu t  

on  the  face  o f  i t  R600 000 is  qu i te  a  la rge  b i l l  to  run  up  a t  

an  en ter ta inment  venue.  

 Then PM,  there ’s  ev idence o f  mon ies  emanat ing  
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f rom Mr  Sod i  o r  B lackhead be ing  pa id  in  the  in te res ts  o f  Mr  

Makez i  fo r  the  pu rchase o f  a  p roper ty.    

So an amount of  R650 000.00 is paid via a t rust  to  

at torneys which is  used to buy a property in which according 

to the invest igators i t  is apparent  that  Mr Mokhesi  l ives but  

the explanat ion of  Mr Mokhesi  is no this was a jo int  business 

venture.   He and Mr Sodi  became fr iends and they decided 

to invest  in a property and there is  an agreement which 

shows how the income f rom rent  was to be divided and what  

is to happen on the property in due course.   Now whether 10 

this is al l  genuine or not  can be invest igated and deal t  wi th  

in at  best ,  but  what is  s igni f icant  here is that  a person 

involved in the grant  of  a tender of  R255 mi l l ion the 

account ing off icer  could not  be in  business wi th the recipient  

because i t  a l lows for al l  sorts of  benef i ts l ike this to be 

granted.   And cer tainly th is is a benef i t .   The fact  that  you 

have now gained a partner to help you buy a house in which 

you l ive for however long whatever  i ts nature as a jo int  

venture is does not  al low you to escape the provisions of  the 

law in th is regard.   But  qu i te apart  f rom that  Chai r  and as a 20 

matter of  any recommendat ions that  you may have in 

procurement should be absolutely forbidden that  there 

should be any pr ivate contractual  arrangements between 

those on ei ther side of  a procurement arrangement.   Be that  

as i t  may that  is the – and there are others too Chair  that  
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involve the payment of  fees at  the – f rom this money at  the 

request  of  the Premier of  the t ime Mr Magashule.   Now the 

legislat ion is again qui te clear  that  whether you receive a 

benef i t  or a grat i f icat ion for yoursel f  or on behal f  of  others 

student studying i t  fa l ls foul  of  the legislat ion and no doubt 

the Law Enforcement Agencies wi l l  pay close at tent ion to 

that  in due course.  

 That  evidence has been t raversed already but  i ts  

impl icat ions in terms of  the legislat ion may need further  

clar i f icat ion before you.    10 

 Chair  I  am not  going to go further in the examples 

there are others they are the subject  matter  of  detai led 

research they are al l  conta ined ful ly  under and al l  thei r  detai l  

wi th support ing documentat ion and explanat ion and an 

analysis of  the relevant  evidence in re lat ion thereto.  

 Suff ice to say that  the document appears not  only on 

the face of  i t  but  in relat ion to al l  the accompanying evidence 

to be a genuine document def lect ing actual  t ransact ions or 

part ia l  t ransact ions.  

 The evidence shows that  people on that  or in i t ia ls on 20 

that  co inc ide wi th the in i t ia ls of  off ic ia ls who received 

grat i f icat ion or income or benef i ts  f rom the monies ar is ing 

f rom the contract .   And important ly those persons to a large 

extent  were persons involved in the procurement process in 

faci l i tat ing thei r  b id ent i rely overpr iced – massively 
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overpr iced – extort ionately overpr iced in fact  wi thout  any 

compl iance as found only the Publ ic Protector wi th the 

procurement prescr ipt  and the ev idence in that  regard is 

c lear.  

 So the whole story goes ful l  c i rc le Chai r  and i t  is  

i l lust rat ive not  because i t  is un ique or unprecedented but  i t  

shows a pat tern.   I t  shows a pat tern the abi l i ty to  ident i fy a  

money making opportuni ty,  using funds of  the f iscus to that  

purpose,  an abuse of  procurement processes,  engagement  

wi th off ic ia ls to  fac i l i tate the abuse of  the procurement 10 

processes,  the product ion of  work which the expert  wi l l  te l l  

you simply not  warranted even by the lesser amounts that  

were charged,  the pocket ing of  huge amounts of  f iscus 

meant Chai r  for the l ivel ihood of  poorer members of  the 

community but  end up buying Maserat i ’s.   I t  is  a  sorry – a 

very sorry ta le to  say the least  but  the ful l  c i rc le is there 

f rom the manipulat ion of  procurement r ight  through to the 

product ion of  benef i ts and in between an ent i re ly  cos t  being 

affected and qui te  f rankly cr iminal  pro ject .  

 That  Is by way of  opening Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Chai r  the wi tness who has been set 

down – two witnesses were cal led for today.   A Mr Mat lakala 

who agreed to come today but  we have learnt  recent ly  

through his appointed lawyers that  the – he claims he has 
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reason not  to appear th is  week.   He was not  summonsed but  

he was – he was here or to be here by his own agreement.   

We wi l l  deal  wi th that  af ter the long adjournment.   I  just  need 

to update mysel f  on the correspondence received th is  

morning.    

 And then the expert  who wi l l  take up some t ime now 

and this af ternoon.  I  do not  know whether Chai r  you wish to  

take an ear ly adjournment or whether we should use the hal f  

hour and adjourn as normal between one and two? 

CHAIRPERSON:   What is your est imate of  how long the 10 

expert  might  take? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   At  least  an hour – an hour and a hal f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  maybe – maybe we should start  

wi th him.  We have about twenty f ive minutes – thi r ty 

minutes and then we take lunch and then af ter that  – ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  we may Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What happened to the lamp that  was 

supposed to be next  to the wi tness?  I  see i t  is not  there.   20 

You would not  know anything about i t  Mr Pretor ius but  i t  is 

those who – who know – who know what I  am ta lk ing about.   

I t  is supposed to be next  to the wi tness so that  i f  they have 

to read anything they can do that .   So i f  i t  is going to be 

disrupt ive to take i t  now then dur ing the lunch adjournment i t  
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should be placed next  to the wi tness.   I f  th is is  the one so 

that  i f  the wi tness has to  read anything they do not  st ruggle 

wi th seeing the wr i t ing.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Chai r  in the under Free State 1 is 

Exhibi t  TT1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Would i t  be convenient  – I  know i f  we say 

Free State 1 we wi l l  know which bundle we are talk ing about 

but  do you have any object ion i f  we cal led i t  Bundle FS1? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  th ink I  could accept  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   [Laughing]  let  us make al l  of  them Bundle 10 

FS1, 2 and so on.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes we wi l l  do that  – we wi l l  replace 

this.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no that  is  f ine ja.   Just  so that  – you 

know i f  i t  is Free State 1 wi thout  bundle one does not  know 

whether Free State 1 means something else di fferent  f rom 

bundle.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Sure.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So Bundle FS1.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So in Bundle FS1 for the record 20 

Exhibi t  TT1 is the statement of  Mr Jacobus Roets.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And you asked that  to that  statement 

that  aff idavi t  be admit ted as and marked Exhibi t  TT1.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   TT1.   Chai r  at  the moment and I  th ink 

this has something to do wi th the lockdown measures.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes I  see i t  is not  commissioned. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I t  is s igned but  not  commissioned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  must  just  check that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  you wi l l  bear wi th me.  Yes Chai r  

the intent ion is that  i t  wi l l  be at tested to  but  of  course the 

wi tness can conf i rm that  on oath now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The document.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Wel l  I  must  just  then say the 

document which appears or starts  at  page 1 of  Bundle FS1 

which purports to  be an aff idavi t  by Mr Jacobus Roets is 

admit ted and is to  marked as an exhibi t  and is to be marked 

as Exhibi t  TT1.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.   The expert  has 

examined a repor t  around which there wi l l  be no dispute.   I t  

is a report  dated February 2015 emanat ing f rom the 

Asbestos Project  and wi l l  comment on that .   That  is not  

at tached here to th is i t  should have been but  i t  is not  and i t  20 

wi l l  be referred to  in one of  the bundles.   I t  is  in  Bundle 8 – 

FS8 at  page 270.   The wi tness wi l l  be asked to ident i fy i t  

however.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And i t  is in f ront  of  you.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the – is that  the one that  should have 

been an annexure to his aff idavi t /  statement? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  does – i t  appears somewhere else? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In – okay in one of  the bundles.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And there is no quarrel  about  i ts  

authent ic i ty.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Or i ts ident i f icat ion and the wi tness 

wi l l  conf i rm that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so I  th ink to the extent  that  in his  

statement/aff idavi t  he refers to that  document maybe then 

one must make a note as to where i t  is to be found.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And for the record i t  is to be found at  

page 270 of  Bundle FS8 but  i t  may be that  i t  should be 20 

at tached to the f inal  aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja maybe… 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    When i t  is at tested and numbering 

arranged accordingly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  may be at tached maybe the last  page 
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of  the statement is 23 maybe i t  could 23a,  b,  c,  d.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Up to the end.   Ja and then i t  is more 

convenient .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you.   So before we start  Chai r  

may the wi tness be sworn? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja Okay al r ight .   P lease administer the 

oath or a ff i rmat ion.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Oath.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record? 10 

MR ROETS:   Jacobus Carel  Roets.    

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion tak ing the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR ROETS:   No – not .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath to be b inding on 

your conscience? 

MR ROETS:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 20 

God. 

MR ROETS:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know – you may be seated.   I  do 

not  know whether the t ranscr ibers would have heard the 

responses f rom the wi tness.   He did – ja they d id not  they 
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indicate they did not  hear the responses.   I  am going to ask 

that  you repeat the oath.   Please take off  your mask so that  

they can hear when you – and Mr Registrar keep the two – 

two and a hal f  meters distance.   Maybe he thought you were 

too c lose that  is why he put  on his mask.    

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record? 

MR ROETS:   Jacobus Carel  Roets.    

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion tak ing the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR ROETS:   I  do not .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath to be b inding on 

your conscience? 

MR ROETS:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MR ROETS:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Before addressing Mr Roets Chair  i f  I  20 

may just  emphasise one aspect  which emerges f rom the 

narrat ive as a whole and part icular ly f rom the evidence of  Mr 

Roets is that  not  only are we here deal ing wi th the duty to 

deal  fa i r ly t ransparent ly and cost  effect ively wi th state funds 

in procurement processes and in the execut ion of  contracts 
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under the auspices of  provincial  or  nat ional  government but  

we are also deal ing wi th  another  issue here Chai r.   The state 

and through the state the execut ive has a const i tut ional  duty 

to provide adequate housing and to safeguard the l ives of  

the inhabi tants of  the var ious communit ies in the country.   

The quest ion ar ises and you wi l l  hear f rom the evidences is  

whether these dut ies have been carr ied out .   We know that  

just  f rom the smal l  survey that  we have done in th is 

invest igat ion of  hundreds of  mi l l ions of  Rand being spent  in 

the manner in which has been al luded to in th is  case but  the 10 

roofs are st i l l  there and the roofs wi th al l  the ir  dangers are 

st i l l  there.   So whether the const i tut ional  duty of  the 

execut ive has been carr ied out  is  a quest ion that  wi l l  need to 

be addressed and we wi l l  address i t  in submission.   Mr Roets 

your occupat ion? 

MR ROETS:   Occupat ional  Hygienist .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right  and do you belong or are you a 

member of  an ent i ty which … 

MR ROETS:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And in terms of  which you carry out  20 

your work? 

MR ROETS:   Yes so we are accredi ted by SANAS in terms 

ISO 17020 and we approved inspect ion author i ty  by the 

Department of  Employment and Labour.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right  we wi l l  come to that  in  a l i t t le 
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more detai l  later.   But  you have been asked to give an 

opinion in relat ion to an asbestos audi t  conducted in the 

Free State by the Free State Department of  Human 

Sett lements in 2014/2015, is that  correct? 

MR ROETS:   Yes.   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What are your qual i f icat ions? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry do not  speak too far f rom the 

microphone Mr Roets so that  I  can hear.   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Would you tel l  the Chai r  p lease of  

your qual i f icat ions and experience? 10 

MR ROETS:   I  am an Occupat ion Hygienist .  I  have done 

Analyt ical  Chemist ry Diploma in Analyt ical  Chemist ry wi th 

the TUT and then also completed a professional  diploma in 

Occupat ional  Hygiene f rom a Bri t ish Inst i tute of  Occupat ional  

Hygiene.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And do you have any exper ience in  

re lat ion to asbestos in part icular? 

MR ROETS:   Yes for the past  th i r ty years more or less I  have 

been pract ic ing Occupat ional  Hygiene and since the start  of  

my business or career I  have worked for Transnet Chemical  20 

Services where I  have started deal ing wi th asbestos because 

they t ransported asbestos throughout South Af r ica.   So I  

started monitor ing and assessing and assist ing in the 

eradicat ion and removal  of  – of  spi l t  asbestos and cleanup of  

asbestos throughout South Afr ica.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight .  I f  you could… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Roets Mr Pretor ius asks you 

the quest ions but  you are tel l ing me the stor ies.   So make 

sure I  can see – see you as you tel l  the story because 

somet imes that  is important  to understand what you mean.  

MR ROETS:   Ja thanks Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You may address the Chair  as the 

Chai r.   Right  just  be a l i t t le more speci f ic there.   We wi l l  

come back to i t  in  a moment in more detai l  but  when you say 

you were involved in work relat ing to asbestos there are 10 

var ious stages of  that  work.   What are those stages? 

MR ROETS:   Yes Mr Chai r.   When we do asbestos work the 

f i rst  th ing is to actual ly ident i fy i f  there is a problem, the r isk 

associated wi th the asbestos and the work that  needs to be 

done.  So we wi l l  most  probably start  off  wi th doing an 

inventory or assessment of  asbestos in terms of  the 

regulat ions that  was promulgated.   Once that  you know 

where the asbestos is,  how much of  asbestos there is and 

what is the r isk – the potent ia l  r isk of  exposure then can – 

you can go and set  up a plan on how to mit igate or put  in the 20 

necessary cont ro ls for th is asbestos and i f  you need to 

remove asbestos because i t  is in a poor state or the r isk of  

exposure is higher than you need to draf t  a plan of  work and 

submit  i t  to Department of  Employment and Labour for  thei r  

not ice.   This plan is normal ly approved by an approved 
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inspect ion author i ty before any work is done.   And once this 

plan has been submit ted to the Department of  Employment  

and Labour they wi l l  –  or the work wi l l  commence af ter  about  

th i r teen to th i r ty days because of  the not ice per iods that  you 

need to provide.   And the work then that  fo l lows is  done by a 

registered asbestos cont ractor that  is appointed by the 

Department of  Employment and this appointment or  

regist rat ion used to be done annual ly but  nowadays the term 

or  the t ime is actual ly set  on three years – every three years 

we must reapply for their  approval .   These are the guys that  10 

wi l l  come in and under thei r  t ra in ing they wi l l  remove the 

asbestos in accordance with the approved p lan of  work in a 

safe and responsible manner and the waste wi l l  then be 

t ransported to a registered hazardous waste si te .   So i t  

cannot  be disposed of  in a normal  waste or  landf i l l  area and 

once that  i t  is deposi ted in that  hazardous waste s i te they 

wi l l  receive a safe d isposal  cert i f icate that  the waste is 

properly disposed of  and wi l l  be managed in t ime to come.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  I  understand you correct ly  in order 

to remove… 20 

MR ROETS:   And the i l lness is cal led asbestosis in the later  

stage of  your i l lness.   The f ine,  f ine asbestos,  blue asbestos 

that  you get  or  croc idol i te can penetrate r ight  through your 

lung and si t  on the chest  l in ing where i t  can cause 

mesothel ioma and that  is a cancer of  your chest  l in ing which 
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is a fatal  i l lness most  probably you wi l l  d ie wi th in one year 

af ter contract ing mesothel ioma.  There is also other i l lnesses 

l ike lung cancer that  can be caused and there are some 

papers current ly that  the people seem to think or the people 

that  invest igate these things and analyse i t  seems to think 

that  i t  can a lso cause colon cancer i f  people ingest  the 

asbestos by accident .   So these are the i l lnesses that  can be 

caused.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  understand f rom your paper that  

asbestos f ibres may be released f rom asbestos mater ia l  into 10 

the ai r  and then as you say they are ingested into the lungs.   

Once that  happens is i t  curable? 

MR ROETS:   Wel l  as we know and nowadays you can 

actual ly t ransplant  lungs into a person so i t  is possible i f  

asbestosis is ident i f ied in a person that  wi th the medical  

knowledge that  we have got  nowadays that  you can actual ly 

cure a person but  you wi l l  def in i te ly  give him a very hard l i fe 

because the symptoms of  asbestosis is that  the hard 

calci f ied areas in  the lungs wi l l  actual ly tear away f rom the 

sof t  t issue of  your lungs when you breathe and your lungs 20 

can start  b leeding.   So i t  is a very bad i l lness to have and 

what you actual ly die of  most  of  the t ime is a lack of  oxygen.   

Because what happens you decrease the effect ive gas 

exchange area in  your  lungs so where you need to pick up 

oxygen or uptake oxygen in your lungs and g ive off  carbon 
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d ioxide f rom your lungs that  area is get t ing smal ler and 

smal ler because of  the calci f icat ion of  the port ions of  your  

lung and so yes people are st i l l  dying today of  asbestosis 

and mesothel ioma. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  one is exposed to asbestos f ibre in  

the manner you have descr ibed is i t  l i fe threatening? 

MR ROETS:   I t  is l i fe threatening def in i te ly.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The prevalence of  asbestos as you 

have stated has given r ise to  concerns on the part  of  the 

legislature and legislat ion has been passed cont ro l l ing or  10 

presaging the eradicat ion of  asbestos,  is that  correct? 

MR ROETS:   Chai r  yes that  is t rue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You just  te l l  the Chai r  about  that  

because one of  the matters that  the Chair  wi l l  look at  is  

whether there has in th is case been compl iance wi th that  

legislat ion? 

MR ROETS:   Chai r  yes we have had asbestos regulat ions 

since 1983, 1987,  1989 and then i t  was changed again in  

2001 and 2002.  There was a l i t t le bi t  of  errata on the 

regulat ion that  i t  changed.  So the current  regulat ion that  we 20 

have got  is cal led the Asbestos Regulat ion 155 of  2002 and 

this piece of  regulat ion d i fferent  to the old of  1987/1989 

regulat ion that  we used to have also includes asbestos 

containing mater ia ls.   The di fference between raw asbestos 

or f r iable asbestos and asbestos containing mater ia l  is that  
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the f r iable asbestos is  asbestos as mined as i t  comes out  of  

a mine where i t  actual ly carr ies a very high r isk.  So i t  is not  

bonded in anything.   So the previous regulat ion speci f ical ly 

ta lked about the raw asbestos and handl ing and control l ing 

workers exposure to the f r iable or  the raw or  the h igh r isk 

mater ia ls.   In 2002 the new asbestos regulat ion also 

includes asbestos containing mater ia ls which is now the roof  

sheet ing and the facia boards and cei l ing panels and f loor  

t i les.   A l l  these mater ia ls that  contain a percentage of  

asbestos which may be anything f rom 14% up to 54% of  10 

asbestos depending on the manufacturer and so the 

regulat ion cal ls for certa in control  measures the employer  

and se l f -employed person that  he needs to cont ro l  any 

exposure.   I f  he employs any people to work on asbestos 

that  there needs to be some controls in p lace to ensure that  

he does not  inhale asbestos or he is not  exposing anybody in  

the publ ic to a irborne asbestos f ibres.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Let  us just  take a step back.   We 

omit ted to deal  wi th blue asbestos.   What is that  and how 

prevalent  was that  in South Afr ica and in South Afr ican 20 

bui ld ings? 

MR ROETS:   B lue asbestos or  also cal led crocidol i te  

asbestos is the most  hazardous form of  asbestos that  you do 

get .   Basica l ly because of  the aero dynamic propert ies of  the 

mater ia l  and the – the extent  of  the chemical  inertness of  
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th is asbestos mater ia l .   I t  breaks off  in very smal l  needle l ike 

f ibres.   I t  is very smal l  – less than 0.2 micro metres in s ize.   

So once that  i t  becomes ai rborne i t  stays in  the ai r  for  

extended periods of  t ime because of  the aero dynamic 

propert ies in i ts weight  so i t  does not  set t le out .   So once 

that  you have started wi th asbestos work and you emit ted 

this asbestos through your act iv i t ies i t  is possible that  th is 

f ibres can even blown f rom that  speci f ic work environment 

wi th a very far  d is tance f rom your work envi ronment.   So the 

blue asbestos is the f ibre that  is actual ly a st raight  needle 10 

l ike very smal l  f ibre that  can penetrate r ight  through your 

lung into the chest  l in ing and most ly th is is  the type of  

asbestos that  wi l l  cause mesothel ioma.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Now we deal ing in th is – sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink i t  is t ime for the lunch adjournment.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Oh yes thanks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  take the lunch adjournment  and we 

wi l l  resume as two o’clock.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES:   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  let  us cont inue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you,  Chai r.   Mr Roets,  we were 

deal ing wi th the legislat ion governing asbestos at  the t ime.   

As I  understand the posi t ion,  and to summarise,  pr ior to  
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1994,  there was legislat ion but  that  legislat ion did not  govern 

bui ld ing mater ia ls  which contained asbestos.  

MR ROETS:   Chai r,  yes,  that  is t rue.   The ’89 Regulat ion did 

not  cater  for asbestos containing mater ia ls.   So th is  was 

overseen during the assessment of  asbestos and used al l  

over South Afr ica to manufacture bui ld ing mater ia l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   So before 1994, there was 

nothing governing the use of  asbestos in a house? 

MR ROETS:   No,  not  asbestos contain ing mater ia ls  but  the 

f r iable asbestos.   I f  i t  was insulat ion mater ia l  that  they used 10 

around the geysers,  for example.   So that  would be 

legislated.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A lr ight .   And we are deal ing here 

mainly in th is case wi th low-cost  housing.   The houses that  

we are deal ing wi th,  when would they have been constructed 

in the manner? 

MR ROETS:   Wel l ,  we have been mining asbestos in South 

Afr ica for many years.   So manufactured al l  over these 

per iods.   So no speci f ic t ime of  manufacture but  ever since 

they actual ly started mining the asbestos and using i t  in  20 

bui ld ing mater ia ls ,  var ious houses have been made.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Perhaps,  mainly  pre-1994.   Would 

that  be fai r?  

MR ROETS:   Even af ter 1994 to some extent  because there 

was not  legislat ion prevent ing the bui ld ing wi th asbestos 



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 83 of 141 
 

containing mater ia ls up unt i l  2001.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And when were the regulat ions 

promulgated that  deal t  wi th asbestos containing mater ia ls,  

including mater ia ls used in houses? 

MR ROETS:   The regulat ion,  the Asbestos Regulat ion 155 of  

2002,  was promulgated in February 2002.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   And then the steps taken 

against  asbestos got  more str ingent ,  and what happened in 

2004? 

MR ROETS:   In 2004,  roundabout  2004,  the Envi ronmental  10 

Minister at  that  t ime banned the use of  any new asbestos,  

th is asbestos contain ing mater ia ls.   So,  yes,  i t  was more 

st r ingent .    

 You are not  al lowed to use anymore asbestos in new 

products and then the t ransport  of  asbestos and then the use 

in any bui ld ing mater ia ls was banned at  that  stage.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And important ly for the present  case,  

what happened in 2008? 

MR ROETS:   In  2008,  was the physical  let ter that  was 

wri t ten by the then Minister Marth inus van Schalkwyk who 20 

banned the asbestos or the use of  asbestos and also 

suggested that  we should start  implement ing a phase-out  

plan for  asbestos and t ry to eradicate asbestos i f  i t  is 

maintained and i f  you can actual ly  remove i t ,  i t  should be 

removed.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   But  was this a suggest ion,  a  

requi rement? 

MR ROETS:   A wri t ten . . . [ indist inct ]  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   [ Indist inct ]  requisi te? 

MR ROETS:   Ja,  a wr i t ten up in regulat ion on the 

environmental  s ide.   So i f  we understand i t ,  we are deal ing 

wi th two departments.    

 We are deal ing wi th the Department of  Employment and 

Labour on the one side and we are deal ing wi th the 

Department of  Envi ronmental  Affai rs on the other side.   So i t  10 

is two di fferent  pieces of  legislat ion al l  together.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   We may have to obtain that  

for the benef i t  of  the Chai r  but  i t  seems to me that  there was 

a level  of  requirement  f rom 2008 that  asbestos be eradicated 

f rom bui ld ings.  

MR ROETS:   Ja.   Or ei ther maintained in a wel l -maintained 

condi t ion.   Kept  in  a wel l -maintained condi t ion Chai r.   Or l ike 

I  said,  i t  should be removed, i f  at  a l l  possible,  that  i t  be 

removed but  in terms of  the Labour Regulat ions,  i t  was not . . .  

i t  is not  banned at  th is stage even now.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Was any per iod suggested or  

requi red in th is phase-out  plan? 

MR ROETS:   There was some suggest ions in the 

communicat ion that  th is phase-out  plan should be over a 

per iod of  ten years as a potent ia l  t imef rame.  Yes,  Chai r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   So the requi rement to  remove 

insofar as i t  existed in regulat ions or di rect ives,  requi red the 

removal  to take place or the securing of  the asbestos 

mater ia l  to take place by 2018? 

MR ROETS:   That  is correct .   That  wi l l  be correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Now to become more part icular or  

more detai led in relat ion to  the facts of  these case.   You deal  

in paragraph 22 wi th the process and the requi rements for  

the ident i f icat ion of  the asbestos.   Please te l l  the Chair  

about  that .  10 

MR ROETS:   In terms of  the Asbestos Regulat ion,  as the 

Regulat ion 155 of  2003,  i t  requi res in  Sect ion 7 or 

Regulat ion 7 that  an inventory should be draf ted.    

 A lso speaking about  i t  in Regulat ion 14 that  th is 

inventory should be draf ted by six-months af ter the 

promulgat ion of  th is regulat ion which is August  2002.  

 Every employer or sel f -employed person is supposed to 

draf t  an inventory or do an assessment of  al l  the asbestos 

on his property,  the condi t ion of  the asbestos,  the locat ion of  

the asbestos,  how much or quant i ty  of  the asbestos,  what is  20 

the condi t ion of  such asbestos,  and what is the potent ia l  

exposure hazard to people in the envi ronment,  to the 

res idents,  to the employees.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  

MR ROETS:   And this is a record.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   My quest ions,  perhaps,  was not  too 

clear Mr Roets.   How di ff icul t  is i t  to ident i fy asbestos in a 

bui ld ing wi th any degree of  accuracy? 

MR ROETS:   Okay.   To actual ly ident i fy asbestos,  i t  is a 

destruct ive test .   So there is no instrumentat ion that  you can 

used to ident i fy asbestos,  press i t  up against  a panel  and i t  

wi l l  say that  th is is asbestos.    

 So i t  is a physica l  dest ruct ive test .   You need to break 

off  a piece of  th is mater ia l  and send i t  for analyses.   For a 

t rained eye you can wi th some certainty say that  i t  is  10 

asbestos because of  the condi t ion.    

 We wi l l  look an amount of  f ibres where i t  is in  the 

asbestos conta ining mater ia l .    

 You can say that  th is mater ia l  is  suspected of  be ing 

asbestos containing mater ia l  but  to  total ly posi t ively  ident i fy 

any such mater ia l ,  there is an analyt ical  way,  a technical  way 

that  we need to analyse the samples to posi t ively ident i fy.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Can one do i t  by reference to a 

digi ta l  map? 

MR ROETS:   No,  then the . . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Google Maps for example? 

MR ROETS:   No def in i te ly not .   The reason why I  am saying 

this is,  because even at  a later stage Chai r,  asbestos was in 

the same plant  manufactured or as the new tech mater ia l  

that  is nowadays used,  i t  has got  the same prof i le as the old 
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asbestos panels.    

 So i t  is possible that  i f  there was any renovat ions done 

in one of  these houses,  you wi l l  def in i te ly not  pick i t  up.   So 

you cannot say wi th certainty f rom a picture that  th is is 

asbestos.    

 You can certainly  say that  there is  a prof i le.   We cal l  i t  

the Big Six Prof i le on the big roof  sheets.   So you can 

recognise a prof i le but  you cannot posi t ively ident i fy  

asbestos in that  way.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  I  . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   What are the probabi l i t ies that  

you would be r ight  i f  you look at ,  for  example,  the roof  of  a 

house?  What are the probabi l i t ies that  you wi l l  get  i t  r ight  i f  

you say that  has got  asbestos? 

MR ROETS:   Chair,  in th is si tuat ion i f  i t  is low-cost  housing 

and you have done some homework in terms of  maintenance 

and repairs to any of  these mater ia ls,  there is a big 

possibi l i ty that  you can actual ly ident i fy wi th some certainty 

that  i t  is asbestos mater ia l  or suspected mater ia ls.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So are you saying that  i f  you have not 20 

done any work in relat ion to a part icular house or a 

part icular set  of  houses,  i t  would not  be appropriate to just  

walk and look at  the roof  and say,  “Okay,  that  one is 

asbestos.   That  one is not  asbestos”.  

MR ROETS:   Chair,  i f  i t  c lear ly says i t  in the document that  
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that  is asbestos,  I  would not  go as far because,  l ike I  said,  

there is  a possib i l i ty  of  maintenance and replacement wi th 

other mater ia ls,  as wel l  as,  the possibi l i ty of  other asbestos 

containing mater ia ls wi thin the same property,  l ike cei l ing 

panels and botched wal ls and window si l ls,  which wi l l  

def in i te ly not  be ident i f ied by just  looking at  i t  f rom the 

outside.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So are you. . .  would you say that  

professional ly i t  could not  be a rel iable way of  ident i fy ing 

houses that  have got  asbestos or th is asbestos on the roof  10 

to just  look at  the roof  wi th a naked eye?  Or are you saying,  

i t  can be rel iable but  not  al l  the t ime.  What do you say about  

that  way of  do ing things? 

MR ROETS:   Chair,  thanks.   Yes,  there is a possibi l i ty that  

you can make a good est imat ion of  quant i ty of  asbestos or 

asbestos containing sheets or something that  looks l ike 

asbestos by doing that  way,  but  the whole purpose of  the 

assessment in terms of  the legislat ion,  is to look at  the r isk,  

the potent ia l  r isk because of  previous damage to these 

panels.    20 

 I t  has been weathered and there is a  bigger r isk now 

because the f ibres have actual ly loosened and avai lable to  

become airborne.    

 So one needs to have a close inspect ion of  th is mater ia l  

to do a proper inventory and assessment.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And probably your  professional  v iew is that  

the way to do that  would be to  send i t  for test ing or 

something? 

MR ROETS:   Chai r,  yes.   What we normal ly do f rom an 

assessment point  of  v iew, is to  go and look at  th is mater ia l ,  

assess i t .    

 And look at  the condi t ion and i f  i t  is cei l ing panels,  for  

example,  we would break off  a piece and send i t  for analyses 

to make sure that  i t  is asbestos or not .  

 So,  yes,  i t  is very helpful  i f  you can quant i fy and wri te 10 

up al l  the asbestos mater ia l  on a proper bi l l  of  quant i t ies 

because that  wi l l  assist  you in later removal  plans and 

cost ing of  such a project .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l ,  several  points ar ise out  of  that  

and your evidence af ter the long adjournment.   Fi rst  point  is,  

what is the effect iveness of  an aer ial  photographic view,  

such as one would get  on a computer,  of  a suburb?  Can that  

be rel ied on to ident i fy asbestos roofs? 

MR ROETS:   L ike I  said Chai r,  the only th ing that  you wi l l  20 

achieve by that  is to get  an assessment perspect ive of  

asbestos conta ining mater ia ls.   You can see the prof i le but  

apart  f rom that ,  i t  does not  help you any. . .  in actual ly 

assessing the condi t ion of  the asbestos.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   The second point  is.   I f  I  
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stand outs ide the house and I  take a photograph on an iPad,  

what would the posi t ion then be? 

MR ROETS:   I t  is  st i l l  the same issue Chai r,  that  you cannot 

actual ly ta lk to the quant i ty,  as wel l  as,  the qual i ty of  the 

asbestos or the condi t ion and i t  w i l l  not  assist  in any way of  

eradicat ing asbestos or set t ing up a bi l l  of  quant i t ies.    

 The purpose of  doing a proper assessment is to actual ly 

pr ior i t ise asbestos conta ining mater ia ls that  is in  a poor  

condi t ion so that  they can be removed or that  can be 

removed at  an ear ly stage so that  the cost  can be spread 10 

over a per iod of  t ime that  is reasonable.    

 Maybe a f ive or a ten year phase-out  plan and I  th ink 

that  is the reasoning behind the legislat ion.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Oh,  I  understand you to be saying Mr 

Roets that ,  i t  is one thing to say that  house has an asbestos 

roof .   I t  is qui te another th ing to assess for the purposes of  

eradicat ion,  a program of  eradicat ion,  the condi t ion of  the 

house for the purposes of  planning eradicat ion? 

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chai r.   I  th ink the main purpose of  the 

legislat ion is to ensure that  the people,  the residents of  that  20 

property are safe,  remain safe and there is no r isk of  

exposure.    

 So i f  you just  go around to ident i fy for potent ia l  asbestos 

mater ia ls,  i t  wi l l  not  assist  in the f inal  purpose of  such an 

assessment.   I t  is to see what is the r isk.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  understand your  evidence to say too 

that  i t  is not  only the roof  but  i t  is the contents of  the house 

that  need to be ident i f ied and assessed? 

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chai r.   That  is the purpose.   From 

experience we can see that ,  for  example. . .  i f  I  can use 

another example.   I f  there is a hai ls torm that  comes through 

some areas,  you wi l l  see that  most  of  the damages are in the 

val ley of  these b ig six panels.  

 And i t  is due to  the fact  that  the weathering over a 

per iod of  t ime has caused these panels to  wear out ,  a l i t t le 10 

bi t  th inner and thinner,  and then hai l  wi l l  damage these 

asbestos panels.    

 And so when you do the assessment,  you would want  to 

see i f  there are any cracks in the panels,  what  is the 

condi t ion,  is there st i l l  one cent imetre thick mater ia l ,  and 

that  wi l l  a l l  g ive you an indicat ion what is the potent ia l  r isk 

in that  house.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And I  understand that  any rat ional  

programme with asbestos eradicat ion involves pr ior i t isat ion 

exercise where you take the high-r isk asbestos contain ing 20 

mater ia ls as a pr ior i ty  and the lower-r isk as. . .  further  down 

the l ine.   Am I  correct? 

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chai r.   You are def in i te ly correct .   The 

whole purpose of  the regulat ion in terms of  The Occupat ion,  

Heal th and Safety Act ,  not  only the Asbestos Regulat ion but  
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any regulat ion connected to i t ,  is to control  the r isk to 

people,  residents,  employees that  work in  that  environment  

and. . .    

 So in th is case,  the purpose would be to remove the 

mater ia l  that  is now as this has got  a b ig r isk to cause 

exposure and then over a per iod of  t ime to phase out  al l  the 

asbestos in an eradicat ion programme. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R ight .   Now this issue wi l l  come up 

later when you deal  wi th the repor t  but  when one comes to 

the stage of  removal  and disposal ,  in other  words,  10 

eradicat ion of  asbestos,  let  us say in a house,  who is 

empowered or author ised to do that  work? 

MR ROETS:   In terms of  the legislat ion,  asbestos work is 

done by a registered asbestos cont ractor Chai r.   And these 

contractors are registered wi th the Department of  

Employment and Labour.  

 And they go through a screening process,  submit t ing the 

necessary documentat ion to ensure that  the people that  are 

doing this asbestos work is wel l  educated.    

 They t rain.   They go for a medical . . .  working on a 20 

heights t raining and these are the cont ractors that  are 

approved to work wi th asbestos and remove asbestos and 

disposal  wi th safety.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  th ink you have already told the 

Chair  that  when you remove, you release or i t  generate 
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f ibres and that  i t  creates a danger for the publ ic and the 

workers themselves.  

MR ROETS:   [No audible reply]  [Microphone not  switched 

on. ]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   How would you then conduct  an 

assessment?  We are going back now a stage f rom the 

removal?   

 I  th ink you have said qui te clear ly  that  the assessment  

enables a proper eradicat ion process and certain . . .  the 

assessment must  have certain features or qual i f icat ions that  10 

wi l l  enable the removal  to take place and you wi l l  comment 

on the report  that  was generated in th is matter against  that  

background.   

 But  how would you properly in terms of  the relevant  

regulat ions conduct  an assessment?  Then i f  you could just  

br ief ly out l ine the steps.  

MR ROETS:   What the normal assessment would be. . .  would 

involve is to do a desktop study f i rst ly,  to ident i fy when this  

asbestos or mater ia l  covering roof  would have been placed 

on i t ,  more or less.    20 

 So that  one can get  an idea of  the t imef rame that  the 

mater ia l  was p laced on the roof .   The second opt ion would 

be. . .  wel l ,  the standard is actual ly go to the si te and 

invest igate.   Get access to the si tes.    

 Somet imes i t  is d i ff icul t  i f  i t  is houses because you need 
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to get  access to the house to actual ly go inside and view the 

house f rom the inside to  assess the condi t ion of  th is 

mater ia l .    

 And l ike I  have said previously,  the bui ld ing mater ia l  or  

the roof  sheets used to be manufactured up to 54% of 

asbestos in cement mater ia ls.    

 So i f  there is a high concent rat ion of  asbestos in th is  

bui ld ing mater ia l ,  obviously,  the r isk,  potent ia l  r isk of  

exposure wi l l  be h igher.    

 And i f  th is mater ia l  is then in a poor state of  10 

maintenance,  i t  w i l l  mean that  the panels can break easi ly  

and you need to assess this in terms of  your procedures that 

you wi l l  fo l low to remove the asbestos.  

 So the contents of  my assessment would be a close 

visual  inspect ion,  taking of  a sample to assess what is the 

amount of  asbestos and the potent ia l  r isk wi thin th is 

mater ia l .  

 And then also look at  the condi t ion and pr ior i t ise which 

mater ia ls are the worst  and then put  up a plan to star t  taking 

out  the higher-r isk mater ia ls.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The report  that  you would draf t  af ter 

your  inspect ion ident i f icat ion and assessment,  what qual i t ies 

would that  report  have to have for i t  to be a use in any 

eradicat ion programme? 

MR ROETS:   Chai r,  through the legislat ion,  there is a 
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guidance document out  that  out l ines the format of  such a 

report ,  certain requirements that  needs to  be on the report  

l ike that  p lus an example of  what informat ion is requi red out  

of  th is report .    

 L ike I  have said previously,  the locat ion of  any such 

asbestos,  more or less,  an est imat ion of  the quant i ty of  the 

asbestos,  what is the condi t ion of  the asbestos,  what type of  

asbestos i t  is,  what controls have you got  in place al ready to 

mit igate the potent ia l  exposure,  and what  lack or 

recommendat ions are there to maintain the asbestos in a 10 

good condi t ion.  

 So al l  th is informat ion wi l l  be captured on an off ic ia l  

record that  needs to be obtained and kept  for 40-years.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You say in paragraph 29.11 that  your  

company does work at  a f lat  rate per day in re lat ion to 

asbestos ident i f icat ion assessment and report .   Is that  

correct? 

MR ROETS:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What is that  rate per day? 

MR ROETS:   Current ly,  we are charging R 3000,00 a day,  20 

f lat  rate.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And how many houses can you do in  

a day on your requirements that  you have set  out  in your  

statement? 

MR ROETS:   Chairman, in terms of  th is pro ject ,  i t  was done 
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on the low-cost  housing,  the est imat ion of  anything between 

20 m² and roughly about  40 m².   I  would suggest  that  we can 

do per  person about ten houses a proper assessment per 

day.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So that  would be,  i f  my ar i thmet ic  is 

correct ,  approximately R 300,00 per uni t?  

MR ROETS:   Roughly.   Yes,  Chai r.   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you say,  you would have to add 

to that  administ rat ion,  t ravel  and accommodat ion costs? 

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chai r.   We have got  a basic cost  of  10 

administ rat ion fee of  also R 3000,00 per day,  for example,  

an inventory report .   So that  can be spl i t  amongst  ten 

houses.   So another R 300,00.   So roughly about R 600,00 

for the assessment,  as wel l  as,  the admin costs towards that .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R ight .   In re lat ion Chai r,  the asbestos 

f rom the Free State,  you were approached by the 

invest igators and asked to look at  and comment on certain 

documentat ion.  

MR ROETS:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The pr incip le document is your report  20 

of  2n d February 2015 which is in Bundle FS8 at  page 270 but  

that  document is before you.   Is that  the document you have 

looked at? 

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chai r.   That  is the document.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You say you have worked in th is  
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industry for some t ime, decades,  in fact .   Have you come 

across B lackhead Consul t ing (Pty)  Limited in the course of  

your work? 

MR ROETS:   Never Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And have you come across Diamond 

Hi l l  Trading 71 (Pty) Limited? 

MR ROETS:   Never Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   What are the chances that  those ent i t ies,  

maybe part icular ly Blackhead, could be qui te act ive in the 10 

industry wi thout  you knowing? 

MR ROETS:   Chai rperson,  current ly  I  th ink there is around.. .  

the last  f igures I  have seen,  there are around 290 odd 

registered asbestos cont ractors in the count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ROETS:   I  do not  know and do not  work for al l  of  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ROETS:   So I  cannot say that  they are not  act ive in the 

industry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR ROETS:   I  am not  aware of  i t .   I  have been involved in 

the industry wi th var ious role-players in the legislat ion and 

certainly in my deal ings,  I  have never run across any of  their  

names.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you able to  say in the l ight  of  how 
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much t ime, how many years you have spent  in the industry 

and in the l ight  o f  what I  conceded to be high-prof i le status 

that  you seem to have in the indust ry because you told me 

about your involvement in the draf t ing of  regulat ions and so 

on?   

 Are you able to  say whether out  of  those. . .  I  th ink you 

have said three hundred and something ent i t ies involved in 

the whole country,  are you able to say you are fami l iar wi th a 

certain percentage of  those that  are qui te act ive?  Or is 

something d i ff icu l t  to say? 10 

MR ROETS:   Chai rperson,  I  th ink i t  is qui te di ff icul t  to  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is di ff icul t ,  yes.   Okay.  

MR ROETS:   There are so many. . .  I ,  certainly,  have deal t  in 

di fferent  indust r ies wi th a lot  of  asbestos cont ractors,  as wel l  

as,  people involved in draf t ing such inventor ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR ROETS:   One need to have a look at  the legisla t ion.   I t  

does not  cal l  for a speci f ic person or ent i ty or body to th is 

inventory.   I t  cal ls  for a competent  person to do such.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MR ROETS:   So i t  is also possible that  i f  th is ent i ty is 

competent ,  they know enough about asbestos,  that  they do 

not  need to be registered as an asbestos contractor.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  

MR ROETS:   But  as soon as they are removing or handl ing 
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asbestos,  they def in i te ly must  be registered.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You were asked to comment  on the 

uni t  pr ice of  R 850,00 for assessment and also the proposed 

cost  for the assessment of  R 1 350,00.   That  Chai r  was the 

or ig inal  pr ice proposed in the proposal  to the Gauteng 

Department of  Human Sett lements.  

 But  I  understand you are unable to comment on that 

because you have not  seen the work clear ly def ined.  

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chai rperson.   When I  actual ly had a look 10 

through the documentat ion provided to me, I  was provided 

wi th one report ,  f inal  report ,  as wel l  as,  f ive examples of  

assessments that  the company had done and also the 

or ig inal  proposal  that  was provided by the municipal i ty.  

 And in these documents,  I  do not  th ink I  have had 

enough informat ion to make a clear statement about  the 

costs,  th is thousand odd three hundred rands.    

 I t  certainly looked a l i t t le bi t  h igh in  terms of  the amount 

of  houses that  needed to be assessed but . . .  ja,  I  do not  th ink 

I  had enough informat ion.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The state of  the work that  was 

requi red,  did  you look through the documentat ion to learn 

what that  scope was in any deta i l?  

MR ROETS:   Yes,  Chairperson.   At  the t ime when I  assessed 

and went through the documentat ion,  i t  was clear that  there 
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was very l i t t le in  terms of  def in ing the words “audi t  and 

assess” and for me that  was problemat ic  and to  look  in  th is  

f ina l  document  i f  they  ac tua l l y  ach ieved o r  done tha t  was 

requ i red  in  the  or ig ina l  quote ,  so  tha t  was one  o f  the  

prob lems,  tha t  the  te rms were  no t  de f ined proper ly  in  the  

document .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  your  op in ion  were  they de f ined 

su f f i c ien t ly  to  a l l ow,  i f  they  were  compl ied  w i th ,  a  p roper  

p rogramme o f  e rad ica t ion?  

MR ROETS:    Even the  proper  e rad ica t ion  purpose or  10 

proposa l ,  one needs to  have a  proper  b i l l  o f  quan t i t ies  to  

quote  on  the  sa id  pro jec t  o f  abatement  o r  remova l  o f  o r  

e rad ica t ion  o f  asbestos  in  the  a rea.   So i f  you  can  assess  

and proper ly  de f ine  the  amount  o f  asbestos  you can 

ac tua l l y  g i ve  a  p r ice ,  a  cost ing  to  tha t .   I f  you  have not  

done tha t ,  you have not  assessed the  r i sk  o f  po ten t ia l  

exposure ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  d i f f i cu l t  to  pu t  up  a  p roposa l  on  

the  erad ica t ion  i f  you  do not  have tha t  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac tua l l y,  i f  you  have not  done tha t ,  

wou ld  the  pos i t ion  no t  be  tha t  you have not  assessed? 20 

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  my who le  a rgument  i s  tha t  

the  documenta t ion  tha t  was p laced  in  f ron t  o f  me and g iven 

as  examples ,  I  can f ind  –  I  f ind  tha t  tha t  i s  no t  enough 

in fo rmat ion  to  –  ca l l  i t  a  p roper  assessment  in  te rms o f  the  

cur ren t  regu la t ions,  what  must  be  in  an  assessment ,  a  



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 101 of 141 
 

p roper  assessment ,  and i t  w i l l  a lso  h inder  the  phase where  

asbestos  needs to  be  abated a t  a  la te r  s tage or  removed a t  

a  la te r  s tage because there  is  de f in i te ly  no  b i l l  o f  

quant i t ies  tha t  w i l l  h inder  the  process fu r ther  on .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Be fore  you go on and  fo r  the  

benef i t  o f  those o f  us  who are  no t  bu i ld ing  exper t s ,  what  i s  

a  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies?  

MR ROETS:    B i l l  o f  quant i t ies ,  Cha i r,  i s  the  amount  o f  

asbestos ,  amoun t  o f  houses,  amount  o f  asbestos  in  each  

house and tha t  you need to  de f ine  in  te rms o f  square  10 

meterage,  in  te rms o f  the  we igh t  o f  asbestos  because i t  

comes in to  p lay  when you have to  ca l cu la te  the  amount  o f  

t rave l l ing  tha t  you need to  do  in  te rms o f  t ranspor t ing  th is  

waste  to  hazardous waste  s i te ,  the  t ime spent  on  the  s i te ,  

the  amount  o f  labour  tha t  you need to  employ  to  remove 

the  asbestos  and the  amount  o f  persona l  p ro tec t i ve  

equ ipment  tha t  needs to  be  prov ided,  accommodat ion  

maybe in  tha t  a rea ,  b ins  tha t  you need to  o rgan ise  to  p lace  

th is  asbestos  waste  in  fo r  the  t ranspor ta t ion  as  we l l  as  the  

cost  fo r  the  f ina l  and sa fe  d isposa l  o f  the  asbestos ,  so  a l l  20 

these th ings are  pub l i shed in  what  we use as  an  inventory,  

we jus t  ca l l  tha t  a  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies ,  we can ac tua l l y  send  

and c i r cu la te  tha t  to  po ten t ia l  reg is te red asbestos  

cont rac tors  so  tha t  they can ac tua l l y  pu t  up  a  pr ice  to  

remove or  e rad ica te  the  asbestos .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  in fo rmat ion ,  was tha t  

conta ined in  the  repor t?  

MR ROETS:    Cha i r,  th rough the  f i ve  examples  tha t  I  had 

f rom the  d i f fe ren t  assessments  tha t  they have done,  no ,  

de f in i te ly  no t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And in  o rder  to  ob ta in  tha t  

in fo rmat ion  wou ld  one need to  do  another  assessment?  

MR ROETS:    Cha i r,  yes ,  th is  assessment  w i l l  de f in i te ly  

have to  be  redone to  ge t  a  p roper  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies  to  

enab le  a  tender  p rocess to  remove  asbestos .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say in  paragraph 34.2  tha t  the  

ou tput  f rom the  pro jec t  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about  today is  a  

repor t .   What  does tha t  repor t  te l l  you?  

MR ROETS:    Cha i r,  the  repor t  tha t  I  had in  f ron t  o f  me 

dated the  2  February  2015,  in  te rms o f  my v iew o f  th is ,  i t  i s  

a  scop ing  repor t  o f  the  po tent ia l  p rob lem o f  asbestos  in  a  

reg ion  or  a  d is t r i c t  and tha t  i s  as  fa r  as  i t  goes.   I t  does 

not  g ive  any c lea r  ind ica t ion  o f  how much asbestos  there  i s  

and what  i s  the  po tent ia l  r i sk  to  the  res idents  or  peop le  in  

the  pub l i c  and does not  g ive  any ind ica t ion  about  tha t .   So 20 

ja ,  in  te rms o f  p roper  assessment ,  I  wou ld  say tha t  th is  i s  

no t  a  p roper  document  tha t  can be used.   Maybe on a  h igh  

leve l  fo r  par l iament  i t  m igh t  be  a  good document  fo r  them 

to  use to  see what  i s  the  po ten t ia l  r i sk  bu t  in  te rms o f  

e rad ica t ion ,  de f in i te ly  no t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Now what  i s  the  s ign i f i cance o f  

es tab l i sh ing  the  leve l  o f  harmfu lness or  danger  to  the  

occupants  o f  the  house to  no t  assess how se r ious the  

damage is  o r  the  r i sk  to  the  res idents?   What  i s  the 

impor tance o f  no t  do ing  tha t  fo r  purposes o f  the  sa fe ty  o f  

the  peop le  who l i ve  in  the  house?   

In  o ther  words,  i f  you  are  supposed to  assess the  

houses fo r  asbes tos  and you do not  do  tha t ,  you jus t  s tand 

in  the  s t ree t  and  have a  look a t  the  roo f  and not  ac tua l l y  

go  and b reak i t ,  I  th ink  you sa id ,  o r  some p ieces and take  10 

them to  where  they a re  supposed to  be  tes ted .  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  there  i s  cer ta in ly  some pros  and cons 

do ing  the  assessment .   When we phys i ca l l y  go  ou t  and do 

an assessment  we t ry  to  remove a  p iece in  a reas where  i t  

cannot  harm to  the  res idents  and the  procedure  wou ld  ca l l  

fo r  new ce i l ing ,  the  por t ion  where  you ac tua l l y  removed 

and b roken out  a  p iece  to  sea l  i t  so  tha t  you do not  cause  

add i t iona l  r i sk  to  the  res idents .    

But  in  te rms o f  your  quest ion ,  i t  is  a lso  a  mat te r  o f  

educat ion  o f  the  peop le  tha t  s tay  in  a  res idence l i ke  tha t .   20 

So i f  the  commun i ty  d id  no t  p roper ly  educate  the  res idents  

o f  a  p roper ty  l i ke  tha t  on  the  po tent ia l  r i sk  and exposure  

r i sk  and sources o f  asbestos  f ib res  wh i le  s tay ing  in  a 

house you w i l l  f ind  some o f  the  res idents  m ight  be  busy  

w i th  a l te ra t ions  themse lves remov ing  some asbestos  
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because o f  damage and they d id  no t  ma in ta in  i t  p roper l y  in  

the  past .    

So in  th is  p roposa l  document  you w i l l  see  words  

l i ke  asbestos  con ta in ing  rubb le ,  mean ing  s tu f f  tha t  peop le  

a l ready removed  f rom the i r  houses and put  on  s idewalks  

and so  on ,  so  th is  asbestos  is  l y i ng ,  there  is  a  po ten t ia l  o f  

veh ic les  t rave l l ing  and pu lver i z ing  th is  mater ia l  l y ing  in  the 

road or  on  the  s idewalks  or  dead spaces and then 

pu lver i s ing  and caus ing  add i t iona l  exposure .  

So i f  you  leave  the  asbestos  as  is ,  you do no t  10 

educate  the  res idents  on  po tent ia l  r i sk  and te l l  them not  to  

d r i l l  i n to  the  asbestos  and put  up  f i x tu re  and put  in  any 

a l te ra t ions or  make a l te ra t ions to  these mater ia ls ,  t here  is  

a  r i sk  tha t  the  f ib res  may be  re leased dur ing  these  

processes and peop le  w i l l  be  exposed,  they w i l l  inha le  the  

f ib res .   And espec ia l l y  in  cer ta in  a reas  l i ke  the  Nor thern  

Cape where  the  croc ido l i te  o r  the  b lue  asbestos  have been  

mined,  there  is  th is  add i t i ve  e f fec t ,  so  in  the  env i ronment  

there  i s  po ten t ia l l y  a l ready some f ib res  and i f  you then  

a lso  go  b reak pane ls  in  the  sand and the  break pane ls  you 20 

w i l l  add to  tha t  r i sk  o f  exposure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And there  was a  re fe rence I  th ink  in  the  

documents  to  the  scope o f  the  work  be ing  aud i t  and  

assess,  I  th ink  or  assessed and  aud i t ,  I  th ink  aud i t  and  

assess.   The aud i t  par t  I  take  i t  means ident i f y  the  houses  
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and te l l  us  how many or  wh ich  ones,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR ROETS:    Ja .   Yes,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And assess is  then what  you  

have…[ in tervenes]  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  say tha t  the  f i rs t  por t ion  

on  the  s tu f f  they  have done might  be  the  f i rs t  por t ion ,  the  

aud i t  po r t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The aud i t ing  por t ion  bu t  no t  the  

assessment .  

MR ROETS:    Bu t  the  assessment  por t ion  is  lack ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Was not  done.  

MR ROETS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P roper l y  o r  a t  a l l .  

MR ROETS:    Yes ,  I  wou ld  say so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 35 you summar i se  

what  m ight  be  your  ev idence in  re la t ion  to  assessment  you 

say the  cond i t ion  o f  the  roo f  needs to  be  looked a t ,  you 

need to  es tab l i sh  how many res idences a re  a t  h igh  r i sk  o f  

po ten t ia l  exposure ,  what  houses shou ld  be  pr io r i t i sed  fo r  20 

erad ica t ion  and in  add i t ion  to  tha t  the  spec i f i c  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  a  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies  wou ld  prov ide ,  how much asbestos ,  

where ,  in  what  cond i t ion  and  how embedded  in  the  

res idence i t  m igh t  be .  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  tha t  i s  t rue ,  Cha i r.   I t  w i l l  de f in i te ly  
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ass is t  in  sp read ing  the  cost  over  a  per iod  o f  t ime.   We can  

pr io r i t i se  h igh  r i sk  a reas in  te rms o f  asbestos  tha t  was 

maybe put  up  f i rs t  o r  res idence when he  is  busy  

renovat ing ,  do ing  some repa i rs  to  the i r  roo fs  o r  a l ready  

remov ing  asbestos  pane ls  and break ing  i t .    

So  th is  assessment  wou ld  be  used  to  ident i f y  these  

houses o r  res idence or  so  tha t  they can be comple ted  f i rs t  

o r  hand led  f i rs t  and then the  res t ,  pane ls  tha t  i s  in  a  good 

cond i t ion ,  maybe there  was a  p lan  by  the  res idents  to  pa in t  

and sea l  the  pane ls  p roper l y  and n ice ly.   Th i s  w i l l  be  a  low  10 

r i sk  and they can be dea l t  w i th  a t  a  la te r  s tage.   So you 

can sp read the  costs  o f  e rad ica t ion  over  a  per iod  o f  t ime.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You are  asked a  quest ion  by  the 

invest iga to rs  and  you record  tha t  in  the  repor t :  

“Does count ing  houses w i th  asbestos  roo fs  jus t i f y  

the  cost  o f  R850 per  un i t? ”  

And you then answer  tha t  by  say ing :  

“Wel l ,  there  i s  a  lo t  more  invo l ved in  a  proper  

assessment . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR ROETS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   As  prev ious ly  sa id  

tha t  we need to  assess the  cond i t ion  o f  th is  asbestos  to  do  

a  proper  assessment ,  to  look  a t  any cracks,  any 

renovat ions,  any prev ious remova l .   in  te rms o f  the  cur ren t  

regu la t ion  i t  ta lks  about  we l l -ma in ta ined cond i t ion  and 
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sea led .   So i f  you  want  to  keep in  a  we l l -ma in ta ined 

cond i t ion  you need to  remove a l l  mou ld  and t ry  t o  p revent  

mou ld  growth  wh ich  w i l l  weaken the  asbestos .   So th is ,  a l l  

these th ings w i l l  be  looked du r ing  an  assessment  o f  such  

asbestos  prob lems.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Then you were  asked  by  the  

invest iga to rs  and  you put  i t  in  your  repor t ,  the  pr ice  o f  

R32 760,  wh ich  was the  pr ice  i n  the  p roposa l  fo r  the  

remova l  o f  asbestos  in  th is  case.  

MR ROETS:    Yes .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you were  asked to  comment  on  

tha t .   The ca lcu la t ions tha t  you  do,  do  they assume a  

proper  assessment?  

MR ROETS:    Yes ,  Cha i r,  the  ca lcu la t ion  tha t  I  d id  i s  tak ing  

in to  cons idera t ion  tha t  there  is  a  p roper  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies  

se t  ou t  to  the  amount  o f  asbestos  in  each area.   What  i s  

the  d is tances tha t  one need to  t rave l  be tween these areas  

tha t  w i l l  a l l  he lp  and ass i s t  you to  do  a  proper  cost ing  o f  a  

p ro jec t  l i ke  tha t  fo r  the  remova l  and tender  p rocess.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And your  es t imate  cost?  20 

MR ROETS:    Es t imated cost  fo r  the  remova l ,  tha t  i s ,  f rom 

exper ience w i th  cur ren t  cont rac to rs ,  reg i s te red asbestos  

cont rac tors  tha t  I  work  w i th ,  on  th is  –  and i f  I  can  

remember  cor rec t l y  i s  about  R6,  R7 000 pe r  house,  I  must  

jus t  make sure  f rom th is ,  ac tua l l y  done a  l i t t le  ca lcu la t ion ,  



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 108 of 141 
 

R4 329 and tha t  i s  work ing  on  a  house tha t  i s  rough ly  

about  20  squares ,  low cost  hous ing ,  very  smal l .   Obv ious ly  

i f  the  house is  b igger  i t  m igh t  be  h igher  than tha t ,  bu t  ja ,  

tha t  i s  cos t  to  the  company tha t  w i l l  remove tha t  so  

obv ious ly  they s t i l l  need to  add a  pro f i t  to  th is  cos t  bu t  my 

es t imat ion  on  a  smal l  house l i ke  tha t  wou ld  be  p lus  m inus  

R5 000.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You were  then shown and had 

regard  to  the  repor t  be fore  you o f  2015,  o f  2  February  

2015.  10 

MR ROETS:    Yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you were  a l so  g iven a  repor t  

by  the  invest iga tors  o f  houses tha t  they looked a t ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?   

MR ROETS:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  yes ,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I f  you  wou ld  jus t  comment  on  the  

contents  o f  the  repor t  as  you do on page 19  o f  your  

s ta tement  and fo l low ing.  

MR ROETS:    The f i ve  examples ,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  rece ived  

gave a  Goog le  Maps p i c tu re  o f  the  proper ty  wh ich  I  20 

ac tua l l y  by  acc ident  opened up  on my computer  and 

looked,  i t  i s  exact ly  the  same,  and then a l so  a  s t ree t  

photo .    

Somebody tha t  took a  p ic tu re  f rom the  s t ree t  to  

show tha t  th is  i s  asbestos  or  a  b ig  s ix  pane l  on  the  roo f  
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w i th  a  comment  tha t  i t  i s  asbestos .    

Apar t  f rom tha t ,  there  was comments  on  the  wa l ls  

tha t  was cracked in  some areas but  there  was no  

comments  on  the  cond i t ion  o f  the  asbestos  w i th  po ten t ia l  

r i sk  o f  exposure  and even s i ze .   The on ly  s i ze  tha t  I  go t  

was a  document  tha t  was pu l l ed  o f f  by  I  th ink  the  

invest iga to rs  a t  a  la te r  s tage,  2018  or  someth ing ,  tha t  

g ives  a  mun ic ipa l  s ize  o f  the  proper t y  i t se l f  bu t  no t  the 

dwel l ing ,  the  house,  so  there  is  no  ind ica t ion  o f  how much  

asbestos  we a re  ta lk ing  about  on  any o f  the  examp les  tha t  10 

I  examined.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  do  no t  want  to  confuse you or  the  

Cha i r  and I  m ight  have done so ,  I  apo log ise ,  le t  us  dea l  

w i th  the  qua l i t y  o f  the  work  as  appeared in  the  repor t  

ra the r  than anyth ing  tha t  the  inves t iga tors  may have done.   

Jus t  pu t  tha t  as ide  fo r  one moment .   The comments  you 

have jus t  made about  the  aud i t  and assessment  in  the  

repor t ,  do  they app ly?  

MR ROETS:    Ja ,  Cha i r,  the  f i ve  examples  when I  

examined,  i t  de f in i te ly  does not  show an assessment  o f  20 

asbestos  and even aud i t ,  i t  w i l l  g ive  an  ind i ca t ion  o f  there  

is  asbestos  on  th is  house because  o f  the  p ic tu re  tha t  they  

have taken and  w i th  the  assumpt ion  tha t  i t  m igh t  be  

asbestos .   But  apar t  f rom tha t ,  th is  who le  repor t  i s  

s t ruc tured around the  s t ruc tu re ,  the  in tegr i t y  o f  the  house 
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i t se l f ,  the  bu i ld ing ,  the  br icks  and so  on  but  very,  very,  

very  l i t t le  in fo rmat ion  o ther  than  a  po tent ia l  number  o f  

houses i n  a  ce r ta in  d i s t r i c t ,  tha t  i s  a l l  tha t  i s  ou t l ined i n  

th is  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  in  o ther  words,  a re  you say ing  tha t  

as  the  product  o f  an  assessment  wh ich  i t  i s  supposed to  be 

th is  repor t  tha t  they,  B lackhead and i t s  jo in t  venture  

par tne r,  was lack ing  in  qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t  way?  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  i t  was def in i te ly  l ack ing .   

I f  you  look a t  the  or ig ina l  p roposa l  i t  ca l led  fo r  the  aud i t  10 

and assessment  o f  asbestos  and i t  a lso  ca l led  fo r  

assessment  o f  asbestos  conta ined in  rubb le  and I  d id  no t  

f ind  any in fo rmat ion  in  the  repor t s  about  any rubb le  l y ing  

around.   So even  i f  you have to  quote  or  tender  on  such a  

pro jec t  you d id  no t  have –  or  you do not  have  a l l  the 

in fo rmat ion  ava i l ab le  and as  you prev ious ly  say,  aud i t  

wou ld  be  a  good desc r ip t ion  o f  what  was done and the  

la t te r  por t ion  was  le f t  ou t  in  the  repor t  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I t  appears  f rom the  documenta t ion  20 

tha t  we have and  the  invest iga tors  have obta ined tha t  the  

who le  pu rpose o f  the  aud i t  and assessment  was to  enab le  

a  second phase o f  remova l  and erad ica t ion .    

We have touched  on th is  be fore  bu t  in  your  repor t  

a t  page 20 you  answer  the  quest ion  whether  in  you r  
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op in ion  the  repor t  tha t  was produced,  the  f ina l  aud i t  and 

assessment  repor t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You mean in  h i s  s ta tement ,  you  sa id  in  

h is  repor t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  h is  s ta tement ,  I  am sor ry,  a t  

page 20,  paragraph 38.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  your  s ta tement  you answer  the  

quest ion  as  to  whether  the  repor t  in  i t s  f ina l  fo rm there  

cou ld  be  used as  a  bas is  fo r  an  e f fec t i ve  e rad ica t ion  10 

programme,  remova l  and erad ica t i on  prog ramme.  

MR ROETS:    Yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  i s  your  answer  to  tha t  

quest ion?  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  my answer  to  tha t  was tha t  th is  

document  i s  no t  use fu l  a t  a l l  and i t  w i l l  no t  ass is t  any o f  

the  cont rac tors  to  e f fec t i ve l y  p lan  and cost  such  a  b ig 

p ro jec t .   So,  ja ,  ine f fec t i ve  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  wou ld  they have to  do  in  

o rder  to  quote?  20 

MR ROETS:    In  te rms o f  se t t ing  up  a  proper  b i l l  o f  

quant i t ies  fo r  peop le  to  quote  on ,  they de f in i te ly  need to  

redo th is  job .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  you are  say ing  i s  very  impor tan t  

and I  jus t  want  to  make sure  tha t  you a re  qu i te  de f in i te  
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about  i t .   I f  you  a re  no t  so  su re  you need to  say so .  

MR ROETS:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because Mr  Sod i  i s  go ing  to  come and 

g ive  ev idence here .  

MR ROETS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you qu i te  sa t is f ied  and are  you qu i te  

de f in i te  tha t  th is  repor t  rea l l y  i s  o f  no t  much use fo r  

purposes o f  any  e f fec t i ve  erad ica t ion  o f  asbestos  and 

there fo re  whatever  B lackhead and  i t s  jo in t  ventu re  charged 

fo r  i t  when i t s  mandate  was to  –  or  inc luded to  assess 10 

asbestos ,  th is  repor t  i s  o f  e i ther  l im i ted  use or  no  use a t  

a l l?   I s  tha t  someth ing  you are  qu i t e  de f in i te  about?  

MR ROETS:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  you want  to  pu t  i t  a  l i t t le  lower  than  

tha t?  

MR ROETS:    Cha i rperson,  what  I  want  to  say and  I  th ink  

tha t  I  am comfo r tab le  in  say ing  about  th is  i s  tha t  the  

proposa l ,  the  cost ing  tha t  they or ig ina l l y  have done pe r  

house,  i f  I  use  my ca l cu la t ion  and exper ience w i l l  de f in i te ly  

cover  the  cost ,  i t  w i l l  be  a  very  h igh  cost  bu t  i t  w i l l  cover  20 

the  cost ,  tha t  th is  repor t  tha t  they have submi t ted  w i l l  no t  

g ive  you the  necessary  in fo rmat ion  to  accu ra te l y  cos t  fo r  a  

p ro jec t  l i ke  tha t  and to  remove  a  pro jec t  because you 

cannot  assess the  r i sk ,  you do no t  what  equ ipment  to  use,  

how much asbes tos  to  t ranspor t ,  to  what  i s  the  t ranspor t  
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requ i rements ,  how long th is  p ro jec t  i s  go ing  to  take  to  

remove.   So tha t  in fo rmat ion  i s  de f in i te ly  lack ing  in  th is  

repor t .   I t  w i l l  no t  g ive  the  ord inary  person on the  s t ree t  o r  

reg i s te red asbes tos  cont rac tor  enough ammuni t ion  to  do  

th is  job  proper ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you say tha t  the  assessment  wou ld  

have to  be  redone.  

MR ROETS:    Accord ing  to  me,  I  th ink  the  assessment  

needs to  be  redone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR ROETS:    And a  proper  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies  se t  up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  the  po in t  tha t  you are  

mak ing  wou ld  be  more  graph ica l l y  made by  re ference to  

the  ac tua l  documenta t ion  and the  repor t  i t se l f  o r  a t tached  

to  the  repor t .   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  FS9,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  FS9?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    FS9,  th is  i s  the  inves t iga tor ’s  

repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Do you  have page 416?   I f  you  

wou ld  go  to  page 416,  p lease?  And tha t  i s  –  we l l ,  perhaps,  

no ,  do  no t  go  the re  ye t .   A t  the  top  o f  the  page you w i l l  see  

number ing  in  red  and a t  the  top  le f t  you w i l l  see  number ing  

in  b lack .   The number ing  i n  b lack  top  le f t  i s  the  number ing  
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as  adv ised by  the  Cha i r,  the  number  in  top  r igh t  I  am to ld ,  

Cha i r,  i s  the  ins is tence notw i ths tand ing  i ns t ruc t ions fo r  

la te r  reco rd  purposes o f  the  bund les ,  bu t  we can ignore  the  

red  numbers  fo r  your  pu rposes.   Cha i r,  le t  us  look  a t  FS9,  

page 3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  fo r  what  i t  i s  wor th ,  i f  there  has to  

be  a  renumber ing  such as  the  one they have done here  

w i th  the  b lack  numbers ,  I  th ink  they shou ld  t ry,  i f  poss ib le ,  

to  pu t  i t  a lso  –  to  pu t  those numbers  a lso  on  the  r igh t  s ide  

o f  the  page because when you are  pag ing  th rough you  10 

cannot  see where  i t  i s ,  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  see so  you go 

accord ing  to  the  red  number  pages,  page numbers ,  bu t  

then those are  no t  the  ones in  regard  to  th is  par t i cu la r  one  

bund le  tha t  one is  fo l low ing.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  I  took  great  care  th is  las t  

weekend to  ensure  th is  was done  in  accordance w i th  your  

ins t ruc t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And I  remember  read ing  

somewhere  tha t  the  b lack  number ing  shou ld  go  on the  top  20 

le f t ,  tha t  was c lear ly  an  er ror  on  our  pa r t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And in  fu tu re  i t  w i l l  go  in  top  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  when you  

page th rough,  i f  i t  i s  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide ,  i t  i s  easy to  
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see.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    No,  i t  makes sense,  i t  makes 

sense.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  you sa id  page 3?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Page 3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Now is  th is  the  type o f  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  was conta ined in  the  repor t  in  re la t ion  to  a  

par t i cu la r  house?  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  these a re  some o f  the  examples  

tha t  I  was p rov ided  to  look  a t  and  i f  you  look  a t  the  10 

in fo rmat ion  i t  i s  very  lack ing  in  te rms o f  ident i f y ing  the  

po tent ia l  r i sk  o f  f ib re  re lease.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  what  does i t  g ive  you?  

MR ROETS:    I t  ac tua l l y  jus t  say  tha t  the  roo f  mater ia l  i s  

asbestos .   On th is  par t i cu la r  example ,  i t  g ives  you a  par t ia l  

p ic tu re  o f  the  house and i t  i s  a lso  say ing  tha t  i t  i s  a  

p i t ched roo f  where  in  th is  case i t  looks  more  l i ke  a  f la t  

roo f .   Ta l k ing  about  a  p i t ched roo f  and a  f la t  roo f ,  i t  w i l l  

ass is t  in  quant i f y ing  the  amount  o f  asbestos  because you 

mul t ip le  i f  you  have got  a  square  meterage o f  a  dwel l ing  or  20 

a  house and you  know i t  i s  a  p i t ched roo f ,  you can put  in  

some ca lcu la t ion  to  ge t  a  c loser  es t imat ion  o f  a  quant i t y,  

so  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  have a  co r rec t  in fo rmat ion  bu t  apar t  

f rom tha t ,  th is  repor t  tha t  they have got  per  house does not  

g ive  you any in fo rmat ion  about  the  asbestos .    
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I  have seen th is  -   maybe s tepp ing  o f f  -  in  te rms o f  

a  t ra in ing  tha t  was prov ided to  the  guys tha t  was do ing  the  

assessment ,  the  example  o f  t ra in ing  tha t  was prov ided,  i t  

d id  no t  g ive  the  necessary  in fo rmat ion  to  the  peop le  tha t  i s  

do ing  the  assessment  to  say th is  i s  what  asbestos  looks 

l i ke .   So on ly  an  example  o f  the  fo rm,  the  shape o f  the  

mater ia l  bu t  no th ing  about  any o ther  t ypes o f  asbes tos  tha t  

we need to  have  a  look a t .   So tha t  in fo rmat ion  shou ld  

f i l t e r  th rough to  an  assessment  l i ke  th is  so  tha t  you  can do 

a  proper  and comprehens ive  assessment .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Le t  us  go  back to  th is  page o f  

in fo rmat ion  in  re la t ion  to  a  par t i cu la r  house.   I s  a l l  the 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  be  prov ided in  the  repor t  in  re la t ion  

to  a  par t i cu la r  un i t  o r  dwe l l ing?  

MR ROETS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  was p rov ided even in  the  f ina l  repor t ,  they  on ly  g i ve  

amounts  o f  houses tha t  conta ined  asbestos ,  no t  quant i t ies  

or  no th ing  e l se ,  on ly  so  much pe rcentage o f  th is  d is t r i c t ’s  

houses conta ins  asbestos .   That  i s  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i f  one looks a t  page 3  o f  bund le  20 

FS9,  r igh t ,  and one sees there  in  re la t ion  to  a  par t i cu la r  

house cer ta in  in fo rmat ion .   You have got  the  er f  number,  

you have got  the  GPS coord ina tes  and then under  the  

s t ruc tura l  assessment  repor t  you have a  photog raph taken 

f rom a  d is tance,  the  p ic tu re  o f  the  house is  par t l y  obscured 



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 117 of 141 
 

by  bushes.    

You then see tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  conta ined the re  is  

roo f  mate r ia l ,  asbestos ;  roo f  t ype,  p i t ched;  house type,  

s ing le ;  f in ishes on wa l l ,  p las tered;  v is ib le  wa l l  c racks ,  no ;  

house ex tended,  yes ;  so la r  geyser,  no .   That  i s  the  fu l l  

assessment  o f  tha t  par t i cu la r  d raw ing,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR ROETS:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now tha t  in fo rmat ion  then is  

co l la ted  w i th  o ther  in fo rmat ion  to  te l l  them the  mun ic ipa l i t y  

tha t  houses o f  th is  t ype or  qua l i f y ing  under  these 10 

cond i t ions  or  i tems o f  th is  na ture  w i t  i tems o f  th is  na ture ,  

there  are  say a  thousand in  th is  d is t r i c t ,  a  thousand in  tha t  

d is t r i c t ,  bu t  th is  i s  the  sum to ta l  o f  what  occur red .  

MR ROETS:    That  i s  fo r  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  p rov ided in  the  

f ina l  repor t  i s  they numbered the  amount  o f  houses tha t  

was inspected and then they used th is  in fo rmat ion  to  say 

such a  b ig  percen tage o f  the  houses in  tha t  spec i f i c  d is t r i c t  

conta ins  asbestos .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  i f  I  took  th is  page 3  tha t  we ’ re  

ta lk ing  about  and I  gave i t  to  you and I  sa id  to  you,  Mr  20 

Roets ,  p lease te l l  me how much i t  wou ld  cost  and what  you  

wou ld  have to  do  to  remove asbestos  f rom th is  house,  what  

wou ld  you te l l  me? 

MR ROETS:    Wel l  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  de f in i te ly  say,  I  w i l l  

submi t  a  cost  as  soon as  I  went  back to  the  s i te  and  
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assess the  cond i t ion  and the  s ize  so  tha t  I  can  g ive  a  

proper  cost  o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  i f  you  look a t  in fo rmat ion  tha t  Mr  

Pre tor ius  was read ing  to  you on page 3 ,  in  respect  o f  th is  

house,  how much o f  the  in fo rmat ion  g iven there  is  rea l l y  

re levant  fo r  purposes o f  assessment  fo r  asbestos .  

MR ROETS:    Cha i r  the  on ly  in fo rmat ion  re levant  

…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  the  roo f  t ype o f  any re levance? 

MR ROETS:    The type ass i s t  –  i f  you  have got  a  s ize  o f  10 

the  ground,  square  mete rage o f  the  house,  the  p i t ch  or  the  

type o f  house w i l l  ass i s t ,  in  th is  case i t  w i l l  no t  ass is t  even  

the  p ic tu re  on  tha t ,  you can ’ t  c lear ly  see tha t  i t  is  B ig  6  

type o f   pane l  i t  looks  l i ke  a  ga lvan ised sheet  ra the r,  so  i f  

the  person tha t  d id  the  assessment  i s  no t  teached proper ly,  

educated proper l y,  how to  ident i f y  asbestos  then th is  m ight  

be  m is in fo rmat ion  …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And f in ishes on the  wa l l?  

MR ROETS:    F in ishes on the  wa l l ,  i t ’s  go t  no  bear ing  

…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No re levance?  

MR ROETS:    No Cha i r  no  re levance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    V is ib le  wa l l  c racks?  

MR ROETS:    No re levance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No va lue  whether  the  house is  ex tended 



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 119 of 141 
 

o r  no t?  

MR ROETS:    No re levance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So lar  geyser?  

MR ROETS:    Po tent ia l  re levance i f  i t ’s  a  so la r  geyser  

versus,  maybe an o ld  geyser  tha t  they ’ve  go t  insu la t ion  

around,  i t  can  be prob lemat ic  bu t  the  so la r  no ,  no 

re levance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  to  jus t  say  so la r  geyser,  yes  or  no .  

MR ROETS:    No re levance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  doesn ’ t  mean much.  10 

MR ROETS:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  roo f  mater ia l ,  asbestos ,  tha t ’s  

f ine  bu t  the  res t  i s  e i ther  i r re levant  o r  marg ina l l y  

i r re levant?  

MR ROETS:    Yes Cha i rperson,  i f  you  look a t  the  or ig ina l  

p roposa l  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  comes  out  o f  i t  fo r  th is  spec i f i c  

example ,  i t ’s  the  asbestos  roo f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR ROETS:    And tha t ’s  the  on ly  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  bas i ca l l y,  what  the  Depar tment  

o f  –  the  Depar tment  in  the  Free S ta te  i s  to ld  here  is  s imp ly  

tha t ,  here  is  a  p i c tu re  o f  a  house w i th  a  roo f  tha t  looks l i ke  

asbestos?  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson when I  eventua l l y  were  
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asked to  look  a t  th is ,  my or ig ina l  thought  about  the  

proposa l  versus the  repor t  i s ,  i t  was a  good document  fo r  

Government  to  f ind  ou t  i f  there ’s  a  prob lem in  a  spec i f i c  

d is t r i c t  and tha t ’s  a l l .   No in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  re levant  fo r  

anybody to  go  remove o r  e rad ica te  i t  to  cont ro l  asbestos  a t  

a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  th is  m ight  be  d i f f i cu l t  to  say  bu t  

you must  te l l  me,  i f  fo r  purposes o f  an  asbestos  

erad ica t ion  programme,  because tha t ’s  how i t ’s  read,  i t  

seems,  i f  fo r  tha t  purpose you  are  g iven the  task  o r  10 

cont rac t  to  do  an  aud i t  and assessment ,  what  percentage 

o f  the  job  wou ld  you say is  represented by  the  aud i t ing  

par t  o f  the  job ,  in  te rms o f  impor tance?  I s  tha t  someth ing  

you are  ab le  to  say is  i t  50 /50  percent  i s  i t  20 /80  or  i s  i t  

d i f f i cu l t  to  say?  

MR ROETS:    I  wou ld  say tha t  the  aud i t ,  Cha i r,  wou ld  g ive  

you a  good idea o f  how b ig  i s  the  prob lem and i f  you have  

got  a  p rob lem,  so  in  te rms o f ,  le t ’s  ca l l  i t ,  h igh- leve l  

management  o f  asbestos  or  h igh- leve l  knowledge about  

asbestos  in  your  p rov ince or  in  ce r ta in  d is t r i c ts  i t ’s  a  very  20 

good too l .   In  te rms o f  e rad ica t ion ,  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  

the  or ig ina l  purpose was,  i t  doesn ’ t  g ive  any in fo rmat ion  on  

the  assessment  o f  the  asbestos .   So,  in  the  contex t  o f  the 

or ig ina l  enqu i ry  o r  pu rpose o f  th is ,  I  wou ld  say tha t  the  

aud i t  i s  about  maybe 10% and the  assessment  wou ld  be  
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90%.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  th is  job ,  the  way i t  was  done,  

wou ld  requ i re ,  as  you have sa id ,  i f  you  are  asked to  do  the  

next  phase wh ich  was meant  to  be  erad ica t ion  as  I  

unders tand the  pos i t ion .   I f  i t  wou ld  requ i re  tha t  you re-do  

the  assessment  wou ld  tha t  no t  mean tha t  in  fac t ,  you  wou ld  

no t  need the i r  aud i t ing  because you ’d  have to ,  necessar i l y  

aud i t  as  we l l?  

MR ROETS:    Yes  Cha i r,  I  to ta l l y  agree w i th  tha t  s ta tement ,  

I  th ink  we have found out  tha t  there  i s  asbestos  in  tha t  10 

d is t r i c t  now,  so  I  th ink  the  aud i t  por t ion  is  gone you don ’ t  

need tha t  in fo rmat ion  fo r  the  erad ica t ion  anymore  and the  

b iggest  por t ion  o f  work  wou ld  now requ i re  the  proper  

assessment  and  se t t ing  ou t  the  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies  and 

pr io r i t i s ing  worse  or  be t te r  cases to  s ta r t  your  work  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  wou ld  i t  be  cor rec t  there fore ,  to  say,  

fo r  the  purposes  o f  an  asbestos  erad ica t ion  programme 

do ing  aud i t ing  w i thout  do ing  an  assessment  doesn ’ t  he lp  

anyway because  an assessment  can ’ t  be  done  w i thout  

aud i t ing?  There fore ,  i f  an  assessment  has to  be  done 20 

whatever  aud i t ing  may have been done before  becomes 

redundant  because you are  go ing  to  go  to  every  house  

anyway,  wou ld  tha t  be  co r rec t?  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  tha t  wou ld  be  cor rec t  i f  one 

maybe looks …[ in tervenes] .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i t ’s  no t  l i ke  you can bu i ld  up  on  the  

work  tha t  they d id  in  te rms o f  aud i t ing .  

MR ROETS:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ’ t  do  tha t  because you w i l l  have  

to  go  to  every  house and there fo re  you w i l l  ge t  to  know 

how many houses  are  there .  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  te rms o f  look ing  a t  

fu tu re ,  maybe the  aud i t  w i l l  g ive  you a  good idea tha t  I  

don ’ t  need to  v i s i t  tha t  spec i f i c  d is t r i c t  anymore  because 

there ’s  no  asbestos  o r  there  was no asbestos  iden t i f ied  so  10 

I  w i l l  no t  focus on  tha t  a rea  or  the re ’s  a  very  low amount  o f  

houses,  I  m igh t  have a  look a t  i t  a t  a  la te r  s tage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR ROETS:    O r  use i t  as  a  t ra in ing  opera t ion  maybe,  a  

t ra in ing  pro jec t  bu t  the  focus fo r  mov ing  f rom hereon 

fo rward  wou ld  be  the  assessment  100% on the  assessment ,  

I  wou ld  no t  spend  tha t  much t ime on the  aud i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You d id  a  ca l cu la t ion  jus t  to  

i l l us t ra te  some o f  the  issues ra ised by  the  Cha i r  on  page 20 

21 o f  the  – no t  o f  the  repor t  bu t  o f  the  FS1 Bund le  Exh ib i t  

PT1 go to  page 21 o f  Exh ib i t  PT1  i f  you wou ld  in  the  f ina l  

parag raph,  you d id  a  ca l cu la t ion  …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m sor ry  we ’ re  mov ing  back  

to…[ in tervenes] .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    To  page 21  o f  PT1.  

MR ROETS:    O f  FS1?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We’ re  in  FS1,  I ’m  sor ry  yes in  FS1.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then we go to  21  –  page 21.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    2 -1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  and the  21  even on th is  

Bund le  FS1 is  the  b lack  21?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Look  p lease a t  the  second 10 

paragraph on tha t  page.  

MR ROETS:    Yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You d id  a  ca lcu la t ion  based on 

cer ta in  assumpt ions,  you sa id  i f  there  were  300 000  houses  

assessed,  wh ich  is  the  number  tha t  was  in  the  

documenta t ion  in  th is  case,  cor rec t?  

MR ROETS:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  pages is  messed up  

in  th is  copy.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t  go  back to  –  do  you see the  

top  le f t -hand co lumn…[ in te rvenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  check tha t  he  has go t  the  r igh t  

Bund le  f i rs t ,  because –  so  when there ’s  a  re ference o f  a  

page number  i t ’s  the  b lack  numbers  i s  the  r igh t  ones.  

MR ROETS:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Look a t  paragraph 2  i f  you  wou ld  
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p lease,  you d id  a  ca lcu la t ion .  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    On cer ta in  assumpt ions,  now we  

know tha t  the  number  o f  houses tha t  had to  be  assessed  

here  was not  more  than 300 000.  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cor rec t  and we know in  the  f ina l  

repor t  tha t  155 workers  were  t ra ined over  a  few days and 

were  se t  to  photograph houses.  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And we know tha t ,  accord ing  to  the  

repor t  31  days was spent  do ing  th is  work ,  a l l  th is  work  was  

done in  31  days.  

MR ROETS:    That ’s  co r rec t  w i th  a  s ta tement ,  Cha i r,  in  the  

f ina l  repor t  tha t  they had t roub le  w i th  peop le  be ing  absent  

coming to  work  and some labourer  i ssues so  i t  m igh t  even  

be less  than 31 days bu t  the  t ime s ta ted  in  the  repor t  i s  31  

days.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So ,  you say i t  m igh t  even be less?  

MR ROETS:    I t  m igh t  even be less .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Le t ’s  assume 31 days and you  

work  ou t  tha t  i f  tha t  number  o f  worke rs  worked fo r  31  days 

in  an  a t tempt  to  cover  300 000 houses,  you wou ld  have 

about  two to  f i ve  m inutes  pe r  house?  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That ’s  to  take  in to  account  too  

wa lk ing  be tween  houses,  ge t t ing  access,  tak ing  the  

photographs,  logg ing  the  da ta  and  the  l i ke .  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  jus t  fo r  in te res t  sake,  s ta r ted   

w i th  a  ca l cu la t ion  on  the  amount  o f  houses,  I  th ink  tha t  

they even ment ioned tha t  they had to  do  6  000  houses  

ex t ra ,  add i t iona l  tha t  they went  to  and they t ra ined 155  

peop le  o f  wh ich ,  some o f  them le f t  and d idn ’ t  re tu rn  and 

some o f  them were  absent  on  severa l  occas ions and  I  d id  a 

ca l cu la t ion  on  the  amount  o f  houses,  t ime spent  in  these  10 

houses a t  the  end o f  the  day came out  to  about  th ree  to  

f i ve  m inutes  tha t  they have to  spend to  assess a  house,  

take  a  p i c tu re ,  log  the  da ta  in to  the  hand-he ld  dev ice  tha t  

they were  prov ided and then submi t  the  in fo rmat ion  to  a  

cent ra l  da ta  base  and then t rave l  s t i l l  to  the  next  dwe l l ing 

or  the  next  house  and do the  next  assessment .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t  in  parag raph 41.2  on  page  

24 o f  your  s ta tement  TT1,  you say what  you wou ld  do  in  a  

pro jec t  o f  a  s im i la r  na tu re  i f  you  were  b r ie fed  to  do  so .  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Te l l  the  Cha i r  about  tha t  p lease?  

MR ROETS:    So ,  the  assessment  fo r  300 000 houses in  

my capac i ty,  in  my bus iness,  I ’ ve  go t  7  personne l  tha t  i s  

t ra ined to  do  th i s  so  I  w i l l  p robab ly  p lan ,  because I  need to  

take  a l l  my peop le  to  the  s i te  and assess the  asbestos ,  
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spend proper  t ime,  a l loca t ion  o f  each house to  p roper ly  

assess tha t  house,  photograph,  capture  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  

so  tha t  I  can se t  up  a proper  repor t  fo r  th is .   I  worked,  

rough ly  take  about  two to  th ree  years  to  do  an  assessment  

a  proper  assessment  o f  th is  na ture .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And cost?  

MR ROETS:    Cost  ca lcu la t ion ,  anyth ing  be tween  

R20mi l l ion  an  R30mi l l ion  fo r  the  en t i re  p ro jec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    For  a  pro jec t  tak ing  a lmost  3  

years?  10 

MR ROETS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  when you  say,  in  paragraph 41 o f  

your  s ta tement  how long i t  wou ld  take  to  do  th is  k ind  o f  

job ,  to  what  ex ten t  i s  tha t  based on your  own exper ience o f  

be ing  invo lved in  th is  k ind  o f  job  there  in  the  past  years?  

MR ROETS:    Cha i r,  yes  I ’ ve  been invo lved in  severa l  

p ro jec ts  l i ke  th is  fo r  the  m in ing  indust ry  and we  spend,  

rough ly  about  30  m inutes  per  house –  30  minutes  to  45  

minutes ,  a  lo t  o f  the  t ime is  spent  ac tua l l y  ga in ing  access  

to  a  house because peop le  tend to  go  to  work  somet imes 20 

and so  you w i l l  ba t t le  to  ge t  in to  a  house and somet imes 

you have to  se t  up  a  spec i f i c  t ime a f te r  work  to  go  assess 

houses l i ke  th is  so  de f in i te ly  h inders  your  assessment  and 

t ime tha t  you have to  spend but  I  wou ld  say anyth ing  

be tween 30 and 40 minutes  spen t  per  house to  p roper ly  
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assess and log  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  p lus  t ime spent  on  the  

f ina l  repor t  to  ge t  a l l  th is  in fo rmat ion  in to  a  proper  b i l l  o f  

quant i t ies .   So,  in  to ta l  I  wou ld  say round about  30  to  40 

minutes  pe r  house,  es t imat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  there  anyth ing  you w ish  to  add 

in  re la t ion  to  any  o f  the  quest ions  you ’ve  been asked or  in  

re la t ion  to  your  repor t?  

MR ROETS:    No Cha i r  I ’m  f in ished .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    On a  few occas ions,  in  you r  repor t  and 

in  your  o ra l  ev idence you have ind ica ted  tha t  your  op in ion  

is  based on the  i n fo rmat ion  you were  g iven and I  go t  the  

impress ion  tha t  there  may be ins tances where  you  wou ld  

have l i ked  to  have more  in fo rmat ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t  a re  

there  a reas where  you wou ld  have l i ke  to  have more 

in fo rmat ion  in  o rder  to  g ive  an  op in ion  or  to  g ive  a  more  

de f in i te  op in ion?  

MR ROETS:    Yes  Cha i r,  cer ta in l y  when I  had a  f i r s t  look  a t  

the  in fo rmat ion  there  was def in i te ly  lack  o f  de f in i t ion  in  20 

te rms o f  the  requ i rement  f rom the  requested s ide  to  our  

s ide ,  what  i s  needed,  so  gu idance  fo r  the  cont rac to r  maybe 

on,  what  i s  mean t  by  the  words aud i t  and assess and what  

i s  the  ou tcome tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  fo rm such an assessment .   

So,  in fo rmat ion  l i ke  tha t  there ’s  de f in i te ly  –  i f  there  was 



04 AUGUST 2020 – DAY 244 
 

Page 128 of 141 
 

any,  wou ld  ass i s t  in  mak ing  proper  comments .   In  a l l  th is  

in fo rmat ion  I  had f i ve  examples  o f  houses tha t  was  

assessed,  I  wou ld  have l i ked ,  maybe one or  two o f  

examples  o f  b igger  dwel l ings ,  b igger  houses,  houses tha t  

m ight  a lso  conta in  fac ia  boards and ce i l ing  pane ls  and see  

what  i s  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was ac tua l l y  reco rded on those  

houses so  tha t  one can make  a  fa i r  comment  about  

asbestos  o ther  than roo f  sheet ing  because what  I ’ ve  seen  

f rom in fo rmat ion  tha t  I ’ ve  go t  i s  tha t ,  f i rs t l y,  these 155  

peop le  tha t  was used there  m ight  be  a  prob lem in  te rms o f  10 

how they were  ac tua l l y  to ld  to  assess,  what ’s  the  leve l  o f  

t ra in ing  tha t  were  prov ided.   The l i t t le  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was 

prov ided in  the  f ina l  repor t ,  cer ta in ly  d id  no t  te l l  them what  

does asbestos  look l i ke  and I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  have been 

the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  came out  to ,  le t ’s  ca l l  i t ,  dec la re  

somebody competent  to  do  an  assessment ,  to  do  asbestos  

assessments  so  tha t  in fo rmat ion  w i l l  de f in i te ly  ass is t  more  

to  make comments  about  i t  bu t  in fo rmat ion  prov ided and  

the  f ina l  p roduct  tha t  was p rov ided in  te rms o f  the  f ina l  

repor t  cer ta in l y  show tha t  there  was no c lear  ind ica t ion  in  20 

the  beg inn ing  o f  what  i s  requ i red ,  what  do  I  want .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay but  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  i s  tha t  i f  

there ’s  any in fo rmat ion  tha t  you d idn ’ t  ge t  wh ich  the  

invest iga to rs  may have access to  tha t  they make an 

a t tempt  to  ge t  you tha t  in fo rmat ion  and  i f  necessary  you  
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can  do a  supp lementary  s ta tement  o r  a f f idav i t  to  

supp lement  your  ev idence to  say,  when I  p repared my  

a f f idav i t / s ta tement  o f  30  Ju ly  2020,  in  respect  o f  th is  

aspect  th is  i s  what  I  had but  I  s ince  had access to  the  

fo l low ing and I  s tand by  what  I  sa id  or  i n  the  l igh t  o f  th is  

fu r ther  in fo rmat ion ,  I  have a  d i f fe ren t  v iew and th is  i s  what  

I  w ish  to  say,  tha t ’s  what  I ’d  l i ke  you to  do ,  i s  tha t  a l r igh t?  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  r igh t ,  thanks Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    On tha t ,  Cha i r,  two th ings on  your  10 

answer  to  the  Cha i r,  you ment ioned f i rs t l y  in fo rmat ion  

g iven to  the  cont rac tors  by  the  depar tment  as  to  what  was  

requ i red  o f  them,  you say tha t  was in fo rmat ion  tha t  was 

inadequate?  

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  was jus t  look ing  a t  the  amount  

o f  money tha t  we ’ re  ta lk ing  abou t  and the  or ig ina l  –  the  

proposa l ,  I  th ink ,  36  or  37  pages long o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

w i l l  be  done o f  wh ich  one or  two pages was about  the  

asbestos  and the  res t  was abou t  the  s t ruc ture  and the  

eng ineer ing  o f  the  pro jec t  and then the  appo in tment  f rom 20 

the  o ther  s ide  was two pages fo r  R255mi l l ion  to  assess and 

erad ica te  or  the  f i rs t  phase as  they ca l l  i t  i s  the  

assessment  –  aud i t  and assessment  o f  the  asbestos  bu t  ja ,  

in  te rms o f  my v iew o f  the  documenta t ion  tha t  was  brac ing  

th is  who le  pro jec t ,  i t  was very,  very  l im i ted .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  you make the  po in t  tha t  in  a  

coup le  o f  pages an ins t ruc t ion  was g i ven to  per fo rm work  

and tha t  work  was descr ibed in  a  re la t ion  to  a  pro jec t ,  

ex tens i ve l y  and I  s t ress  ex tens i ve ly,  wor th  R255mi l l ion .  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  you then went  on  to  ta lk  about  

the  second ca tegory  o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  you were  g iven.  

MR ROETS:    Tha t ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you commented on  the  fac t  

tha t ,  tha t  in fo rmat ion  was fa lse ,  tha t  we shou ld  no te  tha t ,  10 

tha t  i s  p rec ise ly  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  the  cont rac to rs  gave  

to  the  Depar tmen t .  

MR ROETS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  tha t ’s  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

was prov ided to  the  Depar tment  as  a  f ina l  p roduc t ,  you ’ l l  

f ind  examples  tha t  I  d id  rece ive  tha t  was the i r  f ina l  p roduct  

in  te rms o f  the i r  assessment ,  i t ’s  go t  very,  ve ry  l i t t le  

in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Te l l  me,  i f  the  Depar tment  had consu l ted  

somebody or  somebody who has knowledge and exper ience  

o f  the  type o f  job  tha t  B lackhead  and D iamond Hi l l  were  20 

g iven to  you do  you th ink ,  based on your  exper ience tha t  

they cou ld  have  agreed to  pay so  much money  fo r  the  

aud i t ing  and assessment  o f  asbestos  in  th is  p ro jec t?  

MR ROETS:    I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i f  they  were  prov ided 

some ass is tance  f rom peop le  in  the  f ie ld  tha t  has go t  
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knowledge o f  such pro jec t s ,  they  m ight  have thought  tha t  

th is  money i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  too  much fo r  such l i t t le  work .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  I ’m  ta lk ing  about  i s ,  you see,  

I ’m  a  Judge i f  I ’m  go ing  to  g ive  somebody a  job  to ,  

e lec t r i ca l  work  in  my house I  need to  have an idea what  

e lec t r i c ians no rmal ly  charge because o therwise  i f  I  don ’ t  

have an idea about  tha t ,  I  cou ld  be  charged an a rm and a  

leg  and I  wou ldn ’ t  know and then I  pay and then I  f ind  ou t  

la te r  tha t  I  pa id  fa r  more  than I  shou ld  have been charged.   

Now in  the  contex t  o f  the  depar tment  I  wou ld  have thought  10 

tha t ,  un less  the  peop le  who made the  dec is ions have the  

knowledge and he exper ience o f  what  i s  requ i red  in  th is  

t ype o f  job  and  what  shou ld  be  charged,  un less  they 

themse lves had tha t  knowledge I  wou ld  have expected tha t  

they wou ld  seek a  pro fess iona l  who cou ld  adv i se  them,  to  

say one,  i s  th is  p r ice  tha t  i s  be ing  proposed here  a  

reasonab le  p r ice  in  the  indust ry  fo r  th is  k ind  o f  job  and i f  

th is  adv ice  was no,  th is  i s  too  much then they wou ld  go  

back to  B lackhead then D iamond Hi l l  can  say,  no ,  no  we 

can ’ t  agree to  tha t  bu t  i f  they  were  to ld  no ,  no ,  no ,  th is  i s  a  20 

reasonab le  p r ice  and they a re  ab le  to  re ly  on  tha t  adv i ce  

then they w i l l  go  a long.  So,  my quest ion  is ,  whether  you  

th ink ,  i f  they  had  consu l ted  somebody who might  have the  

same k ind  o f  exper ience as  yourse l f  in  th is  sec tor,  whethe r  

tha t  person wou ld  have adv i sed tha t  the  pr ice  they agreed 
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to  pay was reasonab le  fo r  th is  k ind  o f  job .   

MR ROETS:    Yes,  Cha i r,  de f in i t e ly  they benchmark  w i th  

the  ass is tance o f  approved inspec t ion  au tho r i t y  o r  one o f  

these asbestos  cont rac tors  tha t  hand le  such a  b ig  cont rac t ,  

they  w i l l  de f in i te ly  make a  be t te r  dec is ion  on  the  amount  

tha t  they have to  pay fo r  th is  t ype o f  work  and a lso  to  

de f ine ,  in  te rms o f  the  documenta t ion  prov ided tha t  th is  i s  

what  I  need.   The product ,  a t  the  end o f  the  day,  need to  

be  in  l ine  w i th  the  asbestos  regu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes  and you say tha t  based on your  10 

exper ience in  the  indust ry,  a  reasonab le  pr i ce  fo r  th is  k ind  

o f  job  wou ld  have  been between R20mi l l ion  and R30mi l l ion ,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR ROETS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  I ’ ve  ac tua l l y  es t imated 

a  lower  cost ,  my costs  in  te rms o f  t ime spent  and  

resources spent ,  I  th ink  came out  to  about  R8mi l l ion  to  

R9mi l l ion  and then I  even went  to  town and ca l led  i t  

R20mi l l ion  so  tha t  we can jus t  compare  i t ,  bu t  ja  the  cost  i s  

de f in i te ly  less  than R255mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you Mr  Roets ,  thank you  

very  much.  

MR ROETS:    Thanks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much Mr  Roets  fo r  

coming to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ,  thank you fo r  coming to  
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g ive  ev idence,  i f  necessary  we ’ l l  ask  you to  come back bu t  

i f  –  poss ib ly  t r y  and spare  you w i th  the  t roub le  bu t  i f  there  

i s  any fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  tha t  can be g iven to  you,  wh ich  

you had not  been g i ven to  you,  wh ich  you th ink  i s  

impor tan t  in  o rder  fo r  me to  have a  proper  and  cor rec t  

p ic tu re  o f  your  ev idence about  h is  p ro jec t ,  p lease  ta lk  to  

the  invest iga tors  and the  lega l  team so tha t ,  tha t  can be 

done,  so  tha t  one  w i l l  have a  cor rec t  p ic tu re .  

MR ROETS:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much,  you are  excused.  10 

MR ROETS:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Pre tor ius?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r,  the  w i tness tha t  was to  

fo l low is  Mr  John  Mat laka la  he  is  the  procu rement  person  

in  the  Depar tment  in  the  Free S ta te ,  Human Set t lements  

Depar tment  in  the  Free S ta te .   Much o f  the  ar rangement  fo r  

th is  week happened before  you asked me to  dea l  w i th  the  

ev idence and lead the  ev idence Cha i r,  so  what  I  say  I  have 

on ly,  in  a  b road deta i l ,  I ’ ve  taken ins t ruc t ions over  t he  long 

ad journment .   Mr  Mat laka la  was in fo rmed on the  14 t h  o f  20 

Ju l y  tha t  he  wou ld  be  requ i red  to  a t tend a t  the  Commiss ion  

dur ing  the  week o f  the  3 r d  to  the  7 t h  o f  August .   He was 

then in fo rmed on  the  27 t h  o f  Ju l y  tha t  he  was requ i red  to  

come on the  5 t h  o f  August ,  tha t  da te ,  he  was in fo rmed,  was  

changed when we ar ranged the  de ta i l  to  the  4 t h  o f  August  
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and a t  a l l  s tages,  he  agreed tha t  he  wou ld  come on the  4 t h  

o f  August .   Then on the  3 r d  o f  August ,  yes te rday,  we  

rece ived an emai l  f rom Mr  Mat laka la  say ing  tha t  he  was no 

longer  rep resented and he wou ld  te l l  us  when he was  

rep resented and when he cou ld  then appear.   In  response  

to  tha t  a  le t te r  was dra f ted  and sent  who – to  Mat laka la  

adv is ing  h im tha t  he  had conf i rmed h is  ava i lab i l i t y  a  da te  

had been reserved and he must  a t tend and i f  he  has  

anyth ing  to  say about  h is  appearance and rep resenta t ion ,  

he  must  app ly  to  you Cha i r,  i t ’s  no t  in  our  p rov ince as  10 

ev idence leaders  and as  i nvest iga tors  to  g rant  o r  re fuse  

postponements  and the  l i ke ,  when dates  have been  

ar ranged and th is  was to ld  to  h im in  a le t te r  da ted  3 r d  o f  

August  2020 con f i rm ing tha t  he  was requ i red  to  appear  

today.   We rece ived a  rep ly  today f rom Mut law a t to rneys 

rep resent ing  Mr  Mat laka la ,  who said or who say in the emai l  

that  they act  on behal f  of  Mr Mat lakala that  they 

acknowledge that  he was requi red to provide oral  evidence 

before the commission today but  they say:  

“Kindly take note that  our off ices received 20 

instruct ions dur ing the course of  the midnight  hours 

on 3 August  2020. ”  

So that  is midnight  hours last  night  I  presume that  means.   

“And had been unable to adequately prepare a 

substant ive appl icat ion for postponement in terms of  
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Rule 11 and accord ingly request  a  postponement of  

the proceedings today to al low our cl ient  adequate 

legal  representat ion.   We t rust  that  you f ind that  in  

order. ”  

I  th ink we have t r ied to respond verbal ly to that  but  there has 

been no response to that  and Mr Mat lakala did not  arr ive and 

that  is the posi t ion we are in now with regard to Mr 

Mat lakala.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i f  he is not  here,  I  beginning to wonder 

whether the commission should not  just  issue summonses 10 

against  – you know against  everybody because i t  looks l ike 

the stage at  which we are more and more people come up 

wi th some or other reason for not  appearing.   And whereas in  

the past  just  not i f icat ion to  people seemed to be enough at  

least  for most  for  them to come and appear.   But  now we 

issue not i f icat ions and people ei ther do not  come or send 

emai ls to put  up one or other reason for saying they wi l l  not  

be able to come.  So i t  seems that  we must real ly ser iously  

consider compel l ing everybody.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Otherwise we wi l l  keep on having these 

problems.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.   One of  the signi f icant  

di fferences between the wi tnesses or many of  the wi tnesses 

– not  al l  – many of  the wi tnesses that  are now present ing 
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evidence before you Chai r  is that  they are in one way or 

another impl icated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And are being cal led to account.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So i t  seems there the reluctance is 

creeping in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  not  creeping in – rushing in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Yes.   So I  th ink that  probably each 10 

work st ream must  have a look in the weeks ahead and see 

people who have been not i f ied to  appear and apply thei r  

minds to the quest ion of  a summons even i f  a not ice to 

appear has al ready gone to consider whether a summons 

should not  be issued to make sure that  people wi l l  be – wi l l  

be here.   And i f  their  –  because then fai lure to appear when 

there is  a summons that  has been served wi l l  be a cr iminal  

offence.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Wel l  the problems do not  end there 

though because Mr Mokhesi  who is the account ing off icer for  

the Free State Department has also raised certain  issues.   

He agreed to come during the week.   We not i f ied on the 15 

July.   He was then informed of  a part icular date and i t  
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appears he conf i rmed that  he would appear on the 5 August  

2020.   However last  week we received an emai l  saying that  

they had only received six clear court  days’ not ice – that  is 

incorrect  they received over two weeks’ not ice and agreed to 

at tend on that  basis and then request ing an al ternat ive 

convenient  date.   The at torney said he is not  avai lable on s ix 

days’ not ice wel l  that  is a matter between at torney and 

cl ient .   The cl ient  had been given many more days than that  

and his counsel  apparent ly has tested posi t ive for Covid-19 

so that  is the si tuat ion there.   We have sent  a simi lar  let ter – 10 

the secretary sent  a  simi lar let ter  to Mr Mokhesi  on the 3 

August  – yesterday saying – acknowledging the 

correspondence and the communicat ions and saying that  the 

“Please be advised that  i t  is not  wi thin the power or 

discret ion of  the invest igators or the legal  team to excuse 

you f rom appearing on the commission on 5 August  you are 

therefore required to appear as agreed and explain any 

reasons you might  have for a  postponement of  your 

evidence. ”  

And that  is the si tuat ion wi th Mr Mokhesi .   My inst ruct ions 20 

are that  we are told that  he has not  responded to that .   We 

wi l l  make further enqui r ies both wi th the at torneys and the – 

Mr Mokhesi  himsel f  and revert  to you Chai r.   Thursday and 

Fr iday are ful l  though – more than ful l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Mr Mokhesi  was supposed to appear 
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tomorrow? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  guess that  –  wel l  I  would be 

handing down my decision in  relat ion to Mr Fuzi le ’s  

appl icat ion for Leave to Cross-examine Mr Van Rooyen 

tomorrow at  ten.   So I  guess that  i f  Mr Mokhesi  has not  made 

a substant ive appl icat ion – what was his reason for –  oh is i t  

the lawyer who says I  am not  avai lable wi thin six days? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes the – Mr Mokhesi  acknowledged 

receipt  of  not ice.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Agreed to at tend.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Agreed to at tend dur ing the week and 

then on the part icular day – tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I t  seems he only gave his at torneys 

six days or short  not ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   For the at torney to prepare and br ief  20 

counsel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Counsel  that  they want to appear has 

Covid and the at torney says he has not  had enough t ime to 

prepare.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  I  th ink in that  posi t ion we must 

be here at  ten o’c lock when I  f in ish wi th my decision,  we wi l l  

be expect ing him to be here and i f  he is not  here – I  mean i f  

he is  here to make an appl icat ion for a postponement,  we 

wi l l  deal  wi th that .   I f  he is here and he is able to give 

evidence we cont inue.   And i f  we are here and he is not  here 

to e i ther make an appl icat ion for  a postponement  or give 

evidence then we wi l l  have to deal  wi th that  defaul t  on his 

part .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   We wi l l  have to – because i t  would 

mean he – he was asked to be here,  he agreed to be here 

and then decided not  to be here.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   On h is own.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And that  against  the background have 

– of  having to  appear and having been given every 

opportuni ty to appear and answer the case.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  was made.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  is ser ious for anybody to – not  to  

appear in those ci rcumstances but  I  th ink i t  is even more 

ser ious when we are talk ing about  ei ther a HOD or a former 

HOD of  any department who is an account ing off icer who 

was an account ing off icer.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So we wi l l  be here.   I f  he is not  here then 

we wi l l  – we wi l l  look at  the si tuat ion and necessary 

decisions wi l l  be taken.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.   In the meanwhi le,  I  

wi l l  communicate your di rect ive to the evidence leaders.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In regard to summons.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no that  is f ine.   Okay we wi l l  then 

adjourn for the day.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 5 AUGUST 2020 
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